
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


April 10, 2014


 3:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of April 2014 as “Prevent Child Abuse Month.”


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing retail


alcohol, beer and wine license from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of


Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell Food Mart, which is


located at 1183 Highway 54 East.


CONSENT AGENDA:


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to dispose and destroy old uniforms


and other items that are no longer serviceable.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into a Project Framework


Agreement with the Georgia Department of Transportation for a multi-use


bridge and accompanying path system project over State Route 54 near


Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT PI No. 0012878).


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental


Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for the Georgia Department of


Transportation’s multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project


over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT PI No.


0012878).


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


6. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint


Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey, Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to the


Fayette County Development Authority for four year terms, with said


appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
April 10, 2014
Page Number 2


7. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Dennis Dorsey to the Fayette


County Development Authority to the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said appointment beginning


April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016.


8. Consideration of the Fayette County Humane Society’s request to conduct a trial Trap / Neuter/ Return feral


cat program and to apply for Trap / Neuter / Return grant funds to pay for the trial project.


9. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding Chapter 15 to the Fayette


County Code of Ordinances- Public Health.


10. Approval of the March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty was


not present at that meeting.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs


Consideration of staff's recommendation to transfer an existing retail alcohol, beer and wine license from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of 


Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell Food Mart, which is located at 1183 Highway 54 East.


Applicant has met all requirements and has been approved by the Code Enforcement Department.


Approval of staff's recommendation to transfer an existing retail alcohol, beer and wine license from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of 


Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell Food Mart, which is located at 1183 Highway 54 East.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Public HearingThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #2





















		Code Enforcement- Alcohol License Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Alcohol License Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Department of Public Health Kathy Hobbs / Robert Kurbes


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding Chapter 15 to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances-  


Public Health.


The Georgia Department of Public Health recently updated its Rules and Regulations pertaining to Tourist Accommodations (Chapter 


511-6-2.)  These updated rules and regulations went into effect on January 1, 2014.  A copy of the rules and regulations are provided in 


the supporting documentation beginning on page 32 . 


 


Staff is requesting the Board of Commissioners to adopt Ordinance 2014-06 (Attachment A; page 2).  Adopting Ordinance 2014-06 will 


add Chapter 15: Public Health to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances and will adopt the Rules and Regulations as it pertains only to 


the Department of Public Health.  


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding Chapter 15 to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances-  


Public Health.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #9







 1


 


 


 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO ADD CHAPTER 15 TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF 


ORDINANCES: PUBLIC HEALTH; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO 


REPAEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; TO 


PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY 


LAW. 


 


 Whereas, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 Whereas, the governing authority desires to create Chapter 15: Public Health that 


provides regulations for Public Health as allowed by the State of Georgia. 


 


 Whereas, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, 


Georgia shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this 


ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 15, Public Health, is hereby 


created with the following: 


 


CHAPTER 15.  PUBLIC HEALTH 


 


ARTICLE 1 – IN GENERAL 


 


Section 15-1 Authority 


 
These rules are adopted pursuant to the Official Code of Georgia Annotated §§ 31-2A-6 
and 31-28-1 et seq.[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 


Section 15-2 Title and Purpose. These rules shall be known as the Rules and 
Regulations for Tourist Accommodations. The purpose of these rules is to emphasize 
the minimum standards necessary for tourist accommodations to provide essential 
services, facilities, and sanitary conditions in order to protect the public health and 
safety. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
Tourist Accommodations Chapter 511-6-2 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A







 2


 
 


Article 2 – Tourist Accommodations 
 
 
 
15-3 Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and 
enforcement of these rules: 
 
(a) “Approved” means acceptable to the Health Authority based on a determination of 
conformity with principles, practices, and generally recognized standards that protect 
public health. 
 
(b) "Bed and Breakfast Inn" means an establishment of twenty guestrooms or less, 
which serves food only to its registered tourists , and serves only a breakfast or similar 
early morning meal and an appropriate light snack in which the price of the food is 
included in the price of the overnight accommodation. For purposes of the rules, "Bed 
and Breakfast Inn" refers to an establishment in which the predominant relationship 
between the occupants thereof and the owner or operator of the establishment is that of 
innkeeper and tourist." 
 
(c) "Consumer” means in terms of relationship with a tourist accommodation, a 
transient person who becomes a guest of a tourist accommodation and is a member of 
the public, takes possession of food, receives lodging and services for a fee, is not 
functioning in the capacity of an operator of a tourist accommodation establishment and 
does not offer the food for resale. 
 
(d) "Continental breakfast" is defined as and may include  
(1) any non-potentially hazardous food (non-time/temperature control for safety food) 
which has been prepared commercially by a food processing plant that meets 
requirements of law and is served to the consumer out of the original container in which 
it was purchased or if approved by the Health Authority, it may be served out of a 
commercial, self-service dispenser if such dispensers are properly designed to protect 
contained food from the consumer;  
(2) non-potentially hazardous beverages such as coffee and hot tea served in the 
container in which it was prepared;  
(3) potentially hazardous foods (time/temperature control for safety foods) such as milk, 
cream, butter and cheese prepared by a food processing plant that meets requirements 
of law only if served in single serving commercially packaged original containers; 
(4) juices and condiments including jams, jellies, 
sugar, salt and pepper served in single serving commercially packaged original 
containers or juices may be served from a bulk mechanical dispenser, if appropriate 
warewashing is available; 
(5) non-ready-to-eat whole, uncut, raw fruits, such as bananas, grape fruit, or oranges 
that require peeling of rind by the consumer before consumption; and  
(6) ready-to-eat, whole, raw, uncut fruits such as apples and/or grapes where the peel is 
consumed along with the meat of the fruit. Any additional items, other than those listed, 
will require a food service permit in accordance with the Department’s rules and 
regulations governing food service establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or any future 
subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter. 







 3


(e) “County Board of Health" means the County Board of Health established pursuant 
to O.C.G.A. Section 31-3-1. 
 
(f) "Critical item" means a provision of this Chapter as delineated on the inspection 
report that, if violated, is more likely than other violations to contribute to food 
contamination, insanitary conditions, illness or environmental health hazard and may 
create an imminent health hazard. 
 
(g) "Department" or “DPH” means the Department of Public Health (DPH). 
 
(h) "Dependent trailer" means a trailer or recreational vehicle (RV) which is dependent 
upon a service building housing shower/ toilet facilities. 
 
(i) “Detached cabin” means, for the purpose of installing and operating a portable spa 
on the premises, a separate dwelling having no wall in common with another dwelling or 
building. The cabin as part of a tourist accommodation shall be rented as an entire unit, 
not by individual rooms. 
 
(j) "Employee" means any person engaged in the operation of a tourist accommodation 
whether compensated or not. 
 
(k) "Food" means a raw, cooked, or processed edible substance, ice, beverage, or 
ingredient used or intended in whole or in part for human consumption, or chewing gum. 
 
(l) "Food-contact surface" means a surface of equipment or a utensil with which food 
normally comes into contact or a surface of equipment or a utensil from which food may 
drain, drip, or splash into a food or onto a surface normally in contact with food. 
 
(m) "Food processing plant” means a commercial operation that manufactures, 
packages, labels, or stores food, and provides food for sale or distribution to other 
business entities such as food processing plants, retail food sales, or food service 
establishments. 
 
(n) "Food service” means a facility that shall comply with provisions of O.C.G.A. 
Chapter 26-2 Art. 13 and the rules, regulations and standards adopted thereunder. 
 
(o) "Health Authority" means the County Board of Health if functioning in the 
administration and enforcement of O.C.G.A. Chapter 31-28 and the rules, regulations 
and standards adopted thereunder by the Department and subject to supervision and 
direction by the Department; and if not so functioning, the Department. 
 
(p) “Housekeeper’s cart” means a cart which is used to transport cleaning materials, 
room supplies, clean and soiled linens and refuse. 
 
(q) “Hydromassage bathtub” means a permanently installed bathtub fixture designed 
to be filled with each use and equipped with a recirculation piping system, a pump and 
associated controls. It is designed so it can accept, circulate and discharge water upon 
each use. It does not contain a disinfection or filtration system. 
 







 4


(r) "Imminent health hazard" means a product, practice, circumstance, event or 
condition that requires immediate correction or cessation of operation in order to prevent 
a significant threat of danger or death, injury or illness. 
 
(s) "Independent trailer" means a trailer or recreational vehicle (RV) which has a 
holding tank for waste and/or can be connected directly to a sewer connection. 
 
(t) "Law" means applicable local, state, and federal statutes, regulations, and 
ordinances. 
 
(u) “Lodging” means a temporary sleeping accommodation, with or without 
independent kitchenettes, offered to tourists, travelers or guests travelling from one 
place to another, stopping overnight or otherwise in need of a temporary place to stay. 
 


(v) “Non-ready-to-eat fruit” means whole uncut, raw fruit, such as oranges, grapefruit, 
and bananas in which the peel must be removed by the consumer before the meat of the 
fruit is consumed. 
 
(w) “Non-permanent structure” means any structures such as buildings, tents, park 
trailers or cabins that can be removed from the premise of a tourist accommodation and 
they are not restrained from removal by foundation or utilities, without internal plumbing, 
dependent upon central shower/toilet buildings for tourist personal hygiene and 
sanitation purposes, and are maintained, offered, or used for dwelling or sleeping 
quarters. 
 
(x) "Operator" means the person who has the duty and responsibility of overall 
management of the tourist accommodation which includes maintaining a sanitary facility, 
providing guest services and training employees, or his/her representative, or person in 
charge. 
 
(y) “Packaged” means bottled, canned, cartoned, securely bagged or securely 
wrapped, as packaged in a food processing plant. It does not include a wrapper, carry-
out box or other nondurable container used to containerize food with the purpose of 
facilitating food protection during service and receipt of the food by the consumer. 
 
(z) “Park trailer “ means a recreation vehicle primarily designed as temporary living 
quarters for recreation, camping or seasonal use, built on a single chassis, mounted on 
wheels, with a gross trailer area not exceeding 400 square feet in the set-up mode, and 
certified by the manufacturer as complying with ANSI A119.5. 
 
(aa) “Permit” means the DPH document issued by the Health Authority that authorizes 
a person to operate a Tourist Accommodation and signifies satisfactory compliance with 
this Chapter. 
 
(bb) "Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, or association. 
 
(cc) “Person in charge” means the individual present in a tourist accommodation 
establishment who is the owner, supervisor, manager or owner’s designated 
representative of the tourist accommodation establishment present at the time of the 
inspection. The person shall be knowledgeable of the responsibilities in the chapter and 
have access to facilities on the premises. 







 5


 


(dd) “Portable spa unit” means a factory fabricated unit consisting of a water holding 
vessel with all water-circulating, filtration, heating and control equipment integral to the 
unit. Equipment can include pumps, air blowers, heaters, lights, controls and disinfection 
and filtration systems. These portable spas are intended for residential use. 
 
(ee) “Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food)” means 
a food that requires time/temperature control for safety to limit pathogenic 
microorganism growth or toxin formation. Refer to Rule.01 within the Department’s rules 
and regulations governing food service establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or future 
subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter. 
 
(ff) "Premises" means and includes all physical buildings, appurtenances, parking lots, 
drive ways and all property used by the tourist accommodation. 
 
(gg) “Primitive campsite” means a site in an undeveloped section of private or public 
land with no developed facilities or amenities such as water, electricity or toilets/shower 
facilities, where campers are expected to leave little or no evidence of human visitation. 
 
(hh) "Preparation of food" means to put together or make by combining ingredients 
and processing food for consumption by the consumer. 
 
(ii) “Ready-to-eat food” means food that is in a form that is edible without additional 
preparation to achieve food safety. It includes the following: 
1. All potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) that is cooked 
to the temperature and time required for the specific food; 
2. Raw fruits and vegetables that are washed; 
3. Fruits and vegetables that are cooked for hot holding; 
4. Plant food for which further washing, cooking, or other processing is not required for 
food safety, and from which rinds, peels, husks, or shells, if naturally present have been 
removed; 
5. Substances derived from plants such as spices, seasonings, and sugar; 
6. A bakery item such as bread, cakes, pies, fillings, or icing for which further cooking is 
not required for food safety; 
7. The following products that are produced in accordance with USDA guidelines and 
that have received a lethality treatment for pathogens: dry, fermented sausages, such as 
dry salami or pepperoni; salt-cured meat and poultry products, such as prosciutto ham, 
country cured ham, and Parma ham; and dried meat and poultry products, such as jerky 
or beef sticks; and 
8. Foods manufactured as specified in 21 CFR Part 113, Thermally Processed Low-Acid 
Foods Packaged in Hermetically Sealed Containers. 
 
(jj) “Ready–to-eat fruit” means whole raw, uncut, fruits, such as apples and/or grapes, 
that have been washed prior to service and the meat and the peel is normally consumed 
by guest. 
 
(kk) “Recreational vehicle (RV)” means a vehicle designated for temporary living 
quarters for camping, travelling, or recreational use. It may have its own motor, or be 
mounted on or pulled by another vehicle. 
 







 6


(ll) “Recreational vehicle park or campground” means an accommodation for 
recreational vehicles or other camping outfits where an individual site is rented, and the 
intent of the park or campground is not to establish permanent residences. 
 
(mm) "Residential kitchen" means a kitchen within a bed and breakfast inn used for 
the owners’ private use as well as preparation of a breakfast meal for tourists. 
 
(nn) "Restricted use pesticide" means a pesticide product that contains the active 
ingredients specified in 40 CFR 152.175 (Pesticides classified for restricted use), and 
that is limited to use by or under the direct supervision of a certified applicator. 
 
(oo) "Sanitization" means the application of cumulative heat or chemicals on cleaned 
food contact surfaces that, when evaluated for efficacy, is sufficient to yield a reduction 
of 5 logs, which is equal to a 99.999% reduction, of representative disease 
microorganisms of public health importance. 
 
(pp) "Sealed” means free of cracks or other openings that allow the entry or passage of 
moisture. 
 
(qq) "Sewage" means liquid waste containing animal or vegetable matter in suspension 
or solution and may include liquids containing chemicals in solution. 
 
(rr) “Single-service articles” means tableware, carry-out utensils, cups, containers, lids 
or closures, plates, napkins, doilies, bags, containers, toothpicks, knives, forks, spoons, 
stirrers, paddles, straws, wrapping materials, and similar utensils that are intended to be 
discarded after one use. 
 
(ss) “Single-serving” is food intended to be eaten by one person in one sitting and 
commercially packaged in a container intended to be discarded after one use. 
 
(tt) "Smooth" means a surface that has no roughness or projections that render it 
difficult to cleanor maintain in a sanitary condition. 
 
(uu) "Tourist Accommodation" means any facility consisting of two or more rooms or 
dwelling units providing lodging and other accommodations to the general public, such 
as tourist courts, tourist cottages, tourist homes, trailer parks, trailer courts, motels, 
motor hotels, hotels, and any similar place by whatever name called and any food, 
beverage, laundry, recreational or other facilities or establishments operated in 
conjunction therewith. This definition includes any facility consisting of two or more 
rooms or dwelling units either joined together or separate on a common piece of 
property, furnished for pay and further includes campgrounds, recreational vehicle parks 


and bed and breakfast inns. A tourist accommodation is not a facility intended for 
permanent residence, or a facility available only to members of a club or through private 
lease or invitation. 
 
(vv) "Tourist”, "Traveler," or “Guest” is defined as anyone who visits a Tourist 
Accommodation for the purpose of lodging, meals, or entertainment . 
 
(ww) "Trailer" means any trailer coach, recreational vehicle (RV), park trailer or other 
similar unit designed for temporary dwelling or sleeping purposes. 
 







 7


(xx) "Trailer space” means a plot of ground within a trailer and/or recreational vehicle 
park designated for the accommodation of one trailer or recreational vehicle (RV). 
 
(yy) "Utensil" means a food-contact implement or container used in the storage, 
preparation, transportation, dispensing, sale, or service of food, such as kitchenware or 
tableware that is multiuse, single-service, or single-use; gloves used in contact with food; 
temperature sensing probes of food temperature measuring devices; and probe-type 
price or identification tags used in contact with food. 
 
(zz) "Warewashing" means the cleaning and sanitizing of utensils and food-contact 
surfaces of or equipment. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
 
15-4  Tourist Accommodation Permits. 
 
(1) Permit: 
(a) Any person operating a tourist accommodation shall obtain and display a valid DPH 
tourist accommodation permit issued by the Health Authority. 
(b) To qualify for a permit, an applicant shall: 
1. Be an owner of the tourist accommodation; 
2. Allow access to the tourist accommodation; 
3. Provide all information as required on the application and pay all applicable local and 
state fees referenced in DPH Rule 511-6-2-.22 at the time the application is submitted 
and; 
4. Score 100% on the permitting inspection for newly constructed facilities. 
(c) Prior to the issuance of a tourist accommodation permit to new or existing 
establishments, the applicant shall provide evidence of satisfactory compliance with the 
provisions of this Chapter and all other provisions of laws that apply to the location, 
construction and maintenance of tourist 
accommodation establishments and the safety of persons therein. At the request of the 
Health Authority, a permit holder of a tourist accommodation may be requested to show 
evidence of continued compliance with provisions of law that apply to the location, 
construction and maintenance of tourist accommodations and the safety of persons 
therein. 
(d) Application for a permit to operate such tourist accommodation shall be made in 
duplicate upon forms provided by the Department. Such forms shall be completed in all 
details and signed by the applicant or authorized agent and submitted at least ten days 
before the scheduled opening. The original shall be filed with the Health Authority. 
(e) Upon receipt of an application for permit the Health Authority shall review the 
application and shall take action to approve or deny the permit as is provided in 
accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. Chapter 31-28 and these regulations. 
(f) The Health Authority shall grant the permit or write a statement detailing the reasons 
for denial. The permit or statement shall be forwarded to the tourist accommodation 
operator. 
(g) Permits shall expire upon change of ownership, location, or change in type of 
operation. A “change of ownership” means the transfer of a 50% interest or greater in 
the Tourist Accommodation to a person or entity not holding a current interest. In 
addition, once a Tourist Accommodation permit has been issued by the Health Authority, 
any significant or material change of the Tourist Accommodation’s physical layout that 







 8


would alter the interior or exterior structural blueprint of the facility may invalidate the 
permit. Unless prior approval has been obtained from the Health Authority, the facility 
shall maintain the physical layout shown within the approved plans and specifications of 
the Tourist Accommodation at the time of permit issuance. Operators shall notify the 
Health Authority before any structural, material or equipment changes to obtain approval 
if necessary. 
(h) The permit shall be void when the tourist accommodation ceases to operate or 
moves to another location. The operator shall be responsible for notifying the Health 
Authority when the Tourist Accommodation ceases to operate and for removing the 
invalid permit from the facility. 
 
(2) Plans and Specifications. Plans and specifications for remodeling tourist 
accommodations and construction of new tourist accommodations must be submitted for 
review and approval fourteen days prior to beginning construction. The plans shall 
indicate the proposed layout and arrangement of rooms in the establishment and what 
each is to be used for. Mechanical and plumbing details must be shown as well as 
construction materials to be used on floors, walls and ceilings. Additional plans for a 
kitchen will be required if food is to be prepared and served to guests. The plans shall 
indicate the proposed menu or list of foods to be served, floor plan layout, 
arrangement of equipment, HVAC and plumbing, construction materials and finish 
schedule, the type and model of proposed fixed equipment and facilities and the 
anticipated service volume per day. If swimming pools or spas are planned, properly 
prepared plans and specifications must be submitted to the local Health Authority for 
review, approval, and issuance of a construction permit as per applicable rules and 
regulations governing public swimming pools. If no construction changes are to be made 
to an existing building, requirement for plans will be at the discretion of the Health 
Authority. 
 
(3) Private Camps. Camps or facilities owned and operated for members only may be 
inspected at the Health Authority’s discretion or upon request by the owner or operator 
or by complaint. 
 
(4) Primitive Campsites. These campsites shall be inspected only at the discretion of 
the Health Authority. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-5 Inspections. 
(1) Tourist accommodations shall be subject to inspection at reasonable hours no less 
than twice annually and as often as is deemed necessary by the Health Authority to 
ensure adequate compliance with the provisions of these rules. The permit holder is 
responsible for providing a person or persons at the time of inspection who are 
authorized and able to provide access to all rooms, facilities and records of the tourist 
accommodation, and who can demonstrate that there is sufficient daily oversight of 
employees and routine monitoring of operations to ensure the following: 
 
(a) Employees adhere to standard procedures or rules in the chapter when performing 
essential services such as linen exchange, sanitizing facilities or multiuse utensils, 
washing laundry, housekeeping and providing food in compliance for tourists, travelers 
and guest lodging or visiting the facility for other purposes; 
 







 9


 (b) Employees are preventing cross-contamination of clean linen, towels or glassware in 
transport or storage by separating items, using designated containers and properly 
storing items after cleaning and sanitizing; 
 
(c) Employees are preventing cross-contamination of ready-to-eat food with bare hands 
by properly using suitable utensils such as deli tissue, spatulas, tongs, single-use 
gloves, or dispensing equipment; 
 
(d) Employees are properly cleaning and sanitizing multiuse utensils by monitoring 
temperature and exposure time for hot water sanitizing or chemical concentration, pH 
and temperature for chemical sanitizing; 
(e) Employees of a bed and breakfast inn are properly cooking potentially hazardous 
food (time/temperature control for safety food), being particularly careful in cooking those 
foods known to cause severe foodborne illness and death, such as eggs and 
comminuted meats and conduct routine monitoring of the cooking temperatures using 
appropriate temperature measuring devices properly scaled and calibrated; 
 
(f) Employees are using proper methods to hold potentially hazardous foods 
(time/temperature control for safety food) hot or cold for consumption; 
 
(g) Employees are informed of their responsibility to report to the person in charge, 
information about their health and activities as they relate to diseases that are 
transmissible through food; and contact with multiuse utensils and; 
 
(h) If an imminent health hazard exists, misuse of poisonous or toxic materials, onset of 
an apparent illness or outbreak, gross insanitary condition, or other circumstances that 
may endanger public health, then operations in the affected area shall be immediately 
discontinued by the person in charge and the Health Authority notified. 
 
(2) The operator may accompany the Health Authority representative on tours of 
inspection, shall be given the opportunity to sign the completed inspection report and 
retain a copy for the tourist accommodation's file. 
 
 (3) The signature of the operator shall not mean his agreement with all of the findings 
recorded thereon, but only that he or she has received the report and the notification of 
alleged noncompliances with the rules. 
 
(4) The results of the inspection shall be recorded on a form provided by the 
Department. This report will show violations found, corrective actions necessary for 
compliance with this rule, date of inspection, signature of person performing the 
inspection and the date when corrections to violations must be completed. If three or 
more critical item violations are found and recorded on a tourist accommodation 
inspection report form, then a re-inspection will be required within 60 days. 
Critical violations shall be corrected immediately, within 24 hours, or the Health Authority 
shall be authorized to close or restrict access to any area of the premises found in 
violation of critical item(s) on the official inspection record. Such areas shall be closed 
until the violations have been corrected or abated as determined by the Health Authority 
using the requirements in Rule .20. 
 
(5) The operator shall correct other violations at time of inspection, if warranted, or within 
30 days of the inspection report date. The Health Authority may extend the 30 days if an 







 10


operator requires additional time to remove a violation based on a written plan of 
correction. 
 
(6) The report shall be discussed and explained at the time of inspection with the tourist 
accommodation operator or if not present, the designated person in charge. 
 
(7) The most recent tourist accommodation inspection report form shall be prominently 
displayed in public view at all times, between five feet and seven feet from the floor and 
in a public area such as the registration desk, where it can be read at a distance of one 
foot away. 
 
(8) Any tourist accommodation inspection report addendum(s), completed by the Health 
Authority to document observations, violations, and corrective actions resulting from an 
inspection need not be displayed, but must be made available by the tourist 
accommodation operator to the public upon request. 
 
(9) The Health Authority shall review all reports on reinsertion and shall institute such 
action as is deemed necessary to ensure compliance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. 
Chapter 31-28. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
15-6 Employee Health and Safety. 
 
(1) No person affected with any disease in a communicable form, boils, infected wounds, 
or sores, or while a carrier of a communicable disease shall work in any area of a tourist 
accommodation in any capacity in which there is a likelihood of such a person 
contaminating bedding and other surfaces with pathogenic organisms or transmitting 
disease to other individuals and no person known or suspected of being affected with 
any such disease or condition shall be employed in such an area or capacity. When 
there is reason to suspect that an employee has contracted any disease in 
communicable form or has become a carrier of such a disease, the employee shall be 
removed from the tourist accommodation premises; or his or her service is 
restricted to some area of the establishment where there would be no danger of 
transmitting disease. 
 
(2) Employees, other than clerical employees, shall thoroughly wash their hands and the 
exposed portions of their arms with soap and warm water before starting work, during 
work as often as necessary to keep them clean and after smoking, eating, drinking or 
using the toilet. Employees shall keep their fingernails clean. Employees shall maintain a 
high degree of personal cleanliness and conform to other good hygienic practices. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-7 Water Supply and Sanitizing. 
(1) The water supply shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws and/or 
ordinances related to safe drinking water. The following shall apply as well: 
 
(a) A public water system must be used by any tourist accommodation that regularly 
serves an average of twenty-five trailer spaces or guestrooms daily for at least sixty days 
out of the year. This applies to such places as hotels, motels, trailer parks or cottages. 
 







 11


(b) A nonpublic water system serving less than twenty-five trailer spaces or guestrooms, 
must be constructed, maintained, and operated according to applicable state and local 
codes and procedures, as amended. 
 
(2) Cold running water under pressure shall be provided to all equipment that uses 
water. Hot and cold running water under pressure shall be provided to all lavatories, 
bathing facilities, laundry facilities, and water-using equipment where eating and drinking 
utensils are washed. In all new tourist accommodations, and where possible in existing 
tourist accommodations, hot water in all guest rooms shall not exceed 1200F. 
 
(3) The water supply shall be protected so as to preclude the possibility of back 
siphonage. Below grade stop and wastes cocks or hose bibs shall not be used. 
 
(4) Hoses used for filling trailer water tanks shall be stored under sanitary conditions, 
used for no other purposes, and handled so that back siphonage cannot occur and 
contaminants will not be introduced into the trailer's water tank. A hose connected to a 
potable water service outlet that is intended for human consumption must not be long 
enough to reach any wastewater dump station. 
 
(5) Water glasses, ice buckets and other multi-use utensils provided for tourist’s use in a 
guestroom or dwelling unit shall be washed, rinsed, and sanitized, in a 3-compartment, 
warewashing sink dedicated for that purpose only. They shall be thoroughly cleaned in 
the first compartment in a warm soapy solution; rinsed clean of soap and debris in warm 
clean water in the second compartment; and sanitized as specified in subsection (5) (d) 
1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 using chemical sanitizers or sanitized by hot water as specified in 
subsection (5) (e), after each occupancy and as needed during occupancy. Where 
approved sanitizing methods are not provided, single service and single use articles, 
such as paper or plastic cups shall be made available in lieu of glasses and shall be 
discarded after one use. In lieu of sanitizing ice buckets, a sanitary, food grade, plastic 
bag, large enough to line the bucket and overlap the top edge may be provided for use 
by a single occupant. 
 (a) In addition to a dedicated 3-compartment warewashing sink, a commercial 
warewasher may be utilized if certified by ANSI/NSF as meeting standard 3 or 
equivalent for commercial warewashing equipment and it is maintained in good repair 
and operating according to its manufacturer’s specifications. 
(b) If a warewasher is provided in the room of the tourist accommodation, or if the 
operators provide a non-commercial warewasher (i.e. dishwasher) to clean and sanitize 
multi-use equipment and utensils between room occupancies, then the machine must 
comply with the following: 
1. The warewasher must be able to remove all physical soil from all surfaces of dishes 
and; 
2. Be equipped with a high temperature rinse cycle such as a sani-cycle and all cycles 
on the machine must be used ( prewash, wash, sanitizing rinse) and be certified by NSF 
standards or; 
3. If no high temperature rinse cycle is provided, the hot water supplied to the machine 
must be at a minimum of 155º F (68º C). The operator shall use a maximum registering 
thermometer or a heat thermal label to assure that the sanitizing rinse water temperature 
is a minimum of 155ºF (68ºC). The operator must record quarterly each warewasher 
temperature reading for review at the discretion of the Health Authority. 
(c) The warewasher must be installed and operated according to manufacturer’s 
instructions for the highest level of sanitization possible when sanitizing kitchen facilities’ 







 12


utensils and tableware. A copy of the instructions must be available on the premises at 
all times. 
(d) A chemical sanitizer used in a sanitizing solution for a manual or mechanical 
operation at exposure times specified under this subsection shall meet the requirements 
specified in 40 CFR 180.940 Tolerance exemptions for active and inert ingredients for 
use in antimicrobial formulations (food-contact surface sanitizing solutions), shall be 
used in accordance with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)-approved 
manufacturer's label use instructions, and shall be used as follows: 
 


1. A chlorine solution shall have a minimum temperature based on the concentration and 
pH of the solution as listed in the following chart; 
Minimum 


Concentration 


Minimum Temperature 


MG/L PH 10 or less 


oC (oF) 


PH 8 or less 


oC (oF) 


25 49 (120) 49 (120) 


50 38 (100) 24 ( 75) 


100 13 ( 55) 13 ( 55) 


2. An iodine solution shall have a minimum temperature of 75ºF (24ºC), minimum 
concentration between 12.5 ppm and 25 ppm, and pH of 5.0 or less or a pH no higher 
than the level for which the manufacturer specifies for the solution to be effective; 
3. A quaternary ammonium compound solution shall have a minimum temperature of 
75ºF (24ºC), have a concentration as specified in 40 CFR 180.940 Tolerance 
exemptions for active and inert ingredients for use in antimicrobial formulations and as 
indicated by the manufacturer’s use directions included in the labeling, and be used only 
in water with 500 ppm hardness or less or in water having a hardness no greater than 
specified by the manufacturer’s label; 
4. If another solution of a chemical specified under 1 - 3 of this subsection is used, the 
permit holder shall demonstrate to the Health Authority that the solution achieves 
sanitization and the use of the solution shall be approved; or 
5. If a chemical sanitizer other than chlorine, iodine, or a quaternary ammonium 
compound is used; it shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's use 
directions included in the labeling. 
6. The operator shall provide a test kit or device that measures the sanitizing agent’s 
concentration in the solution. Each time a user replaces the solution; they shall measure 
the concentration of the sanitizer in parts per million. 


(e) Hot water may be used to sanitize glasses, ice buckets and other multi-use utensils 
in a 3-compartmented, warewashing sink, after they have been thoroughly cleaned in 
the first compartment in a warm soapy solution; and then rinsed clean of soap and 
debris in clean warm water in the second compartment. These items will then be 
immersed for at least 30 seconds in water at a temperature of 171°F (77°C) or above 
and then air-dried before use and/or storage. (6) Single- service items placed in a 
guestroom or dwelling units shall be commercially prewrapped to protect against 
contamination. Water glasses shall be inverted on a clean surface or covered with a 
single-service lid and other multi-use utensils shall be protected from contamination in a 
manner approved by the Health Authority. Equipment, utensils, dishes, etc. in 
kitchenettes provided for guest use shall be kept clean and sanitized between each 
tourist’s occupancy. If kitchenettes are provided for tourist use, then dishwashing 
detergent shall be made available for tourist use. 







 13


(7) Drinking founts shall be constructed of impervious material and shall have an angle-
jet nozzle above the overflow rim of the bowl. The nozzle shall be protected by a non-
oxidizing guard and the bowl shall be constructed of an easily cleanable material. 
(8) If self-service ice is provided, then it shall be from an approved water supply. In all 
new tourist accommodations, and in existing tourist accommodations when machines 
are replaced, only automatic dispensing ice machines will be allowed. In existing tourist 
accommodations permitted prior to the adoption of this rule, the use of existing self-
service ice-storage bins may be continued, provided that the machines are maintained in 
good repair and capable of being properly cleaned and sanitized according to the 
manufacturer’s recommendations. Further, a copy of the manufacturer’s cleaning 
instructions shall be maintained onsite for review at the request of the Health Authority. 
Scoops, ice buckets, and other ice handling equipment, shall be of easily cleanable 
material and construction. They shall be stored in a clean place and shall be kept clean. 
Glassware shall not be used to scoop ice. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 


15-8 Toilet Facilities. 
(1) Toilet, lavatory, and bathing facilities shall be provided at all tourist accommodations 
except as provided in paragraphs (13) and (16) of this Rule. Such facilities shall be 
easily accessible, convenient and available to patrons at all times. 
(2) Bedrooms in permanent structures shall be provided with private or connecting 
baths. Central toilet facilities may be used to serve bed and breakfast inns and existing 
multi-storied tourist accommodations; so long as, toilet facilities are within the building, 
located on each floor, and deemed adequate by determination of the Health Authority to 
serve the tourists therein. 
(3) Bedrooms in non-permanent structures such as cabins, park trailers, or structures in 
a wilderness settings used to provide lodging shall be provided with access to central 
toilet/shower building. 
(4) Toilet rooms and fixtures must be smooth and nonabsorbent and shall be kept clean 
and in good repair. Walls, floors, and ceilings shall be constructed of easily cleanable 
nonabsorbent materials and shall be kept clean and in good repair. While being used by 
tourists, every surface of a bathtub, shower, shower enclosure, toilet and lavatory, which 
may come in contact with a person’s body, must be sanitized each day, unless the guest 
has declined regular tourist room services. If a tourist declines regular tourist room 
services, the tourist accommodation facility must ensure that these surfaces are cleaned 
and sanitized at least once per week and between tourists. 
(5) Toilet, lavatory and bathing facilities shall be mechanically ventilated. Where 
ventilation ducts are used, ducts from toilet rooms shall not be connected into return 
ventilation ducts to any other room. In existing tourist accommodations permitted prior to 
the adoption of this rule, the current ventilation must prevent odor, mold, mildew, and 
moisture. All new or major renovation of a tourist accommodation will require mechanical 
ventilation to be installed to the outside of the building separate from heating and air-
condition systems. 
 (6) Toilet rooms, lavatories and bathing facilities shall be provided with soap, artificial 
light, and hot and cold water under pressure. 
(7) Unused, individually wrapped soap or liquid soap dispensed from approved 
containers shall be provided in guest rooms. Soap furnished in public wash rooms or 
baths shall be dispensed from approved containers designed to preclude contamination 
of the contents by individual contact. 
(8) Clean laundered individual towels shall be provided for each occupant in tourist 
rooms. Used or soiled towels shall be exchanged with clean towels and laundered 







 14


between each occupancy and at the request of the customer. If fabric bath mats are 
provided, they shall be laundered or cleaned after each occupancy. Towels, whenever 
provided in public wash rooms or baths, shall be individual towels and if cloth shall have 
been laundered since last used. 
(9) Toilet tissue shall be provided in a dispenser at each toilet at all times. 
(10) Anti-slip tubs slip strips, appliqués, or slip-proof mats shall be provided in each 
bathing facility and shall be kept clean and in good repair. 
(11) When used, hydromassage bathtubs shall be installed in accordance with the 
applicable codes. The recirculation piping system for a hydromassage bathtub shall be 
cleaned in accordance with the manufacturer instructions. Further, the manufacturer’s 
cleaning instructions shall be available on-site for examination at the request of the 
Health Authority. Fresh potable water must be provided with each use. 
(12) Where dependent trailers are located, central toilet/shower buildings shall be 
provided and sized to meet the expected guest load based upon the number of trailer 
spaces or fraction thereof. 
(13) If the independent trailer sites are served by sewer connections, then it is not 
necessary for independent trailer sites to have access to central toilet/shower buildings. 
However, if such facilities are not provided, a sign with at least 2-inch high lettering shall 
be posted at the main entrance to the establishment notifying dependent trailer owners 
that central toilet/shower facilities are not available. 
 (14) Central Toilet/Shower Buildings shall meet at least the following minimum 
requirements: 
(a) They shall be provided with separations for each sex with no interconnection. All 
rooms and parts of the central toilet/shower building shall be well-lighted, drained, 
ventilated to control odor, mold and mildew and of good construction with impervious 
materials. They shall be developed and planned in consultation with the Health Authority 
and designed so that good sanitation can be maintained throughout the building at all 
times. Every surface of a bathtub, shower, shower enclosure, toilet and lavatory which 
may come in contact with a person’s body must be sanitized each day. 
(b) Handicapped accessible toilet, shower, and lavatory facilities shall be designed and 
provided in accordance with state or local requirements and can be included as part of 
the required total number of water closets, shower heads, lavatories, etc. 
(c) Central toilet/shower building shall be plainly identified with signage of at least 2-inch 
high lettering and located within 200 feet of dwelling units or trailer spaces served. 
(d) When serving dependent trailers, central toilet/shower buildings shall be provided for 
each ten trailer spaces or fraction thereof with not less than one commode, one lavatory 
and one tub or shower head for each sex. In addition, at least one urinal shall be 
provided in each central toilet designated for men. 
(e) When serving non-permanent structures, a central toilet/shower building shall be 
provided for each ten non-permanent structure, or fraction thereof, with not less than one 
commode, one lavatory and one tub or shower head for each sex. In addition, at least 
one urinal shall be provided in each central toilet designated for men. 
(f) If partitions are provided between portions of the dressing room area, screen 
partitions, shower, toilet, and dressing room booths shall be of durable material not 
subject to damage by water and shall be designed so that a waterway is provided 
between partitions and floor to permit thorough cleaning of the walls and floor areas with 
hoses, mops and brooms. 
(g) Hot and cold water under pressure shall be provided at all lavatories and showers. 
(h) Floors of central toilet/shower buildings shall be free of joints or openings and shall 
be continuous throughout the areas. Floors shall have a slip-resistant, nonabsorbent 
surface that shall be relatively smooth to ensure thorough cleaning. In all newly 







 15


constructed, remodeled or renovated facilities, floor drains shall be provided and floors 
shall be sloped not less than oneeight inch (1/8") per foot toward the drains to ensure 
positive drainage. 
(i) In all newly constructed, remodeled or renovated facilities, an adequate number of 
threefourths inch (3/4") hose bibbs shall be provided for flushing down the central toilet 
facility interior. 
(j) Soap dispensers for providing either liquid or powdered soap shall be provided at 
each lavatory. Shampoo dispensers for shampoo shall be provided for each shower 
head. These dispensers shall be of all metal or plastic type with no glass. They shall 
dispense their contents in such a manner that precludes contamination of the contents 
by individual contact. 
(k) At least one paper towel dispenser or hand blow dryer shall be provided for every 
three lavatories. 
(l) An unbreakable mirror shall be provided over each lavatory. 
(m) Toilet paper holders shall be provided at each water closet. 
(n) Soap, paper towels, and toilet tissue shall be provided in all dispensers. 
(o) Fixtures shall be installed in accordance with local plumbing codes and shall be 
properly protected against back-siphonage. 
(p) Fixtures shall be designed so that they may be readily and frequently cleaned and 
disinfected. Frequent cleaning and disinfecting shall not cause damage. 
(q) At least one trash receptacle will be available in toilet areas. 
(15) In all newly constructed, remodeled or renovated facilities, at least one service sink 
or one curbed cleaning facility equipped with a floor drain shall be provided and shall be 
conveniently located for the cleaning of mops or similar wet floor cleaning tools and for 
the disposal of mop water and similar liquid waste. Service sinks or curbed cleaning 
facilities may be located in central toilet/shower buildings servicing non-permanent 
structures or dependent trailer parks. 
(16) Remote, primitive, or wilderness campsites may not be required to provide toilet 
facilities at the discretion of the Health Authority. If toilet facilities are not provided, then a 
sign shall be posted at the main entrance notifying campers of what facilities are or are 
not available. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
15-9  Sewers. 
(1) Sewers shall be designed in accordance with recognized engineering practices for 
the estimated sewage flow and shall be laid with watertight joints to a grade that will 
ensure a selfcleaning velocity. Sewers shall be constructed of durable materials properly 
vented and shall be installed at sufficient depth to withstand anticipated loads or other 
equally suitable means for protection of the pipe shall be used. 
(2) Each independent trailer space shall be provided with a sewer connection not less 
than three inches in diameter. The design of these sewer connections shall be such that 
a watertight junction will be made with the trailer outlet. Each sewer connection shall be 
so constructed that it can be closed and when not in use shall be capped to prevent 
escape of odors. 
(3) Facilities with independent trailer spaces may use a properly sized dump station for 
sewage disposal with a properly sized central toilet/shower building built in accordance 
with DPH Rule .08(5), (12), (14) and (15). 
(4) Dump stations’ connection to sewage disposal shall be as according to DPH Rule .10 
of this Chapter. 
(5) Minimum design and specifications for dump stations shall be as follows: 







 16


(a) Each dump station shall be equipped with a concrete pad surrounding the drain. The 
concrete pad shall meet all of the following requirements: (See Drawing #1) 
1. It shall be a minimum of six feet by six feet in size; 
2. It shall be a minimum of six inches in thickness; 
3. It shall have a drain opening which is at least four inches in diameter with a foot-
operated, selfclosing cap which forms a tight seal with the drain. The drain opening shall 
be located outside of the wheel travel portion of the pad, and a minimum of 2 feet from 
any edge of the pad and curbing; 
4. It shall have minimum four-inch tall curbing bordering the non-wheel travel area of the 
pad; 
5. All surface drainage must be diverted around and away from pad; 
6. The surface of the pad shall slope at least .25 inch per foot from the edge to the drain; 
7. Four-inch piping shall run from the drain to either an on-site sewage management 
system or to a public sanitary sewer system; 
8. All plumbing must be in compliance with applicable state and local plumbing codes; 
9. A water supply outlet for wash down shall be provided with a water source that is 
protected from backflow and back-siphonage, and with a retractable spring coiled water 
delivery device or other system approved by the Health Authority. Hoses used for 
flushing the dump station pad shall not exceed the length necessary to reach the entire 
pad; and 
10. Drain must include ability to receive wash down water from the pad. 
(b) Each dump station shall be easily accessible to the entrance and exit area of the 
tourist accommodation and have safe, all weather access roadway that slopes away 
from the dump station pad. 
(c) Each dump station shall be properly sealed to prevent nuisances. 
(d) Each dump station shall be posted with signs that are clearly and indelibly labeled 
stating instructions for use with minimum one inch tall lettering. These signs must be at 
least 2 feet from pad. The signs shall include the statement in at least 1-inch high 
lettering, “Georgia law prohibits dumping sewage from recreational vehicles, 
camper trailers, and other holding tanks onto the ground. The water supply at this 
location is to be used for flushing and cleaning purposes only, and not for human 
consumption.” 
 (e) Each dump station shall be maintained in a clean and functional manner by the 
tourist accommodation operator. 
(f) Existing facilities with dump stations not in compliance with the design criteria in this 
Rule shall bring their dump station into compliance with the requirements of subsection 
(5) of this Rule when the station is repaired or renovated, or upon change of ownership. 
This exception does not exclude any requirement to maintain the dump station to 
prevent a public health nuisance or hazard. 
(6) Each dump station shall have an available water supply for the flushing of dump 
station areas and the following shall apply: (See Drawing #2) 
(a) Each dump station shall be constructed and operated so as to protect the water 
supply and all other water outlets within the tourist accommodation from contamination 
due to backflow in accordance with DPH Rule 511-6-2-.11. 
(b) Any hose or sprayer must be long enough to allow for a person to operate the drain 
opening while spraying the pad area. 
(c) The washing water supply towers, connections, hoses and other parts must be 
colored red. Under no circumstances shall the tourist accommodation operator allow a 
hose that is long enough to reach a water outlet that is used for human consumption to 
be connected to a water service outlet at a dump station. 







 17


(d) Each dump station shall be located such that any water source or service outlet used 
for filling water tanks or other uses for human consumption is at least fifty feet away from 
the dump station facility. 
 
Drawing #1 
 


Drawing #2 
Note: Waste piping will be not less than 4 inches in diameter unless specified by 
applicable law. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 


 


\ 


15-10 Sewage Disposal. 
(1) Connection shall be made to a public or community sewage treatment system when 
such system is available within two hundred feet of the property line, or available in a 
public right-of-way abutting the property. 
(2) Where public sewers are not available, as determined by the local governing agency, 
sewage disposal shall be provided to effectively dispose of all water carried wastes in a 
sanitary manner. No sewage, waste water, or other liquid effluent shall be discharged in 
such manner as to enter surface or subsurface water except following a treatment 
process approved prior to construction in conformity with existing State and local laws or 
by other means approved by the Health Authority. Such sewage disposal systems shall 
be constructed and maintained in a manner to prevent the creation of unsanitary 
conditions. The Health Authority may approve existing private sewage disposal systems 
giving satisfactory service. 
(3) When central toilet/shower buildings are provided on the premises of a tourist 
accommodation, a dump station must be installed and sized based on the total number 
and type of trailer sites to be served and projected sewage flow, and all in accordance 
with local codes. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-11 Plumbing. All plumbing in tourist accommodations shall comply with State and 
local laws, ordinances or regulations. In the absence of State and local laws, ordinances 
or regulations, the provisions of the current “International Plumbing Code with Georgia 
Amendments or future subsequent versions adopted thereafter shall prevail. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.12 Garbage and Refuse Disposal. 
(1) At least one Health Authority approved indoor container for waste shall be provided 
for each indoor dwelling unit to be rented. Containers shall be constructed of durable 
metal or other materials which do not leak, do not absorb liquids and do not support 
combustion. Such containers shall be thoroughly cleaned on the inside and outside each 
time they are emptied unless liners are used. 
(2) All outside refuse or garbage storage containers shall be constructed of durable 
metal or other approved types of materials, which do not leak and do not absorb liquids 
and shall be provided with tight-fitting lids or covers and shall be kept covered when 
stored. Each container shall be located within 100 feet of dwelling units or trailer spaces 
or in a location approved by the Health Authority and shall be cleaned at such frequency 
as to prevent a nuisance or odor. 







 18


(3) Adequate cleaning facilities shall be provided and each garbage or recycling storage 
room, enclosure, or container shall be thoroughly cleaned after the emptying or removal 
of refuse or garbage. Areas surrounding these rooms, enclosures, and containers shall 
be kept clean and orderly. Liquid waste resulting from the cleaning of containers shall be 
disposed of as sewage. 
(4) Except for garbage facilities associated with Camp Grounds and Bed & Breakfast 
Inns, for all newly constructed, remodeled, or renovated establishments, refuse and 
garbage storage containers must be stored on a properly constructed sealed concrete 
slab or machine laid sealed asphalt. However, the Health Authority may require storage 
containers to be on similar properly constructed storage facilities for Camp Grounds and 
Bed & Breakfast Inns should insanitary conditions warrant such facilities. 


(5) Refuse shall be collected in accordance with municipal practices where available. 
Where such services are not available the tourist accommodation shall dispose of the 
refuse in compliance with all Federal, State, local laws and or ordinances. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.13 Insect and Rodent Control. 
(1) Effective and appropriate measures shall be taken to eliminate the presence of 
rodents and flies, roaches, bed bugs, and other insects on the premises. The premises 
shall be kept in such condition as to prevent the attraction, harborage or feeding of 
insects or rodents. Restricted use pesticides, as specified in 40 CFR 152 Subpart I - 
Classification of Pesticides shall be applied only by a licensed professional. All pesticide 
applications must be in accordance with current state and federal laws and the product 
label. Applying pesticides within buildings using area fog dispersal methods or as 
warranted under DPH Rule-.20(4)(c) is restricted to licensed pest control 
professionals as part of an integrated pest management program. 
(2) A record must be maintained on file and available at request of Health Authority for 
no less than 18 months of any pesticide use on the premises, except for the occasional 
use of consumer insect sprays on small spots in accordance with the product label. The 
record may be made by the permit holder or provided by the applicator, and shall list the 
following information: 
(a) amount and concentration of product used; 
(b) name of product used; 
(c) date and location of application; 
(d) application method; 
(e) pest targeted; and 
(f) name of applicator. 
(3) Openings to the outside shall be effectively protected against the entrance of rodents 
and insects by tight-fitting doors, closed windows, screening, controlled air currents or 
other means. Screen doors shall be self-closing and screens for windows, doors, 
skylights, transoms and other openings to the outside shall be tight-fitting and free of 
breaks. Screening materials shall not be less than sixteen mesh to the inch. Screen 
doors for sliding patio doors will not be required to be self closing except in food service, 
preparation and utensil washing areas of permitted food service establishment kitchens 
and bed and breakfast inns. 
 [Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-14 Construction, Layout and Furnishings. 
(1) Floors, walls, ceilings. windows, doors and all other appurtenances shall be of sound 
construction, properly maintained in good repair and shall be kept clean. In all new 
constructed and extensively remodeled residential kitchens used in bed and breakfast 







 19


inns, coved base molding may be required. Walls and ceilings in residential kitchens 
shall be easily cleanable and light colored. 
(2) Cooking is only allowed within tourist rooms that have been constructed to include 
permanently installed cooking facilities as approved by the Health Authority and other 
applicable state and local authorities. This rule does not prohibit coffee makers and 
microwave ovens belonging to the tourist accommodation. 
(3) Ventilation shall be provided for all rooms. Where ventilation is provided by means of 
windows, they shall open directly to the outside air and the openable window area of 
each room shall be not less than 1/20 of the floor area served. Where ventilation is 
provided by other means, it shall comply with the requirements of the current 
International Mechanical Code with Georgia Amendments or future subsequent revisions 
adopted thereafter to provide comfortable living conditions, remove objectionable odor 
and fumes, and prevent excessive condensation. Ventilation systems shall comply with 
applicable State and local fire prevention requirements and building codes. 
(4) All rooms shall be well lighted. When natural light fails to provide sufficient 
illumination, evenly distributed artificial light shall be provided to maintain a lighting 
intensity of not less than ten foot candles at 30" above the floor. (5) All furniture, 
draperies, appliances, carpets, and other accessories, in the tourist accommodation, 
whether the property of the tourist accommodation owner or not, shall be 
considered the property of and furnished by the tourist accommodation for purposes of 
enforcement of this Chapter, and must be maintained in good repair, clean, and free of 
vermin. 
(6) Washable mattress pads or covers shall be used on all mattresses. Beds, 
mattresses, springs, slats, mattress pads, mattress and bed coverings, pillow and pillow 
covers shall be clean and free from vermin. Each bed shall be provided, as a minimum, 
with two sheets and one pillow and pillowcase. After each occupancy and upon the 
request of the occupant, sheets and pillowcases shall be changed with fresh laundered 
linens. During occupancy, linens shall be changed at a minimum frequency of not less 
than weekly. 
(7) Sleeping quarters must be separated by a wall from the food preparation, food 
storage, and food service areas of a bed and breakfast inn. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.15 Heating and Fire Safety. 
(1) All heating appliances shall be designed and installed to carry all flue gases to the 
outside of building through the flue outlet. 
(2) Unvented combustion type heaters shall not be installed and/or used on the 
premises, unless they are in compliance with current State of Georgia fire safety codes 
and installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations. 
(3) All automatic natural gas heating equipment shall be equipped with automatic safety 
pilot. All liquefied petroleum gas burning appliances shall be equipped with 100% safety 
cut-off pilot. 
(4) Gas water heaters shall not be installed in bathrooms or bedrooms, or in closets 
connected thereto. 
(5) All gas-fired equipment shall be inspected at least annually by a qualified licensed 
contractor or local fire authority, if available. Points to be inspected are proper 
construction and installation, malfunctions and adjustments of controls and burners, 
faulty heat exchangers and vent obstructions. Any defects found on inspection must be 
corrected by a qualified heating contractor prior to use of the equipment. Upon request, 
the operator shall provide evidence of inspection and/or correction of any deficiency. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 







 20


15-.16 Swimming Pools. 
(1) Regulations of the Department and/ county in which govern the design, construction, 
operation and maintenance of swimming pools or spas shall apply to pools and spas 
operated in conjunction with a tourist accommodation. 
(2) If a swimming pool or spa at a bed and breakfast inn cannot comply with applicable 
regulations, then it must be enclosed with a fence at least four feet in height with a 
locked gate and used only by family members. In such case, guests shall not be allowed 
to use swimming pool or spa.  
(3) If a portable spa unit is installed and operated on the premises of a detached cabin 
used for lodging as part of a tourist accommodation and if the owner complies with (4) 
and (5) of this Rule, then the portable spa will be exempt from (1) of this Rule. The 
owner must submit appropriate documentation for review and receive written approval 
from the Health Authority before operation. 
(4) Installation: 
(a) All portable units shall be for individual use by the occupants only and shall be 
permanently installed outside of the cabin and on the premises of the individual dwelling 
unit. 
(b) If the portable unit is installed in an outside enclosure, then adequate mechanical 
exhaust ventilation shall be provided to minimize heat and steam accumulation. 
(c ) The portable unit shall be constructed of a hard non-absorbent material such as 
fiberglass, acrylic or ceramic tile and provide a slip resistant walking surface. PVC or 
vinyl-liner materials shall not be used. 
(d) Portable units shall be installed in compliance with applicable electrical and plumbing 
codes. 
 (e) Portable units shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions 
and applicable wastewater disposal codes. 
(f) Portable units shall be equipped to avoid suction entrapment by providing suction 
outlets with covers that have been tested and approved by a nationally recognized 
testing laboratory and shall comply with ANSI/ASME A112.19.8-2007, Suction Fittings 
For Use in Swimming Pools, Wading Pools, Spas and Hot Tubs, or most recent edition. 
(5) Operation: 
(a) Portable units operated as a chamber shall be drained, cleaned, sanitized and refilled 
prior to the next use. 
(b) The unit shall be filled with potable water from an approved source immediately prior 
to use. The water fill line shall be protected with an approved backflow prevention 
device. 
(c) A thermometer shall be provided to ensure that the water temperature does not 
exceed 104° F. A sign shall be posted adjacent to the unit stating, “Max. Temp. 104° F.” 
and list manufacturer’s precautions on use. 
(d) The unit shall be completely drained immediately after each use. A drain shall be 
located at the lowest part of the unit and all plumbing components shall be self-draining. 
All waste water shall be disposed of in a manner approved by the Health Authority. 
Wastewater may be discharged into a sanitary sewer through an approved air gap or 
into an approved subsurface disposal system or by other means approved by the Health 
Authority. 
(e) The operator must provide the guest with the procedures and warnings on spa 
usage. The spa must remain empty until the tourist request spa services. 
(f) Hours of spa services must be defined by the operator. 
(g) Written procedures for cleaning and sanitizing shall be provided and maintained by 
the operator. The sanitizer solution shall be an EPA-registered disinfectant and shall be 







 21


recirculated through the jet and/or aeration system in accordance with the disinfectant 
manufacturer’s directions. 
 (h) Filtration systems and water treatment systems shall be operated according to 
manufacturer’s requirements. Units with these systems shall be located outdoors, unless 
adequate ventilation is provided in an outside enclosure.  
(i) If unit is not located within an outside enclosure, then a protective barrier with a self 
closing,self latching gate meeting the applicable local or state building code or a cover 
meeting the applicable ASTM standard shall be used at the facility. 
(j) Spas will also be cleaned and sanitized between occupants, and a log documenting 
cleaning must be maintained onsite, and made readily available at the request of the 
Health Authority. [Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.17 Laundry Facilities. 
(1) Where laundry facilities are provided, they shall be separate from other facilities, of 
sound construction, and shall be kept clean, and in good repair. Laundry rooms for guest 
use shall be vented to the exterior and well lighted. The tourist laundry equipment 
provided for tourists to use shall be separate from the tourist accommodation laundry 
facility. Laundry equipment shall be provided with hot and cold water under pressure. 
Dryers shall be vented to the outside. A storage area or room shall be required to store 
clean linens and laundry at least a minimum of 6-inches off the floor and be free of 
pests, vermin, dust and moisture. If a tourist accommodation does not have an approved 
laundry facility, the tourist accommodation owner may contract with an 
approved laundry service provider. In all newly constructed permitted facilities, and 
existing facilities remodeled or renovated after the adoption of these rules, except for 
bed and breakfast inn, a floor drain located to receive intentional or accidental drainage 
from equipment or plumbing shall be required in laundry facilities. 
(2) Housekeeper carts shall be so arranged that clean replacement supplies, clean 
linens, and cleaned and sanitized multi-use equipment and utensils shall be protected 
from soiled items being removed from each room. Soiled linens and refuse shall be 
placed in appropriate containers on housekeepers’ carts. Any spray bottle used in 
cleaning a tourist room or stored on the housekeeping cart shall be labeled with its 
contents. Cleaners and sanitizer shall be used 
according to the manufacturer’s use direction and label. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.18 Grounds. 
(1) The grounds of a tourist accommodation shall be graded to drain. Serviceable walks 
and driveways shall be provided. 
(2) Grounds, including spaces beneath buildings and trailers, shall be kept clean and 
free of litter. 
(3) All walkways, porches, and hallways shall be maintained in good repair. Only articles 
necessary to the operation and maintenance of the establishment shall be stored on the 
premises. 
(4) There shall be not less than fifteen feet clear space between all trailers and nearby 
buildings,nor less than ten feet between trailers and internal driveways within the trailer 
park. 
(5) Each trailer space shall be distinctly marked. Trailer spaces shall abut on a well-
defined allweather driveway of not less than twenty feet of unobstructed width and such 
driveway shall have clear access to a public thoroughfare. 
(6) Grounded and weather-proof electrical outlets supplying at least one-hundred- fifteen 
volts shall be provided at each trailer space. Power lines shall be located underground or 







 22


suspended at least eighteen feet above ground. All electrical work and materials shall 
comply with the applicable International Electrical Code with Georgia Amendments and 
local laws, ordinances, or regulations. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.19 Food Service Options. 
(1) Food Service Establishment. All food service facilities except for bed and breakfast 
inns shall comply with provisions of O.C.G.A. Chapter 26-2. Art. 13 and the rules, 
regulations and standards adopted thereunder. Bed and breakfast inns, and tourist 
accommodations without a foodservice permit, shall instead comply with this Rule. 
(2) Continental Breakfast. A tourist accommodation without a food service permit may 
serve a continental breakfast as defined in DPH Rule 511-6-2-.03(d); foods not requiring 
preparation and cooking; potentially hazardous foods commercially prepared and 
packaged in single-servings; non potentially hazardous foods commercially prepared 
and packaged and served from the original container or an approved dispenser such as 
bagels or bread that may require only reheating or toasting by tourists, if the conditions 
of subsections 2(a) through (j) are met. All food items on display must be protected from 
contamination. Food shall be safe for human consumption, and obtained from sources 
that comply with applicable laws. (a) A minimum two-compartment sink, large enough to 
fully immerse the largest utensil used and a refrigerator which can maintain food 


temperatures at or below 41°F (5°C) shall be required. The need for a refrigerator may 
be waived if no potentially hazardous foods are served. 
(b) Condiments containing potentially hazardous ingredients and milk must be stored in 
a refrigerator, except for individual, single-service coffee creamers that are non-dairy, 
and individual, single-service, ultra high pasteurized coffee creamers that are labeled by 
the manufacturer as not requiring refrigeration. 
(c) A thermometer, accurate to (+2ºF (±1ºC) shall be provided in the refrigerator and 
located to be easily readable. 
(d) Only single service disposable plates, cups and utensils shall be used in a 
continental breakfast operation. However, a facility may use multi-use utensils and/or a 
mechanical bulk juice dispenser, if the operator provides warewashing equipment to 
wash, rinse and sanitize all multiuse utensils. At minimum, the operator shall install a 
three compartment sink large enough to fully immerse the largest utensil used and 
provide adequate space to air-dry and store the utensils. 
(e) Ice used for keeping displayed foods cold must be constantly drained and cannot be 
used in beverages. If ice is needed for beverages, it must be dispensed from self service 
machines or presented in cups pre-filled by the management. Pre-filling shall be done 
only with the use of an approved ice scoop. 
(f) If ready-to-eat, whole raw, uncut, fruits are included within continental breakfast 
menus, then adequate protective display equipment such as sneeze guard shielding or 
other protective display equipment must be provided to protect these food items from 
contamination from the tourist. In addition, self-service utensils, such as tongs and/or 
single-service articles, such as sanitary deli paper, must be provided to protect ready-to-
eat, whole raw, uncut, fruits from potential contamination from consumer self-service. 
(g) In all newly constructed, remodeled, or renovated establishments serving continental 
breakfasts, an employee handsink equipped with hot and cold water under pressure and 
maintained with a supply of dispensed soap and paper towels must be provided for hand 
washing. The handsink shall be located inside the physical facility where the continental 
breakfast food handling and warewashing operations are conducted. The water at this 
hand washing sink must be tempered by a mixing faucet. 
(h) In all newly constructed, remodeled or renovated establishments serving continental 







 23


breakfasts, the physical facilities for food storage, food transfer and equipment 
warewashing shall comply with the following criteria: 
1. Physical facilities must be physically and functionally separate from those associated 
with laundry, janitorial, living and or sleeping activities and associated storage facilities; 
2. Floors, floor coverings, walls, wall coverings, and ceilings, with the exception of a 
ceiling in a non perishable food storage and seating area, shall be designed, 
constructed, and installed so they are smooth and easily cleanable; 
3. Studs, joists, and rafters may not be exposed within physical facilities, except as listed 
in (h) 2.and 
4. Physical facilities shall be so designed and constructed so as to exclude the presence 
of vermin. 
5. All equipment, food, and supplies must be kept at least six inches off of the floor. 
(i) Any preparation beyond the limitations of a continental breakfast requires a food 
service permit. 
(3) Bed and Breakfast Inn. A bed and breakfast inn may serve a full meal prepared as 
referenced in DPH Rule 511-6-2-.03 (b) within this Chapter in a residential kitchen 
located within the inn, if the following requirements are met. 
(a) Limited Food Service: Food may only be prepared for guests staying in rooms 
located in the bed and breakfast inn. No catering off the premises will be allowed. 
(b) Food Supplies: 
1. Food shall be in sound condition, safe for human consumption, and obtained from 
sources that comply with the applicable laws relating to food safety. The use of food in 
hermetically sealed containers that was not prepared in a food processing establishment 
is prohibited. However, jams, jellies, and preserves made at the bed and breakfast inn 
from naturally high-acid fruits may be served to guests. 
2. Fluid milk and fluid milk products used shall be pasteurized and shall comply with 
applicable law. Dry milk and milk products used shall be made from pasteurized milk and 
milk products and shall be used only in cooking. Raw milk shall not be provided or used. 
3. Only clean shell eggs meeting U.S. Department of Agriculture grade standards or 
pasteurized liquid, frozen or dry eggs or pasteurized dry egg products shall be used. 
4. Only ice which has been manufactured with potable water and handled in a sanitary 
manner shall be used. 
(c) Food Protection: 
1. All food shall be prepared, stored, displayed, dispensed, placed, transported, sold, 
and served so as to be protected from dirt, vermin, unnecessary handling, droplet 
contamination, overhead leakage, or other contamination. 
2. The temperature of potentially hazardous foods shall be 410F (50C) or below or 135ºF 
(60°C) or above at all times, except during necessary times of preparation. 
(i) Potentially hazardous foods shall be stored in a refrigerator or freezer that can 
maintain required product temperatures. 
(ii) A thermometer accurate to ±2°F shall be provided for each refrigeration unit and shall 
be located to indicate the air temperature in the warmest part of the unit and shall be 
affixed to be readily visible. 
(iii) Containers of potentially hazardous food displayed for service may be placed in an 
ice bed or 
held by a similar means which maintains the food at or below 41°F. An accurate easily 
readable metal probe thermometer suitable for measuring the temperature of food shall 
be readily available on the premises. 
3. Hermetically sealed packages shall be handled so as to maintain product and 
container integrity. 







 24


4. Containers of food shall be stored a minimum of six inches above the floor in a 
manner that protects the food from splash and other contamination and that permits 
easy cleaning of the storage area. 
5. Pets may be present on the premises, but shall be kept out of food preparation and 
dining areas at all times. This exclusion shall not apply to fish in aquariums. Service 
animals accompanying handicapped persons and trainers of such animals shall be 
permitted in dining areas. 
6. Laundry facilities may be present in the residential kitchen, but shall not be used 
during food preparation and service. Laundry facilities will consist of at least a residential 
clothes washer and dryer and adequate storage facilities for clean laundry and 
separation of soiled laundry and supplies. 
7. Tourists shall not be allowed to use cooking facilities in the residential kitchen. 
8. No insecticide, rodenticide, or other poisonous substance shall be stored in any food 
preparation area, except in a separate enclosure provided for that purpose. All 
poisonous substances, detergents, bleaches, cleaning compounds, or any other 
injurious or poisonous material shall be specifically and plainly labeled as to contents 
and hazardous use and shall be stored only in their original, labeled container. Such 
products shall not be used or stored in a manner which may cause contamination or 
adulteration of food, food contact surfaces, or utensils. 
(d) Food Preparation: 
1. Food shall be prepared with a minimum of manual contact. Food shall be prepared on 
foodcontact surfaces and with utensils that are clean and have been sanitized. Food 
handlers shall not handle or touch ready-to-eat foods with their bare hands. 
2. Raw fruits and raw vegetables that will be cooked, cut, or combined with other 
ingredients, or that will be otherwise processed into food products by the food 
establishment, shall be cleaned with potable water in sinks or containers that have been 
washed and sanitized before being used. 
3. Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) processed by 
cooking shall be cooked to heat all parts of the food to a minimum time/temperature as 
follows: (i) shell eggs (for immediate service), beef steak, and unground meat and fish 
shall be cooked to an internal temperature of 1450F (630C) or above for 15 seconds; (ii) 
ground meat and pork, fish, game animals raised for food, and eggs for hot holding shall 
be cooked to an internal temperature of at least 1550F (680C) for 15 seconds; (iii) roast 
beef shall be cooked to an internal temperature of at least 1300F (540C) for 112 minutes; 
(iv) poultry or any stuffed meat, poultry, or fish shall be cooked to an internal 
temperature of 1650F (740C) for 15 seconds. See the Department’s rules 
and regulations governing food service establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or future 
subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter for reference to time/temperature cooking 
requirements. 
4. Potentially hazardous foods (time/temperature control for safety foods) shall be 
cooked and immediately served to tourists. The following potentially hazardous food 
handling practices are prohibited:  
(i) Cooling and reheating prior to service. 
(ii) Hot holding for more than two hours. 
(iii) Undercooked or raw potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety 
food) of animal origin served to tourists. 
(iv) Service of leftovers. 
5. All frozen food shall be kept frozen until preparation. No food which has been thawed 
shall be refrozen unless it has been cooked or processed. Potentially hazardous foods 
shall be thawed: 


(i) In refrigerated units at a temperature not to exceed 41°F (5°C); or 







 25


(ii) Under potable running water at a temperature of 70°F (21°C) or below, with sufficient 
water velocity to agitate and float off loose food particles into the overflow and for a 
period of time not to exceed that reasonably required to thaw the food; or 
(iii) In a microwave oven only when the food will be immediately transferred to 
conventional cooking units as part of a continuous cooking process or when the entire, 
uninterrupted cooking process takes place in the microwave oven; or 
(iv) As part of the conventional cooking process. 
(e) Food Display and Service: 
1. Employees serving food shall use tongs, other utensils, or wear plastic gloves. 
2. When food is displayed for customer self service, it is not necessary to have 
protective sneeze shields as long as the following guidelines are met. 


(i) Potentially hazardous foods are kept at or below 41F (5 C) or at or above 135F 


(57C). 


(ii) Food is displayed no more than two hours. 
(iii) No open food or potentially hazardous foods is reserved or reused. 
(iv) Tongs or other suitable utensils are provided so that there is no hand contact with 
the food. 
(f) Health and Practices: 
1. No person, while infected with a disease in a communicable form that can be 
transmitted by foods, or who is a carrier of organisms that cause such a disease, as 
stated within the Department’s rules and regulations governing food service 
establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or future subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter, or 
while affected with a boil, infected wound, or  acute respiratory infection, shall work in 
any capacity in which there is a likelihood of such person contaminating food or food 
contact surfaces with pathogenic organisms or transmitting disease to other persons. 
2. Persons engaged in food preparation, service, and warewashing operations shall 
wear clean clothing and properly wash their hands and the exposed portions of their 
arms with soap or detergent and warm water before starting work, after smoking, eating, 
or using the toilet, and as often as is necessary during work to keep them clean. 
Employees shall keep their fingernails trimmed and clean. All bed and breakfast inns 
permitted or extensively remodeled after the effective date of this rule shall provide 
facilities exclusively for handwashing within or adjacent to each kitchen. In bed and 
breakfast inns existing prior to the effective date of these "Rules", the utensil 
warewashing sink may be used for handwashing. Soap and paper towels in dispensers 
must be provided. 
3. Persons engaged in food preparation shall wear a hair net, cap, or other suitable 
covering which restrains all loose hairs and shall maintain a high degree of personal 
cleanliness and conform to good hygienic practices during all working periods. 
4. Employees shall consume food or use tobacco only in designated areas. Such 
designated areas shall not be located in food preparation areas or in areas where the 
eating or tobacco use of an employee may result in contamination of food, equipment, or 
utensils. 
(g) Equipment and Utensils: 
1. Equipment and utensils shall be constructed and repaired with safe materials, 
including finishing materials; shall be corrosion resistant and nonabsorbent; and shall be 
smooth, easily cleanable and durable under conditions of normal use. Single service 
articles shall be made from clean, sanitary, and safe materials. Equipment, utensils and 
single service articles shall not impart odors, color and taste nor contribute to the 
contamination of food. 







 26


2. Safe plastic or safe rubber or safe rubber-like materials that are resistant under 
normal conditions of use to scratching, scoring, decomposition, grazing, chipping, and 
distortion, that are of sufficient weight and thickness to permit cleaning and sanitizing by 
normal warewashing methods are permitted for repeated use. 
3. Single service articles shall not be re-used. 
4. All equipment and utensils shall be maintained in good repair. 
(h) Cleaning and Sanitization of Equipment and Utensils: 
1. Food utensils and equipment shall be stored in a manner to avoid contamination. 
2. Food contact surfaces and sinks shall be smooth and easily cleanable. 
3. Food contact equipment, surfaces, tableware, and utensils shall be cleaned and 
sanitized prior to food preparation for the public and after each use. 
4. Sinks, basins, or other receptacles used for cleaning of equipment and utensils shall 
be cleaned before use. 
5. Equipment and utensils shall be pre-flushed or pre-scraped and, when necessary, 
presoaked to remove food particles and soil. 
6. Manual cleaning and sanitizing of cooking equipment, utensils, and tableware shall be 
conducted as follows:  
(i) A 3-compartmented, warewashing sink shall be provided and used. The Health 
Authority may allow the use of compartments other than sinks. 
 (ii) All five steps of the warewashing process shall be completed: pre-rinsing or 
scraping; application of cleaners for soil removal; rinsing to remove cleaning chemicals; 
sanitizing and air drying. 
(iii) Sanitizing may be accomplished by immersion or sanitizing in place with the use of a 
50 ppm chlorine solution or 12.5 ppm iodine solution or other chemical sanitizer which 
meets the requirements of 40 Code of Federal Regulation 180.940 Tolerance 
exemptions for active and inert ingredients for use in antimicrobial formulations (food-
contact surface sanitizing solutions). 
(iv) Wash, rinse and sanitizing solutions shall be maintained in a clean condition. 
(v) Water for washing and rinsing shall be maintained at 1100F (430C) or above. Water 
for sanitizing shall be maintained at 750F (240C) or above. If using iodine for chemical 
sanitization, water shall be at a pH not higher than 5.0. 
(vi) A test kit or device that measures the parts per million concentration of the sanitizing 
solution shall be used each time the sanitizing solution is changed. 
7. Mechanical cleaning and sanitizing shall be conducted as follows: 
(i) A commercial warewasher must be certified by NSF standards or equivalent, in good 
repair and operating to manufacturer's specifications. 
(ii) If using a non-commercial warewasher, it must remove all physical soil from all 
surfaces of dishes and must be equipped with a high temperature rinse cycle such as a 
sani-cycle and all cycles on the machine must be used (prewash, wash, sanitizing rinse) 
and be certified by NSF standards or, 
(iii) If no high temperature rinse cycle is provided, the hot water supplied to the machine 
must be at a minimum of 1550F (680C). The operator shall use daily, a maximum 
registering thermometer or a heat thermal label to determine that the sanitizing rinse 
water temperature is a minimum of 1550F (680C). 
(iv) The dishwasher warewasher must be installed and operated according to 
manufacturer's instructions for the highest level of sanitization possible when sanitizing 
residential kitchen facilities' utensils and tableware. A copy of the instructions must be 
available on the premises at all times. 
8. There shall be sufficient area or facilities such as portable dish tubs and drain boards 
for the proper handling of soiled utensils prior to washing and of cleaned utensils after 
sanitization. Use shall not to interfere with safe food handling, handwashing, and the 







 27


proper use of dishwashing facilities. Equipment, utensils, and tableware shall be air dried 
only. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.20 Compliance Procedures. 
(1) Summary Suspension of Permits. The Health Authority shall have the power and 
authority to summarily suspend a permit if the owner or operator refuses to allow the 
Health Authority to enter upon and inspect the premises of the tourist accommodation at 
any reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, or if any part of the tourist 
accommodation presents an imminent health hazard to members of the public, including 
but not limited to (i) an unapproved or improperly functioning wastewater disposal 
system, (ii) an infestation of insects, rodents, or other vermin, or (iii) an unapproved 
water supply or inadequate water system.  
(a) A summary suspension shall be made in writing and shall be effective immediately 
upon receipt by the owner or operator, and operation of the tourist accommodation must 
cease immediately. If neither the owner nor operator can be found, notification is 
achieved by tacking the notice to the front door of the tourist accommodation and mailing 
a copy to the owner or operator. The notice of suspension shall state the violations that 
justify summary suspension, and the corrective action that must be taken in order for the 
summary suspension to be lifted. 
(b) The owner or operator may seek review of the summary suspension by written 
request to the District Health Director. The matter shall be heard by the District Health 
Director, or a supervisory level employee designated by the District Health Director who 
was not personally involved in the inspection, acting as a review official. The Health 
Authority shall make every effort to arrange a hearing within 72 hours of the request. 
(c) The hearing shall be conducted informally and without application of the rules of 
evidence. Both the Environmental Health personnel and the owner or operator shall be 
given an opportunity to present any arguments or evidence in support of their positions. 
The review official may uphold the summary suspension, or may modify or lift the 
suspension on such conditions as may be appropriate. 
(d) The owner may request a hearing under this subsection without prejudice to its right 
to pursue an appeal to the Department pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 31-5-3. 
(2) Partial closure or restricted access. The Health Authority shall be authorized to 
close or restrict access to any area of the premises found in violation of a critical item 
under Areas of Critical Public Health Risk on the Tourist Accommodation Inspection 
Record or that may be determined by the Health Authority to be an imminent health 
hazard to the public. Such area shall be closed until the violations have been corrected 
or imminent health hazards abated as determined by the Health Authority. 
(a) Closure and restriction actions must be recorded on an inspection record, identifying 
the problem and the corrective actions to be taken by the permit holder or person in 
charge; and 
(b) The date and time the violation was noted, and the expected date of correction to be 
completed must be recorded on the inspection record as well. 
(c) Considering the nature and the complexity of the corrective action or plan for 
correction required, the Health Authority may specify that the permit holder obtain the 
services of an appropriate licensed professional to correct a violation or imminent health 
hazard. Then, the operator must submit a plan of correction developed by the 
professional for review by the Health Authority. Upon completion of the corrective action, 
a letter of verification signed by the appropriate professional must be submitted before 
scheduling a re-inspection as specified in subsection(2)(d) of this Rule. Failure to comply 







 28


with these actions may led to an enforcement action outlined in subsection (1)(a) of this 
Rule. 
(d) At its discretion, the Health Authority shall have the authority to direct the permit 
holder or person in charge to relocate tourists to another location within the tourist 
accommodation. If such action is taken, the Health Authority will provide a detailed 
explanation of such action on the inspection report form, and a re-inspection of the 
vacated area by the Health Authority will be required before tourists are permitted to 
return to locations from which they had been previously removed. 
(3) Suspension or Revocation of Permits. The Health Authority shall have the power 
and authority to suspend or revoke a permit if the owner or operator of a tourist 
accommodation is unwilling or unable to comply with these regulations, the regulations 
of the local Health Authority, or the provisions of O.C.G.A. Title 31-28-1 et seq. 
(a) An owner or operator shall be presumed unwilling or unable to comply if he or she 
refuses to allow the Health Authority to enter upon and inspect the premises of the 
tourist accommodation at any reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, or if any 
critical violation is found to be uncorrected upon the third consecutive inspection, or 
upon continuous violation of other rules in the chapter. 
(b) The revocation of a permit may be appealed to the Department of Public Health in 
accordance with O.C.G.A. Section 31-5-3 by sending written notice, by certified mail or 
statutory overnight delivery, addressed to the Department of Public Health, Office of 
General Counsel, with a copy to the Health Authority official that revoked the permit. 
Within ten days of receiving the notice, the Health Authority shall provide the Department 
with a copy of its entire file on the inspections and actions that led to the revocation of 
the permit. The Department shall schedule a hearing within 20 days of receiving the 
notice, and shall decide the matter upon the arguments of the parties and 
the administrative record. 
(4) Voluntary Closure. In lieu of suspension or revocation of a permit, the Health 
Authority may in its discretion allow a tourist accommodation to voluntarily close all or 
part of the premises until such time as violations are corrected, and upon such additional 
restrictions as it may deem appropriate. 
(5) Resumption of Operations. If operations of a tourist accommodation are 
discontinued due to 
the order or action of the Health Authority, then the permit holder shall obtain approval 
from the Health Authority before resuming operations. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6, 31-5-3, and 31-28-5] 
 
15-.21 Environmental Health Personnel. 
(1) All Environmental Health personnel who are assigned responsibilities in tourist 
accommodation plan review, permitting, inspecting, or other means of enforcing this 
Chapter, will complete the minimum state sponsored one week training course and 
exam requirements and obtain at least two hours of in-service training annually. 
(2) All in-service training must be approved by the local Environmental Health supervisor 
or lead personnel. Employee attendance records of approved training shall be 
maintained in the county of employment and shall be subject to electronic submission 
and Department monitoring. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
 
 
 







 29


 
 
15-.22 Fees. The Department may adopt a fee schedule to support required training, 
monitoring, and evaluation activities. 
[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
 
15-23 Effective Date. These regulations shall become effective on April 1, 2014. 


[Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 


Section 2.  That the preamble of this shall be considered to be and is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 
Section 3 (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of 


Commissioners that all Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and 
phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by 
the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 
constitutional. 


 
 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of 


Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, each and 
every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention 
of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, 
not Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is 
mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause 
or phrase of this Article. 


  
 (c ) In the event that any phrases, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section 


of this article shall. For any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by valid judgment or decree 
of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board 
of Commissioners  that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or 
unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render 
invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining 
phrases, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and sections of this Article shall 
remain valid, constitutional, enforceable and full force and effect. 


 
Section 4  All Ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in 


conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for 
herein.  


 
Section 5 The effective date of this Ordinance shall be April 1, 2014. 


 


 


 


 


 







 30


 


 


So ordained this 27
th


 day of March, 2014 by the 


 


     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


     FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


     __________________________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


SEAL 


 


ATTEST: 


 


___________________________ 


FLOYD JONES, COUNTY CLERK 


 


 


Approved as to form  


 


____________________________ 


INTERIM COUNTY ATTORNEY 


 


 


 


 







 


 We Protect Lives.


 
 


 
Rules and Regulations 
Tourist Accommodations 
Chapter 511-6-2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


Effective Date: January 1, 2014 
 
 
 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 2


RULES  
OF  


DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH  
CHAPTER 511-6-2 


TOURIST ACCOMMODATIONS 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


511-6-2-.01  Legal Authority  511-6-2-.12  Garbage and Refuse Disposal  


511-6-2-.02  Title and Purpose  511-6-2-.13 Insect and Rodent Control   


511-62-.03   Definitions   511-6-2-.14  Construction, Layout and Furnishings  


511-62-.04   Tourist Accommodation Permits    511-6-2-.15  Heating and Fire Safety   


511-6-2-.05    Inspections   511-6-2-.16 Swimming Pools  


511-6-2-.06 Employee Health and Safety 511-6-2-.17 Laundry Facilities   


511-6-2-.07  Water Supply and Sanitizing  511-6-2-.18 Grounds 


511-6-2-.08  Toilet Facilities    511-6-2-.19 Food Service Options  


511-6-2-.09    Sewers   511-6-2-..20 Compliance Procedures 


511-6-2-.10  Sewage Disposal  511-6-2-.21 Environmental Health Personnel 


511-6-2-.11  Plumbing   511-6-2-.22 Fees 


      511-6-2-.23 Effective Date 


 


 


511-6-2-.01  Legal Authority. These rules are adopted pursuant to the Official Code of Georgia 


Annotated §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-1 et seq.    


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 
511-6-2-.02  Title and Purpose.  These rules shall be known as the Rules and Regulations for 


Tourist Accommodations.  The purpose of these rules is to emphasize the minimum standards 


necessary for tourist accommodations to provide essential services, facilities, and sanitary 


conditions in order to protect the public health and safety. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 3


511-6-2-.03  Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and 


enforcement of these rules: 


(a) “Approved” means acceptable to the Health Authority based on a determination of conformity 


with principles, practices, and generally recognized standards that protect public health. 


(b) "Bed and Breakfast Inn" means an establishment of twenty guestrooms or less, which 


serves food only to its registered tourists , and serves only a breakfast or similar early morning 


meal and an appropriate light snack in which the price of the food is included in the price of the 


overnight accommodation.  For purposes of the rules, "Bed and Breakfast Inn" refers to an 


establishment in which the predominant relationship between the occupants thereof and the 


owner or operator of the establishment is that of innkeeper and tourist." 


(c) "Consumer” means in terms of relationship with a tourist accommodation, a transient person 


who becomes a guest of a tourist accommodation and is a member of the public, takes 


possession of food, receives lodging and services for a fee, is not functioning in the capacity of an 


operator of a tourist accommodation establishment and does not offer the food for resale.   


(d) "Continental breakfast" is defined as and may include (1) any non-potentially hazardous 


food (non-time/temperature control for safety food) which has been prepared commercially by a 


food processing plant that meets requirements of law and is served to the consumer out of the 


original container in which it was purchased or if approved by the Health Authority, it may be 


served out of a commercial, self-service dispenser if such dispensers are properly designed to 


protect contained food from the consumer; (2) non-potentially hazardous beverages such as 


coffee and hot tea served in the container in which it was prepared; (3) potentially hazardous 


foods (time/temperature control for safety foods) such as milk, cream, butter and cheese prepared 


by a food processing plant that meets requirements of law only if served in single serving 


commercially packaged original containers; (4)  juices and condiments including jams, jellies, 


sugar, salt and pepper  served  in single serving commercially packaged original containers or 


juices may be served from a bulk mechanical dispenser, if appropriate warewashing is available; 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 4


(5) non-ready-to-eat whole, uncut, raw fruits, such as bananas, grape fruit, or oranges that require 


peeling of rind by the consumer before consumption; and (6) ready-to-eat, whole, raw, uncut fruits 


such as apples and/or grapes where the peel is consumed along with the meat of the fruit. Any 


additional items, other than those listed, will require a food service permit in accordance with the 


Department’s rules and regulations governing food service establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or 


any future subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter. 


(e) “County Board of Health" means the County Board of Health established pursuant to 


O.C.G.A. Section 31-3-1. 


(f) "Critical item" means a provision of this Chapter as delineated on the inspection report that, if 


violated, is more likely than other violations to contribute to food contamination, insanitary 


conditions, illness or environmental health hazard and may create an imminent health hazard.   


(g) "Department" or “DPH” means the Department of Public Health (DPH). 


(h) "Dependent trailer" means a trailer or recreational vehicle (RV) which is dependent upon a 


service building housing shower/ toilet facilities.  


(i) “Detached cabin” means, for the purpose of installing and operating a portable spa on the 


premises, a separate dwelling having no wall in common with another dwelling or building. The 


cabin as part of a tourist accommodation shall be rented as an entire unit, not by individual rooms. 


(j) "Employee" means any person engaged in the operation of a tourist accommodation whether 


compensated or not. 


(k) "Food" means a raw, cooked, or processed edible substance, ice, beverage, or ingredient 


used or intended in whole or in part for human consumption, or chewing gum. 


(l) "Food-contact surface" means a surface of equipment or a utensil with which food normally 


comes into contact or a surface of equipment or a utensil from which food may drain, drip, or 


splash into a food or onto a surface normally in contact with food. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 5


(m) "Food processing plant” means a commercial operation that manufactures, packages, 


labels, or stores food, and provides food for sale or distribution to other business entities such as 


food processing plants, retail food sales, or food service establishments.   


(n) "Food service” means a facility that shall comply with provisions of O.C.G.A. Chapter 26-2 


Art. 13 and the rules, regulations and standards adopted thereunder.  


(o) "Health Authority" means the County Board of Health if functioning in the administration and 


enforcement of O.C.G.A. Chapter 31-28 and the rules, regulations and standards adopted 


thereunder by the Department and subject to supervision and direction by the Department; and if 


not so functioning, the Department. 


(p) “Housekeeper’s cart” means a cart which is used to transport cleaning materials, room 


supplies, clean and soiled linens and refuse. 


(q) “Hydromassage bathtub” means a permanently installed bathtub fixture designed to be filled 


with each use and equipped with a recirculation piping system, a pump and associated controls.  


It is designed so it can accept, circulate and discharge water upon each use. It does not contain a 


disinfection or filtration system. 


(r) "Imminent health hazard"   means a product, practice, circumstance, event or condition that 


requires immediate correction or cessation of operation in order to prevent a significant threat of 


danger or death, injury or illness. 


(s) "Independent trailer" means a trailer or recreational vehicle (RV) which has a holding tank for 


waste and/or can be connected directly to a sewer connection. 


(t) "Law" means applicable local, state, and federal statutes, regulations, and ordinances.   
 
(u) “Lodging” means a temporary sleeping accommodation, with or without independent 


kitchenettes, offered to tourists, travelers or guests travelling from one place to another, stopping 


overnight or otherwise in need of a temporary place to stay.  







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 6


(v) “Non-ready-to-eat fruit” means whole uncut, raw fruit, such as oranges, grapefruit, and 


bananas in which the peel must be removed by the consumer before the meat of the fruit is 


consumed. 


(w) “Non-permanent structure” means any structures such as buildings, tents, park trailers or 


cabins that can be removed from the premise of a tourist accommodation and they are not 


restrained from removal by foundation or utilities, without internal plumbing, dependent upon 


central shower/toilet buildings for tourist personal hygiene and sanitation purposes, and are 


maintained, offered, or used for dwelling or sleeping quarters. 


(x) "Operator" means the person who has the duty and responsibility of overall management of 


the tourist accommodation which includes maintaining a sanitary facility, providing guest services 


and training employees, or his/her representative, or person in charge. 


(y) “Packaged” means bottled, canned, cartoned, securely bagged or securely wrapped, as 


packaged in a food processing plant.  It does not include a wrapper, carry-out box or other 


nondurable container used to containerize food with the purpose of facilitating food protection 


during service and receipt of the food by the consumer. 


(z) “Park trailer “ means a recreation vehicle primarily designed as temporary living quarters for 


recreation, camping or seasonal use, built on a single chassis, mounted on wheels, with a gross 


trailer area not exceeding 400 square feet in the set-up mode, and certified by the manufacturer 


as complying with ANSI A119.5. 


(aa) “Permit” means the DPH document issued by the Health Authority that authorizes a person 


to operate a Tourist Accommodation and signifies satisfactory compliance with this Chapter. 


(bb) "Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, or association. 


(cc) “Person in charge” means the individual present in a tourist accommodation establishment 


who is the owner, supervisor, manager or owner’s designated representative of the tourist 


accommodation establishment present at the time of the inspection.  The person shall be 


knowledgeable of the responsibilities in the chapter and have access to facilities on the premises. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 7


(dd) “Portable spa unit” means a factory fabricated unit consisting of a water holding vessel with 


all water-circulating, filtration, heating and control equipment integral to the unit. Equipment can 


include pumps, air blowers, heaters, lights, controls and disinfection and filtration systems. These 


portable spas are intended for residential use. 


 (ee) “Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food)” means a food 


that requires time/temperature control for safety to limit pathogenic microorganism growth or toxin 


formation. Refer to Rule.01 within the Department’s rules and regulations governing food service 


establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or future subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter. 


(ff) "Premises" means and includes all physical buildings, appurtenances, parking lots, drive 


ways and all property  used by the tourist accommodation. 


(gg) “Primitive campsite” means a site in an undeveloped section of private or public land with 


no developed facilities or amenities such as water, electricity or toilets/shower facilities, where 


campers are expected to leave little or no evidence of human visitation. 


(hh) "Preparation of food" means to put together or make by combining ingredients and 


processing food for consumption by the consumer. 


(ii) “Ready-to-eat food” means food that is in a form that is edible without additional preparation 


to achieve food safety.  It includes the following: 


1. All potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) that is cooked to the 


temperature and time required for the specific food; 


2. Raw fruits and vegetables that are washed; 


3. Fruits and vegetables that are cooked for hot holding;  


4. Plant food for which further washing, cooking, or other processing is not required for food 


safety, and from which rinds, peels, husks, or shells, if naturally present have been removed;  


5. Substances derived from plants such as spices, seasonings, and sugar; 


6. A bakery item such as bread, cakes, pies, fillings, or icing for which further cooking is not 


required for food safety;       







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 8


7. The following products that are produced in accordance with USDA guidelines and that have 


received a lethality treatment for pathogens: dry, fermented sausages, such as dry salami or 


pepperoni; salt-cured meat and poultry products, such as prosciutto ham, country cured ham, and  


Parma ham; and dried meat and poultry products, such as jerky or beef sticks; and 


8. Foods manufactured as specified in 21 CFR Part 113, Thermally Processed Low-Acid Foods 


Packaged in Hermetically Sealed Containers. 


(jj) “Ready–to-eat fruit” means whole raw, uncut, fruits, such as apples and/or grapes, that have 


been washed prior to service and the meat and the peel is normally consumed by guest. 


(kk) “Recreational vehicle (RV)” means a vehicle designated for temporary living quarters for 


camping, travelling, or recreational use.  It may have its own motor, or be mounted on or pulled by 


another vehicle. 


(ll) “Recreational vehicle park or campground” means an accommodation for recreational 


vehicles or other camping outfits where an individual site is rented, and the intent of the park or 


campground is not to establish permanent residences. 


(mm) "Residential kitchen" means a kitchen within a bed and breakfast inn used for the owners’ 


private use as well as preparation of a breakfast meal for tourists. 


(nn) "Restricted use pesticide" means a pesticide product that contains the active ingredients 


specified in 40 CFR 152.175 (Pesticides classified for restricted use), and that is limited to use by 


or under the direct supervision of a certified applicator. 


(oo) "Sanitization" means the application of cumulative heat or chemicals on cleaned food 


contact surfaces that, when evaluated for efficacy, is sufficient to yield a reduction of 5 logs, which 


is equal to a 99.999% reduction, of representative disease microorganisms of public health 


importance. 


(pp) "Sealed” means free of cracks or other openings that allow the entry or passage of moisture.  


(qq) "Sewage" means liquid waste containing animal or vegetable matter in suspension or 


solution and may include liquids containing chemicals in solution. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 9


(rr) “Single-service articles” means tableware, carry-out utensils, cups, containers, lids or 


closures, plates, napkins, doilies, bags, containers, toothpicks, knives, forks, spoons, stirrers, 


paddles, straws, wrapping materials, and similar utensils that are intended to be discarded after 


one use. 


(ss) “Single-serving” is food intended to be eaten by one person in one sitting and commercially 


packaged in a container intended to be discarded after one use. 


(tt) "Smooth" means a surface that has no roughness or projections that render it difficult to clean 


or maintain in a sanitary condition.   


 (uu) "Tourist Accommodation" means any facility consisting of two or more rooms or dwelling 


units providing lodging and other accommodations to the general public, such as tourist courts, 


tourist cottages, tourist homes, trailer parks, trailer courts, motels, motor hotels, hotels, and any 


similar place by whatever name called and any food, beverage, laundry, recreational or other 


facilities or establishments operated in conjunction therewith.  This definition includes any facility 


consisting of two or more rooms or dwelling units either joined together or separate on a common 


piece of property, furnished for pay and further includes campgrounds, recreational vehicle parks 


and bed and breakfast inns.  A tourist accommodation is not a facility intended for permanent 


residence, or a facility available only to members of a club or through private lease or invitation.  


(vv) "Tourist”, "Traveler," or “Guest” is defined as anyone who visits a Tourist Accommodation 


for the purpose of lodging, meals, or entertainment  . 


(ww) "Trailer" means any trailer coach, recreational vehicle (RV), park trailer or other similar unit 


designed for temporary dwelling or sleeping purposes. 


(xx) "Trailer space” means a plot of ground within a trailer and/or recreational vehicle park 


designated for the accommodation of one trailer or recreational vehicle (RV). 


(yy) "Utensil" means a food-contact implement or container used in the storage, preparation, 


transportation, dispensing, sale, or service of food, such as kitchenware or tableware that is 


multiuse, single-service, or single-use; gloves used in contact with food; temperature sensing 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 10


probes of food temperature measuring devices; and probe-type price or identification tags used in 


contact with food.   


(zz) "Warewashing" means the cleaning and sanitizing of utensils and food-contact surfaces of 


or equipment. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 
511-6-2-.04  Tourist Accommodation Permits. 
 
 (1) Permit: 


(a) Any person operating a tourist accommodation shall obtain and display a valid DPH tourist 


accommodation permit issued by the Health Authority.  


(b) To qualify for a permit, an applicant shall: 


1. Be an owner of the tourist accommodation; 
 
2. Allow access to the tourist accommodation;  
 
3. Provide all information as required on the application and pay all applicable local and state fees  
 
referenced in DPH Rule 511-6-2-.22 at the time the application is submitted and; 
 
4. Score 100% on the permitting inspection for newly constructed facilities. 


 
(c) Prior to the issuance of a tourist accommodation permit to new or existing establishments, the 


applicant shall provide evidence of satisfactory compliance with the provisions of this Chapter and 


all other provisions of laws that apply to the location, construction and maintenance of tourist 


accommodation establishments and the safety of persons therein. At the request of the Health 


Authority, a permit holder of a tourist accommodation may be requested to show evidence of 


continued compliance with provisions of law that apply to the location, construction and 


maintenance of tourist accommodations and the safety of persons therein. 


(d) Application for a permit to operate such tourist accommodation shall be made in duplicate 


upon forms provided by the Department. Such forms shall be completed in all details and signed 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 11


by the applicant or authorized agent and submitted at least ten days before the scheduled 


opening. The original shall be filed with the Health Authority. 


(e) Upon receipt of an application for permit the Health Authority shall review the application and 


shall take action to approve or deny the permit as is provided in accordance with the provisions of 


O.C.G.A. Chapter 31-28 and these regulations. 


(f) The Health Authority shall grant the permit or write a statement detailing the reasons for denial. 


The permit or statement shall be forwarded to the tourist accommodation operator. 


(g) Permits shall expire upon change of ownership, location, or change in type of operation.  A 


“change of ownership” means the transfer of a 50% interest or greater in the Tourist 


Accommodation to a person or entity not holding a current interest.  In addition, once a Tourist 


Accommodation permit has been issued by the Health Authority, any significant or material 


change of the Tourist Accommodation’s physical layout that would alter the interior or exterior 


structural blueprint of the facility may invalidate the permit. Unless prior approval has been 


obtained from the Health Authority, the facility shall maintain the physical layout shown within the 


approved plans and specifications of the Tourist Accommodation at the time of permit issuance.  


Operators shall notify the Health Authority before any structural, material or equipment changes to 


obtain approval if necessary.  


(h) The permit shall be void when the tourist accommodation ceases to operate or moves to 


another location. The operator shall be responsible for notifying the Health Authority when the 


Tourist Accommodation ceases to operate and for removing the invalid permit from the facility.  


(2) Plans and Specifications.  Plans and specifications for remodeling tourist accommodations 


and construction of new tourist accommodations must be submitted for review and approval 


fourteen days prior to beginning construction.  The plans shall indicate the proposed layout and 


arrangement of rooms in the establishment and what each is to be used for.  Mechanical and 


plumbing details must be shown as well as construction materials to be used on floors, walls and 


ceilings. Additional plans for a kitchen will be required if food is to be prepared and served to 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 12


guests.  The plans shall indicate the proposed menu or list of foods to be served, floor plan layout, 


arrangement of equipment, HVAC and plumbing, construction materials and finish schedule, the 


type and model of proposed fixed equipment and facilities and the anticipated service volume per 


day. If swimming pools or spas are planned, properly prepared plans and specifications must be 


submitted to the local Health Authority for review, approval, and issuance of a construction permit 


as per applicable rules and regulations governing public swimming pools.  If no construction 


changes are to be made to an existing building, requirement for plans will be at the discretion of 


the Health Authority.      


(3) Private Camps.  Camps or facilities owned and operated for members only may be inspected 


at the Health Authority’s discretion or upon request by the owner or operator or by complaint. 


(4) Primitive Campsites. These campsites shall be inspected only at the discretion of the  
 
Health Authority.   
 
[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
  
511-6-2-.05  Inspections. 
 
(1) Tourist accommodations shall be subject to inspection at reasonable hours no less than twice 


annually and as often as is deemed necessary by the Health Authority to ensure adequate 


compliance with the provisions of these rules. The permit holder is responsible for providing a 


person or persons at the time of inspection who are authorized and able to provide access to all 


rooms, facilities and records of the tourist accommodation, and who can demonstrate that there is 


sufficient daily oversight of employees and routine monitoring of operations to ensure the 


following: 


(a) Employees adhere to standard procedures or rules in the chapter when performing essential 


services such as linen exchange, sanitizing facilities or multiuse utensils, washing laundry, 


housekeeping and providing food in compliance for tourists, travelers and guest lodging or visiting 


the facility for other purposes; 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 13


(b) Employees are preventing cross-contamination of clean linen, towels or glassware in transport 


or storage by separating items, using designated containers and properly storing items after 


cleaning and sanitizing; 


(c) Employees are preventing cross-contamination of ready-to-eat food with bare hands by 


properly using suitable utensils such as deli tissue, spatulas, tongs, single-use gloves, or 


dispensing equipment; 


(d) Employees are properly cleaning and sanitizing  multiuse utensils by monitoring temperature 


and exposure time for hot water sanitizing or chemical concentration, pH and temperature for 


chemical sanitizing; 


(e) Employees of a bed and breakfast inn are properly cooking potentially hazardous food 


(time/temperature control for safety food), being particularly careful in cooking those foods known 


to cause severe foodborne illness and death, such as eggs and comminuted meats and conduct 


routine monitoring of the cooking temperatures using appropriate temperature measuring devices 


properly scaled and calibrated; 


(f) Employees are using proper methods to hold potentially hazardous foods (time/temperature 


control for safety food) hot or cold for consumption;  


(g) Employees are informed of their responsibility to report to the person in charge, information 


about their health and activities as they relate to diseases that are transmissible through food; and 


contact with multiuse utensils and; 


(h) If an imminent health hazard exists, misuse of poisonous or toxic materials, onset of an 


apparent illness or outbreak, gross insanitary condition, or other circumstances that may 


endanger public health, then operations in the affected area shall be immediately discontinued by 


the person in charge and the Health Authority notified. 


(2) The operator may accompany the Health Authority representative on tours of inspection, shall 


be given the opportunity to sign the completed inspection report and retain a copy for the tourist 


accommodation's file. 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 14


(3) The signature of the operator shall not mean his agreement with all of the findings recorded 


thereon, but only that he or she has received the report and the notification of alleged non-


compliances with the rules.   


(4) The results of the inspection shall be recorded on a form provided by the Department. This 


report will show violations found, corrective actions necessary for compliance with this rule, date 


of inspection, signature of person performing the inspection and the date when corrections to 


violations must be completed. If three or more critical item violations are found and recorded on a 


tourist accommodation inspection report form, then a re-inspection will be required within 60 days. 


Critical violations shall be corrected immediately, within 24 hours, or the Health Authority shall be 


authorized to close or restrict access to any area of the premises found in violation of critical 


item(s) on the official inspection record.  Such areas shall be closed until the violations have been 


corrected or abated as determined by the Health Authority using the requirements in Rule .20. 


(5) The operator shall correct other violations at time of inspection, if warranted, or within 30 days 


of the inspection report date. The Health Authority may extend the 30 days if an operator requires 


additional time to remove a violation based on a written plan of correction. 


(6) The report shall be discussed and explained at the time of inspection with the tourist 


accommodation operator or if not present, the designated person in charge.   


(7) The most recent tourist accommodation inspection report form shall be  prominently displayed 


in public view at all times, between five feet and seven feet from the floor and in a public area 


such as the registration desk, where it can be read at a distance of one foot away.  


(8) Any tourist accommodation inspection report addendum(s), completed by the Health Authority 


to document observations, violations, and corrective actions resulting from an inspection need not 


be displayed, but must be made available by the tourist accommodation operator to the public 


upon request.  


 (9) The Health Authority shall review all reports on reinsertion and shall institute such action as is 


deemed necessary to ensure compliance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. Chapter 31-28. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 15


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
511-6-2-.06  Employee Health and Safety. 


 (1) No person  affected with any disease in a communicable form, boils, infected wounds, or 


sores, or while a carrier of  a communicable disease shall work in any area of a tourist 


accommodation in any capacity in which there is a likelihood of such a person contaminating 


bedding and other surfaces with pathogenic organisms or transmitting disease to other individuals 


and no person known or suspected of being affected with any such disease or condition shall be 


employed in such an area or capacity. When there is reason to suspect that an employee has 


contracted any disease in communicable form or has become a carrier of such a disease, the 


employee shall be removed from the tourist accommodation premises; or his or her service is 


restricted to some area of the establishment where there would be no danger of transmitting 


disease. 


 (2) Employees, other than clerical employees, shall thoroughly wash their hands and the exposed 


portions of their arms with soap and warm water before starting work, during work as often as 


necessary to keep them clean and after smoking, eating, drinking or using the toilet.  Employees 


shall keep their fingernails clean.  Employees shall maintain a high degree of personal cleanliness 


and conform to other good hygienic practices. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 


 
 
511-6-2-.07  Water Supply and Sanitizing. 
 
(1) The water supply shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws and/or ordinances related 


to safe drinking water. The following shall apply as well: 


(a) A public water system must be used by any tourist accommodation that regularly serves an 


average of twenty-five trailer spaces or guestrooms daily for at least sixty days out of the year. 


This applies to such places as hotels, motels, trailer parks or cottages.  







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 16


(b) A nonpublic water system serving less than twenty-five trailer spaces or guestrooms, must be 


constructed, maintained, and operated according to applicable state and local codes and 


procedures, as amended. 


 (2) Cold running water under pressure shall be provided to all equipment that uses water. Hot and 


cold running water under pressure shall be provided to all lavatories, bathing facilities, laundry 


facilities, and water-using equipment where eating and drinking utensils are washed.  In all new 


tourist accommodations, and where possible in existing tourist accommodations, hot water in all 


guest rooms shall not exceed 1200F. 


 (3) The water supply shall be protected so as to preclude the possibility of back siphonage.  


Below grade stop and wastes cocks or hose bibs shall not be used. 


(4) Hoses used for filling trailer water tanks shall be stored under sanitary conditions, used for no 


other purposes, and handled so that back siphonage cannot occur and contaminants will not be 


introduced into the trailer's water tank.  A hose connected to a potable water service outlet that is 


intended for human consumption must not be long enough to reach any wastewater dump station. 


 (5)  Water glasses, ice buckets and other multi-use utensils provided for tourist’s use in a 


guestroom or dwelling unit  shall be washed, rinsed, and sanitized, in a 3-compartment, 


warewashing sink dedicated for that purpose only. They shall be thoroughly cleaned in the first 


compartment in a warm soapy solution; rinsed clean of soap and debris in warm clean water in 


the second compartment; and sanitized as specified in subsection (5) (d) 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 using 


chemical sanitizers or sanitized by hot water as specified in subsection (5) (e), after each 


occupancy and as needed during occupancy. Where approved sanitizing methods are not 


provided, single service and single use articles, such as paper or plastic cups shall be made 


available in lieu of glasses and shall be  discarded after one use.  In lieu of sanitizing ice buckets, 


a sanitary, food grade, plastic bag, large enough to line the bucket and overlap the top edge may 


be provided for use by a single occupant. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 17


(a) In addition to a dedicated 3-compartment warewashing sink, a commercial warewasher may 


be utilized if certified by ANSI/NSF as meeting standard 3 or equivalent for commercial 


warewashing equipment and it is maintained in good repair and operating according to its 


manufacturer’s specifications. 


(b) If a warewasher is provided in the room of the tourist accommodation, or if the operators 


provide a non-commercial warewasher (i.e. dishwasher) to clean and sanitize multi-use 


equipment and utensils between room occupancies, then the machine must comply with the 


following: 


1. The warewasher must be able to remove all physical soil from all surfaces of dishes and; 


2. Be equipped with a high temperature rinse cycle such as a sani-cycle and all cycles on the 


machine must be used ( prewash, wash, sanitizing rinse) and be certified by NSF standards or; 


3. If no high temperature rinse cycle is provided, the hot water supplied to the machine must be at 


a minimum of 155º F (68º C).  The operator shall use a maximum registering thermometer or a 


heat thermal label to assure that the sanitizing rinse water temperature is a minimum of 155ºF 


(68ºC). The operator must record quarterly each warewasher temperature reading for review at 


the discretion of the Health Authority.  


(c) The warewasher must be installed and operated according to manufacturer’s instructions for 


the highest level of sanitization possible when sanitizing kitchen facilities’ utensils and tableware.  


A copy of the instructions must be available on the premises at all times. 


(d) A chemical sanitizer used in a sanitizing solution for a manual or mechanical operation at 


exposure times specified under this subsection shall meet the requirements specified in 40 CFR 


180.940 Tolerance exemptions for active and inert ingredients for use in antimicrobial 


formulations (food-contact surface sanitizing solutions), shall be used in accordance with the 


Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)-approved manufacturer's label use instructions, and shall 


be used as follows:   







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 18


1. A chlorine solution shall have a minimum temperature based on the concentration and pH of 


the solution as listed in the following chart; 


 
Minimum 


Concentration 
Minimum Temperature 


 
MG/L PH 10 or less 


oC (oF) 
PH 8 or less 


oC (oF) 
 


25 49 (120) 49 (120) 
 


50 38 (100) 24 ( 75) 
 


100 13 ( 55) 13 ( 55) 


 
 
2. An iodine solution shall have a minimum temperature of 75ºF (24ºC), minimum concentration 


between 12.5 ppm and 25 ppm, and pH of 5.0 or less or a pH no higher than the level for which 


the manufacturer specifies for the solution to be effective; 


3. A quaternary ammonium compound solution shall have a minimum temperature of 75ºF (24ºC), 


have a concentration as specified in 40 CFR 180.940 Tolerance exemptions for active and inert 


ingredients for use in antimicrobial formulations and as indicated by the manufacturer’s use 


directions included in the labeling, and be used only in water with 500 ppm hardness or less or in 


water having a hardness no greater than specified by the manufacturer’s label; 


4. If another solution of a chemical specified under 1 - 3 of this subsection is used, the permit 


holder shall demonstrate to the Health Authority that the solution achieves sanitization and the 


use of the solution shall be approved; or 


5. If a chemical sanitizer other than chlorine, iodine, or a quaternary ammonium compound is 


used; it shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's use directions included in the 


labeling.   


6. The operator shall provide a test kit or device that measures the sanitizing agent’s 


concentration in the solution. Each time a user replaces the solution; they shall measure the 


concentration of the sanitizer in parts per million. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 19


(e) Hot water may be used to sanitize glasses, ice buckets and other multi-use utensils in a 3-


compartmented, warewashing sink, after they have been thoroughly cleaned in the first 


compartment in a warm soapy solution; and then rinsed clean of soap and debris in clean warm 


water in the second compartment. These items will then be immersed for at least 30 seconds in 


water at a temperature of 171°F (77°C) or above and then air-dried before use and/or storage. 


(6) Single- service items placed in a guestroom or dwelling units shall be commercially pre-


wrapped to protect against contamination. Water glasses shall be inverted on a clean surface or 


covered with a single-service lid and other multi-use utensils shall be protected from 


contamination in a manner approved by the Health Authority. Equipment, utensils, dishes, etc. in 


kitchenettes provided for guest use shall be kept clean and sanitized between each tourist’s 


occupancy. If kitchenettes are provided for tourist use, then dishwashing detergent shall be made 


available for tourist use. 


(7) Drinking founts shall be constructed of impervious material and shall have an angle-jet nozzle 


above the overflow rim of the bowl.  The nozzle shall be protected by a non-oxidizing guard and 


the bowl shall be constructed of an easily cleanable material. 


 (8) If self-service ice is provided, then it shall be from an approved water supply. In all new tourist 


accommodations, and in existing tourist accommodations when machines are replaced, only 


automatic dispensing ice machines will be allowed. In existing tourist accommodations permitted 


prior to the adoption of this rule, the use of existing self-service ice-storage bins may be 


continued, provided that the machines are maintained in good repair and capable of being 


properly cleaned and sanitized according to the manufacturer’s recommendations. Further, a copy 


of the manufacturer’s cleaning instructions shall be maintained onsite for review at the request of 


the Health Authority. Scoops, ice buckets, and other ice handling equipment, shall be of easily 


cleanable material and construction. They shall be stored in a clean place and shall be kept clean.   


Glassware shall not be used to scoop ice.    


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 20


 
 511-6-2-.08  Toilet Facilities. 


(1) Toilet, lavatory, and bathing facilities shall be provided at all tourist accommodations except as 


provided in paragraphs (13) and (16) of this Rule. Such facilities shall be easily accessible, 


convenient and available to patrons at all times. 


 (2) Bedrooms in permanent structures shall be provided with private or connecting baths. Central 


toilet facilities may be used to serve bed and breakfast inns and existing multi-storied tourist 


accommodations; so long as, toilet facilities are within the building, located on each floor, and 


deemed adequate by determination of the Health Authority to serve the tourists therein. 


 (3) Bedrooms in non-permanent structures such as cabins, park trailers, or structures in a 


wilderness settings used to provide lodging shall be provided with access to central toilet/shower 


building. 


 (4) Toilet rooms and fixtures must be smooth and nonabsorbent and shall be kept clean and in 


good repair.  Walls, floors, and ceilings shall be constructed of easily cleanable nonabsorbent 


materials and shall be kept clean and in good repair. While being used by tourists, every surface 


of a bathtub, shower, shower enclosure, toilet and lavatory, which may come in contact with a 


person’s body, must be sanitized each day, unless the guest has declined regular tourist room 


services. If a tourist declines regular tourist room services, the tourist accommodation facility must 


ensure that these surfaces are cleaned and sanitized at least once per week and between 


tourists. 


(5) Toilet, lavatory and bathing facilities shall be mechanically ventilated. Where ventilation ducts 


are used, ducts from toilet rooms shall not be connected into return ventilation ducts to any other 


room. In existing tourist accommodations permitted prior to the adoption of this rule, the current 


ventilation must prevent odor, mold, mildew, and moisture.  All new or major renovation of a 


tourist accommodation will require mechanical ventilation to be installed to the outside of the 


building separate from heating and air-condition systems. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 21


 (6) Toilet rooms, lavatories and bathing facilities shall be provided with soap, artificial light, and 


hot and cold water under pressure. 


 (7) Unused, individually wrapped soap or liquid soap dispensed from approved containers shall be 


provided in guest rooms.  Soap furnished in public wash rooms or baths shall be dispensed from 


approved containers designed to preclude contamination of the contents by individual contact. 


(8) Clean laundered individual towels shall be provided for each occupant in tourist rooms. Used 


or soiled towels shall be exchanged with clean towels and laundered between each occupancy 


and at the request of the customer. If fabric bath mats are provided, they shall be laundered or 


cleaned after each occupancy.  Towels, whenever provided in public wash rooms or baths, shall 


be individual towels and if cloth shall have been laundered since last used. 


(9) Toilet tissue shall be provided in a dispenser at each toilet at all times. 


(10) Anti-slip tubs slip strips, appliqués, or slip-proof mats shall be provided in each bathing facility 


and shall be kept clean and in good repair. 


(11) When used, hydromassage bathtubs shall be installed in accordance with the applicable 


codes. The recirculation piping system for a hydromassage bathtub shall be cleaned in 


accordance with the manufacturer instructions.  Further, the manufacturer’s cleaning instructions 


shall be available on-site for examination at the request of the Health Authority. Fresh potable 


water must be provided with each use. 


 (12) Where dependent trailers are located, central toilet/shower buildings shall be provided and 


sized to meet the expected guest load based upon the number of trailer spaces or fraction 


thereof. 


(13) If the independent trailer sites are served by sewer connections, then it is not necessary for 


independent trailer sites to have access to central toilet/shower buildings.  However, if such 


facilities are not provided, a sign with at least 2-inch high lettering shall be posted at the main 


entrance to the establishment notifying dependent trailer owners that central toilet/shower facilities 


are not available. 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 22


(14) Central Toilet/Shower Buildings shall meet at least the following minimum requirements: 
 
(a) They shall be provided with separations for each sex with no interconnection. All rooms and 


parts of the central toilet/shower building shall be well-lighted, drained, ventilated to control odor, 


mold and mildew and of good construction with impervious materials. They shall be developed 


and planned in consultation with the Health Authority and designed so that good sanitation can be 


maintained throughout the building at all times. Every surface of a bathtub, shower, shower 


enclosure, toilet and lavatory which may come in contact with a person’s body must be sanitized 


each day. 


(b) Handicapped accessible toilet, shower, and lavatory facilities shall be designed and provided 


in accordance with state or local requirements and can be included as part of the required total 


number of water closets, shower heads, lavatories, etc. 


(c) Central toilet/shower building shall be plainly identified with signage of at least 2-inch high 


lettering and located within 200 feet of dwelling units or trailer spaces served. 


(d) When serving dependent trailers, central toilet/shower buildings shall be provided for each ten 


trailer spaces or fraction thereof with not less than one commode, one lavatory and one tub or 


shower head for each sex.  In addition, at least one urinal shall be provided in each central toilet 


designated for men. 


(e) When serving non-permanent structures, a central toilet/shower building shall be provided for 


each ten non-permanent structure, or fraction thereof, with not less than one commode, one 


lavatory and one tub or shower head for each sex. In addition, at least one urinal shall be 


provided in each central toilet designated for men.  


(f) If partitions are provided between portions of the dressing room area, screen partitions, 


shower, toilet, and dressing room booths shall be of durable material not subject to damage by 


water and shall be designed so that a waterway is provided between partitions and floor to permit 


thorough cleaning of the walls and floor areas with hoses, mops and brooms. 


(g) Hot and cold water under pressure shall be provided at all lavatories and showers. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 23


 
(h) Floors of central toilet/shower buildings shall be free of joints or openings and shall be 


continuous throughout the areas. Floors shall have a slip-resistant, nonabsorbent surface that 


shall be relatively smooth to ensure thorough cleaning. In all newly constructed, remodeled or 


renovated facilities, floor drains shall be provided and floors shall be sloped not less than one-


eight inch (1/8") per foot toward the drains to ensure positive drainage. 


(i) In all newly constructed, remodeled or renovated facilities, an adequate number of three-


fourths inch (3/4") hose bibbs shall be provided for flushing down the central toilet facility interior. 


(j) Soap dispensers for providing either liquid or powdered soap shall be provided at each 


lavatory. Shampoo dispensers for shampoo shall be provided for each shower head. These 


dispensers shall be of all metal or plastic type with no glass. They shall dispense their contents in 


such a manner that precludes contamination of the contents by individual contact. 


(k) At least one paper towel dispenser or hand blow dryer shall be provided for every three 


lavatories. 


(l) An unbreakable mirror shall be provided over each lavatory. 
 
(m) Toilet paper holders shall be provided at each water closet. 
 
(n) Soap, paper towels, and toilet tissue shall be provided in all dispensers. 
 
(o) Fixtures shall be installed in accordance with local plumbing codes and shall be properly 


protected against back-siphonage. 


(p) Fixtures shall be designed so that they may be readily and frequently cleaned and disinfected. 


Frequent cleaning and disinfecting shall not cause damage. 


(q) At least one trash receptacle will be available in toilet areas. 
 
(15) In all newly constructed, remodeled or renovated facilities, at least one service sink or one  


curbed cleaning facility equipped with a floor drain shall be provided and shall be conveniently 


located for the cleaning of mops or similar wet floor cleaning tools and for the disposal of mop 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 24


water and similar liquid waste. Service sinks or curbed cleaning facilities may be located in central 


toilet/shower buildings servicing non-permanent structures or dependent trailer parks. 


(16) Remote, primitive, or wilderness campsites may not be required to provide toilet facilities at 


the discretion of the Health Authority. If toilet facilities are not provided, then a sign shall be 


posted at the main entrance notifying campers of what facilities are or are not available. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 
511-6-2-.09  Sewers.  
 
(1) Sewers shall be designed in accordance with recognized engineering practices for the 


estimated sewage flow and shall be laid with watertight joints to a grade that will ensure a self-


cleaning velocity. Sewers shall be constructed of durable materials properly vented and shall be 


installed at sufficient depth to withstand anticipated loads or other equally suitable means for 


protection of the pipe shall be used. 


(2) Each independent trailer space shall be provided with a sewer connection not less than three 


inches in diameter.  The design of these sewer connections shall be such that a watertight 


junction will be made with the trailer outlet.  Each sewer connection shall be so constructed that it 


can be closed and when not in use shall be capped to prevent escape of odors. 


(3) Facilities with independent trailer spaces may use a properly sized dump station for sewage 


disposal with a properly sized central toilet/shower building built in accordance with DPH Rule 


.08(5), (12), (14) and (15). 


(4) Dump stations’ connection to sewage disposal shall be as according to DPH Rule .10 of this 


Chapter. 


(5) Minimum design and specifications for dump stations shall be as follows: 


(a) Each dump station shall be equipped with a concrete pad surrounding the drain. The concrete 


pad shall meet all of the following requirements: (See Drawing #1) 


1. It shall be a minimum of six feet by six feet in size; 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 25


2. It shall be a minimum of six inches in thickness;  


3. It shall have a drain opening which is at least four inches in diameter with a foot-operated, self-


closing cap which forms a tight seal with the drain. The drain opening shall be located outside of 


the wheel travel portion of the pad, and a minimum of 2 feet from any edge of the pad and 


curbing;  


4. It shall have minimum four-inch tall curbing bordering the non-wheel travel area of the pad;  


5. All surface drainage must be diverted around and away from pad; 


6. The surface of the pad shall slope at least .25 inch per foot from the edge to the drain;  


7. Four-inch piping shall run from the drain to either an on-site sewage management system or to 


a public sanitary sewer system; 


8. All plumbing must be in compliance with applicable state and local plumbing codes; 


9. A water supply outlet for wash down shall be provided with a water source that is protected 


from backflow and back-siphonage, and with a retractable spring coiled water delivery device or 


other system approved by the Health Authority. Hoses used for flushing the dump station pad 


shall not exceed the length necessary to reach the entire pad; and 


10. Drain must include ability to receive wash down water from the pad. 


(b) Each dump station shall be easily accessible to the entrance and exit area of the tourist 


accommodation and have safe, all weather access roadway that slopes away from the dump 


station pad. 


(c) Each dump station shall be properly sealed to prevent nuisances. 


(d) Each dump station shall be posted with signs that are clearly and indelibly labeled stating 


instructions for use with minimum one inch tall lettering.  These signs must be at least 2 feet from 


pad. The signs shall include the statement in at least 1-inch high lettering, “Georgia law 


prohibits dumping sewage from recreational vehicles, camper trailers, and other holding 


tanks onto the ground. The water supply at this location is to be used for flushing and 


cleaning purposes only, and not for human consumption.” 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 26


(e) Each dump station shall be maintained in a clean and functional manner by the tourist 


accommodation operator. 


(f) Existing facilities with dump stations not in compliance with the design criteria in this Rule shall 


bring their dump station into compliance with the requirements of subsection (5) of this Rule when 


the station is repaired or renovated, or upon change of ownership. This exception does not 


exclude any requirement to maintain the dump station to prevent a public health nuisance or 


hazard. 


(6) Each dump station shall have an available water supply for the flushing of dump station areas 


and the following shall apply: (See Drawing #2) 


(a) Each dump station shall be constructed and operated so as to protect the water supply and all 


other water outlets within the tourist accommodation from contamination due to backflow in 


accordance with DPH Rule 511-6-2-.11. 


(b) Any hose or sprayer must be long enough to allow for a person to operate the drain opening 


while spraying the pad area. 


(c) The washing water supply towers, connections, hoses and other parts must be colored red. 


Under no circumstances shall the tourist accommodation operator allow a hose that is long 


enough to reach a water outlet that is used for human consumption to be connected to a water 


service outlet at a dump station. 


(d) Each dump station shall be located such that any water source or service outlet used for filling 


water tanks or other uses for human consumption is at least fifty feet away from the dump station 


facility.   


 


 


 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 27


Drawing #1 


 


 


 


 


 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 28


Drawing #2 


 


 
 
 
 
 


Note:  Waste piping will be not less than 4 inches in diameter unless specified by applicable law. 
 
[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 
 
 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 29


\ 
511-6-2-.10  Sewage Disposal. 


(1) Connection shall be made to a public or community sewage treatment system when such 


system is available within two hundred feet of the property line, or available in a public right-of-


way abutting the property. 


(2) Where public sewers are not available, as determined by the local governing agency, sewage 


disposal shall be provided to effectively dispose of all water carried wastes in a sanitary manner.  


No sewage, waste water, or other liquid effluent shall be discharged in such manner as to enter 


surface or subsurface water except following a treatment process approved prior to construction 


in conformity with existing State and local laws or by other means approved by the Health 


Authority. Such sewage disposal systems shall be constructed and maintained in a manner to 


prevent the creation of unsanitary conditions. The Health Authority may approve existing private 


sewage disposal systems giving satisfactory service. 


(3) When central toilet/shower buildings are provided on the premises of a tourist accommodation, 


a dump station must be installed and sized based on the total number and type of trailer sites to 


be served and projected sewage flow, and all in accordance with local codes.  


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 


511-6-2-.11  Plumbing.  All plumbing in tourist accommodations shall comply with State and local 


laws, ordinances or regulations. In the absence of State and local laws, ordinances or regulations, 


the provisions of the current “International Plumbing Code with Georgia Amendments or future 


subsequent versions adopted thereafter shall prevail. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 30


 511-6-2-.12  Garbage and Refuse Disposal.   
  
(1) At least one Health Authority approved indoor container for waste shall be provided for each 


indoor dwelling unit to be rented. Containers shall be constructed of durable metal or other 


materials which do not leak, do not absorb liquids and do not support combustion. Such 


containers shall be thoroughly cleaned on the inside and outside each time they are emptied 


unless liners are used. 


 (2) All outside refuse or garbage storage containers shall be constructed of durable metal or other 


approved types of materials, which do not leak and do not absorb liquids and shall be provided 


with tight-fitting lids or covers and shall be kept covered when stored. Each container shall be 


located within 100 feet of dwelling units or trailer spaces or in a location approved by the Health 


Authority and shall be cleaned at such frequency as to prevent a nuisance or odor. 


(3) Adequate cleaning facilities shall be provided and each garbage or recycling storage room, 


enclosure, or container shall be thoroughly cleaned after the emptying or removal of refuse or 


garbage.  Areas surrounding these rooms, enclosures, and containers shall be kept clean and 


orderly.  Liquid waste resulting from the cleaning of containers shall be disposed of as sewage. 


(4) Except for garbage facilities associated with Camp Grounds and Bed & Breakfast Inns, for all 


newly constructed, remodeled, or renovated establishments, refuse and garbage storage 


containers must be stored on a properly constructed sealed concrete slab or machine laid sealed 


asphalt. However, the Health Authority may require storage containers to be on similar properly 


constructed storage facilities for Camp Grounds and Bed & Breakfast Inns should insanitary 


conditions warrant such facilities. 


 (5) Refuse shall be collected in accordance with municipal practices where available. Where such 


services are not available the tourist accommodation shall dispose of the refuse in compliance 


with all Federal, State, local laws and or ordinances.   


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 31


 511-6-2-.13  Insect and Rodent Control. 


(1) Effective and appropriate measures shall be taken to eliminate the presence of rodents and 


flies, roaches, bed bugs, and other insects on the premises.  The premises shall be kept in such 


condition as to prevent the attraction, harborage or feeding of insects or rodents.  Restricted use 


pesticides, as specified in 40 CFR 152 Subpart I - Classification of Pesticides shall be applied 


only by a licensed professional.  All pesticide applications must be in accordance with current 


state and federal laws and the product label. Applying pesticides within buildings using area fog 


dispersal methods or as warranted under DPH Rule-.20(4)(c) is restricted to licensed pest control 


professionals as part of an integrated pest management program. 


(2) A record must be maintained on file and available at request of Health Authority for no less 


than 18 months of any pesticide use on the premises, except for the occasional use of consumer 


insect sprays on small spots in accordance with the product label. The record may be made by 


the permit holder or provided by the applicator, and shall list the following information: 


(a) amount and concentration of product used;  


(b) name of product used; 


(c) date and location of application; 


(d) application method; 


(e) pest targeted; and 


(f) name of applicator. 


(3) Openings to the outside shall be effectively protected against the entrance of rodents and 


insects by tight-fitting doors, closed windows, screening, controlled air currents or other means.  


Screen doors shall be self-closing and screens for windows, doors, skylights, transoms and other 


openings to the outside shall be tight-fitting and free of breaks. Screening materials shall not be 


less than sixteen mesh to the inch. Screen doors for sliding patio doors will not be required to be 


self closing except in food service, preparation and utensil washing areas of permitted food 


service establishment kitchens and bed and breakfast inns.  







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 32


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 
 511-6-2-.14  Construction, Layout and Furnishings.  
 
(1) Floors, walls, ceilings. windows, doors and all other appurtenances shall be of sound 


construction, properly maintained in good repair and shall be kept clean. In all new constructed 


and extensively remodeled residential kitchens used in bed and breakfast inns, coved base 


molding may be required.  Walls and ceilings in residential kitchens shall be easily cleanable and 


light colored.  


(2) Cooking is only allowed within tourist rooms that have been constructed to include 


permanently installed cooking facilities as approved by the Health Authority and other applicable 


state and local authorities.  This rule does not prohibit coffee makers and microwave ovens 


belonging to the tourist accommodation. 


(3) Ventilation shall be provided for all rooms. Where ventilation is provided by means of windows, 


they shall open directly to the outside air and the openable window area of each room shall be not 


less than 1/20 of the floor area served. Where ventilation is provided by other means, it shall 


comply with the requirements of the current International Mechanical Code with Georgia 


Amendments or future subsequent revisions adopted thereafter to provide comfortable living 


conditions, remove objectionable odor and fumes, and prevent excessive condensation. 


Ventilation systems shall comply with applicable State and local fire prevention requirements and 


building codes. 


 (4) All rooms shall be well lighted. When natural light fails to provide sufficient illumination, evenly 


distributed artificial light shall be provided to maintain a lighting intensity of not less than ten foot 


candles at 30" above the floor. 


(5) All furniture, draperies, appliances, carpets, and other accessories, in the tourist 


accommodation, whether the property of the tourist accommodation owner or not, shall be 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 33


considered the property of and furnished by the tourist accommodation for purposes of 


enforcement of this Chapter, and must be maintained in good repair, clean, and free of vermin.   


(6) Washable mattress pads or covers shall be used on all mattresses.  Beds, mattresses, 


springs, slats, mattress pads, mattress and bed coverings, pillow and pillow covers shall be clean 


and free from vermin.  Each bed shall be provided, as a minimum, with two sheets and one  


pillow and pillowcase. After each occupancy and upon the request of the occupant, sheets and 


pillowcases shall be changed with fresh laundered linens. During occupancy, linens shall be 


changed at a minimum frequency of not less than weekly.  


 (7) Sleeping quarters must be separated by a wall from the food preparation, food storage, and 


food service areas of a bed and breakfast inn. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 


 511-6-2-.15  Heating and Fire Safety.  


 (1) All heating appliances shall be designed and installed to carry all flue gases to the outside of 


building through the flue outlet.  


(2) Unvented combustion type heaters shall not be installed and/or used on the premises, unless 


they are in compliance with current State of Georgia fire safety codes and installed in accordance 


with the manufacturer’s recommendations.  


 (3) All automatic natural gas heating equipment shall be equipped with automatic safety pilot.  All 


liquefied petroleum gas burning appliances shall be equipped with 100% safety cut-off pilot. 


 (4) Gas water heaters shall not be installed in bathrooms or bedrooms, or in closets connected 


thereto. 


 (5) All gas-fired equipment shall be inspected at least annually by a qualified licensed contractor 


or local fire authority, if available. Points to be inspected are proper construction and installation, 


malfunctions and adjustments of controls and burners, faulty heat exchangers and vent 


obstructions.  Any defects found on inspection must be corrected by a qualified heating contractor 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 34


prior to use of the equipment.  Upon request, the operator shall provide evidence of inspection 


and/or correction of any deficiency. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 


511-6-2-.16  Swimming Pools.  
 
(1) Regulations of the Department and/ county in which govern the design, construction, operation 


and maintenance of swimming pools or spas shall apply to pools and spas operated in 


conjunction with a tourist accommodation. 


(2) If a swimming pool or spa at a bed and breakfast inn cannot comply with applicable 


regulations, then it must be enclosed with a fence at least four feet in height with a locked gate 


and used only by family members.  In such case, guests shall not be allowed to use swimming 


pool or spa. 


(3) If a portable spa unit is installed and operated on the premises of a detached cabin used for 


lodging as part of a tourist accommodation and if the owner complies with (4) and (5) of this Rule, 


then the portable spa will be exempt from (1) of this Rule. The owner must submit appropriate 


documentation for review and receive written approval from the Health Authority before operation.   


(4) Installation: 


(a) All portable units shall be for individual use by the occupants only and shall be permanently 


installed outside of the cabin and on the premises of the individual dwelling unit. 


(b) If the portable unit is installed in an outside enclosure, then adequate mechanical exhaust 


ventilation shall be provided to minimize heat and steam accumulation. 


(c ) The portable unit shall be constructed of a hard non-absorbent material such as fiberglass, 


acrylic or ceramic tile and provide a slip resistant walking surface. PVC or vinyl-liner materials 


shall not be used. 


(d) Portable units shall be installed in compliance with applicable electrical and plumbing codes. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 35


(e) Portable units shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and 


applicable wastewater disposal codes. 


(f) Portable units shall be equipped to avoid suction entrapment by providing suction outlets with 


covers that have been tested and approved by a nationally recognized testing laboratory and shall 


comply with ANSI/ASME A112.19.8-2007, Suction Fittings For Use in Swimming Pools, Wading 


Pools, Spas and Hot Tubs, or most recent edition. 


(5) Operation: 


(a) Portable units operated as a chamber shall be drained, cleaned, sanitized and refilled prior to 


the next use. 


(b) The unit shall be filled with potable water from an approved source immediately prior to use. 


The water fill line shall be protected with an approved backflow prevention device. 


(c) A thermometer shall be provided to ensure that the water temperature does not exceed 104° 


F. A sign shall be posted adjacent to the unit stating, “Max. Temp. 104° F.” and list manufacturer’s 


precautions on use. 


(d) The unit shall be completely drained immediately after each use.  A drain shall be located at 


the lowest part of the unit and all plumbing components shall be self-draining.  All waste water 


shall be disposed of in a manner approved by the Health Authority.  Wastewater may be 


discharged into a sanitary sewer through an approved air gap or into an approved subsurface 


disposal system or by other means approved by the Health Authority.  


(e) The operator must provide the guest with the procedures and warnings on spa usage.  The 


spa must remain empty until the tourist request spa services. 


(f) Hours of spa services must be defined by the operator. 


(g) Written procedures for cleaning and sanitizing shall be provided and maintained by the 


operator. The sanitizer solution shall be an EPA-registered disinfectant and shall be recirculated 


through the jet and/or aeration system in accordance with the disinfectant manufacturer’s 


directions.   







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 36


(h) Filtration systems and water treatment systems shall be operated according to manufacturer’s 


requirements. Units with these systems shall be located outdoors, unless adequate ventilation is 


provided in an outside enclosure.   


(i) If unit is not located within an outside enclosure, then a protective barrier with a self closing, 


self latching gate meeting the applicable local or state building code or a cover meeting the 


applicable ASTM standard shall be used at the facility. 


(j) Spas will also be cleaned and sanitized between occupants, and a log documenting cleaning 


must be maintained onsite, and made readily available at the request of the Health Authority.  


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 


 511-6-2-.17  Laundry Facilities.   


(1) Where laundry facilities are provided, they shall be separate from other facilities, of sound 


construction, and shall be kept clean, and in good repair. Laundry rooms for guest use shall be 


vented to the exterior and well lighted. The tourist laundry equipment provided for tourists to use 


shall be separate from the tourist accommodation laundry facility. Laundry equipment shall be 


provided with hot and cold water under pressure. Dryers shall be vented to the outside. A storage 


area or room shall be required to store clean linens and laundry at least a minimum of 6-inches off 


the floor and be free of pests, vermin, dust and moisture. If a tourist accommodation does not 


have an approved laundry facility, the tourist accommodation owner may contract with an 


approved laundry service provider. In all newly constructed permitted facilities, and existing 


facilities remodeled or renovated after the adoption of these rules, except for bed and breakfast 


inn, a floor drain located to receive intentional or accidental drainage from equipment or plumbing 


shall be required in laundry facilities. 


(2) Housekeeper carts shall be so arranged that clean replacement supplies, clean linens, and 


cleaned and sanitized multi-use equipment and utensils shall be protected from soiled items being 


removed from each room. Soiled linens and refuse shall be placed in appropriate containers on 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 37


housekeepers’ carts. Any spray bottle used in cleaning a tourist room or stored on the 


housekeeping cart shall be labeled with its contents. Cleaners and sanitizer shall be used 


according to the manufacturer’s use direction and label.  


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 


 511-6-2-.18  Grounds. 
 
 (1) The grounds of a tourist accommodation shall be graded to drain. Serviceable walks and 


driveways shall be provided. 


 (2) Grounds, including spaces beneath buildings and trailers, shall be kept clean and free of litter.   


 (3) All walkways, porches, and hallways shall be maintained in good repair. Only articles 


necessary to the operation and maintenance of the establishment shall be stored on the 


premises. 


(4) There shall be not less than fifteen feet clear space between all trailers and nearby buildings, 


nor less than ten feet between trailers and internal driveways within the trailer park. 


 (5) Each trailer space shall be distinctly marked. Trailer spaces shall abut on a well-defined all-


weather driveway of not less than twenty feet of unobstructed width and such driveway shall have 


clear access to a public thoroughfare. 


 (6) Grounded and weather-proof electrical outlets supplying at least one-hundred- fifteen volts 


shall be provided at each trailer space. Power lines shall be located underground or suspended at 


least eighteen feet above ground. All electrical work and materials shall comply with the 


applicable International Electrical Code with Georgia Amendments and local laws, ordinances, or 


regulations.  


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 38


 511-6-2-.19  Food Service Options.  
 
 (1) Food Service Establishment. All food service facilities except for bed and breakfast inns 


shall comply with provisions of O.C.G.A. Chapter 26-2. Art. 13 and the rules, regulations and 


standards adopted thereunder.  Bed and breakfast inns, and tourist accommodations without a 


foodservice permit, shall instead comply with this Rule. 


(2) Continental Breakfast.  A tourist accommodation without a food service permit  may serve  a 


continental breakfast as defined in DPH Rule 511-6-2-.03(d); foods not requiring preparation and 


cooking; potentially hazardous foods commercially prepared and packaged in single-servings; non 


potentially hazardous foods commercially prepared and packaged and served from the original 


container or an approved dispenser such as bagels or bread that may require only reheating or 


toasting by tourists, if the conditions of subsections 2(a) through (j) are met. All food items on 


display must be protected from contamination. Food shall be safe for human consumption, and 


obtained from sources that comply with applicable laws.    


(a) A minimum two-compartment sink, large enough to fully immerse the largest utensil used and 


a refrigerator which can maintain food temperatures at or below 41°F (5°C) shall be required. The 


need for a refrigerator may be waived if no potentially hazardous foods are served. 


(b) Condiments containing potentially hazardous ingredients and milk must be stored in a 


refrigerator, except for individual, single-service coffee creamers that are non-dairy, and 


individual, single-service, ultra high pasteurized coffee creamers that are labeled by the 


manufacturer as not requiring refrigeration. 


(c) A thermometer, accurate to (+2ºF (±1ºC) shall be provided in the refrigerator and located to be 


easily readable. 


(d) Only single service disposable plates, cups and utensils shall be used in a continental 


breakfast operation.  However, a facility may use multi-use utensils and/or a mechanical bulk juice 


dispenser, if the operator provides warewashing equipment to wash, rinse and sanitize all multi-







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 39


use utensils.  At minimum, the operator shall install a three compartment sink large enough to fully 


immerse the largest utensil used and provide adequate space to air-dry and store the utensils.  


(e) Ice used for keeping displayed foods cold must be constantly drained and cannot be used in 


beverages.  If ice is needed for beverages, it must be dispensed from self service machines or 


presented in cups pre-filled by the management.  Pre-filling shall be done only with the use of an 


approved ice scoop. 


(f) If ready-to-eat, whole raw, uncut, fruits are included within continental breakfast menus, then 


adequate protective display equipment such as sneeze guard shielding or other protective display 


equipment must be provided to protect these food items from contamination from the tourist. In 


addition, self-service utensils, such as tongs and/or single-service articles, such as sanitary deli 


paper, must be provided to protect ready-to-eat, whole raw, uncut, fruits from potential 


contamination from consumer self-service. 


(g) In all newly constructed, remodeled, or renovated establishments serving continental 


breakfasts, an employee handsink equipped with hot and cold water under pressure and 


maintained with a supply of dispensed soap and paper towels must be provided for hand washing.  


The handsink shall be located inside the physical facility where the continental breakfast food 


handling and warewashing operations are conducted. The water at this hand washing sink must 


be tempered by a mixing faucet.   


(h) In all newly constructed, remodeled or renovated establishments serving continental 


breakfasts, the physical facilities for food storage, food transfer and equipment warewashing shall 


comply with the following criteria: 


1. Physical facilities must be physically and functionally separate from those associated with 


laundry, janitorial, living and or sleeping activities and associated storage facilities; 


2. Floors, floor coverings, walls, wall coverings, and ceilings, with the exception of a ceiling in a 


non perishable food storage and seating area, shall be designed, constructed, and installed so 


they are smooth and easily cleanable; 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 40


3. Studs, joists, and rafters may not be exposed within physical facilities, except as listed in (h) 2. 


and 


4. Physical facilities shall be so designed and constructed so as to exclude the presence of 


vermin. 


5. All equipment, food, and supplies must be kept at least six inches off of the floor. 


(i) Any preparation beyond the limitations of a continental breakfast requires a food service permit. 


 (3) Bed and Breakfast Inn. A bed and breakfast inn may serve a full meal prepared as  
 
referenced in DPH Rule 511-6-2-.03 (b) within this Chapter in a residential kitchen located within  
 
the inn, if the following requirements are met.   
 
 (a) Limited Food Service:  Food may only be prepared for guests staying in rooms located in the 


bed and breakfast inn. No catering off the premises will be allowed.  


(b) Food Supplies:  


 1. Food shall be in sound condition, safe for human consumption, and obtained from sources that 


comply with the applicable laws relating to food safety.  The use of food in hermetically sealed 


containers that was not prepared in a food processing establishment is prohibited.  However, 


jams, jellies, and preserves made at the bed and breakfast inn from naturally high-acid fruits may 


be served to guests. 


 2. Fluid milk and fluid milk products used shall be pasteurized and shall comply with applicable 


law.  Dry milk and milk products used shall be made from pasteurized milk and milk products and 


shall be used only in cooking.  Raw milk shall not be provided or used.  


 3. Only clean shell eggs meeting U.S. Department of Agriculture grade standards or pasteurized 


liquid, frozen or dry eggs or pasteurized dry egg products shall be used. 


 4. Only ice which has been manufactured with potable water and handled in a sanitary manner 


shall be used. 


  
 
 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 41


(c) Food Protection: 
 
 1. All food shall be prepared, stored, displayed, dispensed, placed, transported, sold, and served 


so as to be protected from dirt, vermin, unnecessary handling, droplet contamination, overhead 


leakage, or other contamination. 


 2. The temperature of potentially hazardous foods shall be 410F (50C) or below or 135ºF (60°C) or 


above at all times, except during necessary times of preparation. 


 (i) Potentially hazardous foods shall be stored in a refrigerator or freezer that can maintain 


required product temperatures. 


(ii) A thermometer accurate to ±2°F shall be provided for each refrigeration unit and shall be 


located to indicate the air temperature in the warmest part of the unit and shall be affixed to be 


readily visible. 


(iii) Containers of potentially hazardous food displayed for service may be placed in an ice bed or 


held by a similar means which maintains the food at or below 41°F.  An accurate easily readable 


metal probe thermometer suitable for measuring the temperature of food shall be readily available 


on the premises. 


3. Hermetically sealed packages shall be handled so as to maintain product and container 


integrity. 


4. Containers of food shall be stored a minimum of six inches above the floor in a manner that 


protects the food from splash and other contamination and that permits easy cleaning of the 


storage area. 


5. Pets may be present on the premises, but shall be kept out of food preparation and dining 


areas at all times. This exclusion shall not apply to fish in aquariums.  Service animals 


accompanying handicapped persons and trainers of such animals shall be permitted in dining 


areas. 


6. Laundry facilities may be present in the residential kitchen, but shall not be used during food 


preparation and service. Laundry facilities will consist of at least a residential clothes washer and 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 42


dryer and adequate storage facilities for clean laundry and separation of soiled laundry and 


supplies. 


7. Tourists shall not be allowed to use cooking facilities in the residential kitchen. 


8. No insecticide, rodenticide, or other poisonous substance shall be stored in any food 


preparation area, except in a separate enclosure provided for that purpose.  All poisonous 


substances, detergents, bleaches, cleaning compounds, or any other injurious or poisonous 


material shall be specifically and plainly labeled as to contents and hazardous use and shall be 


stored only in their original, labeled container. Such products shall not be used or stored in a 


manner which may cause contamination or adulteration of food, food contact surfaces, or utensils. 


 (d) Food Preparation: 
 
1. Food shall be prepared with a minimum of manual contact.  Food shall be prepared on food-


contact surfaces and with utensils that are clean and have been sanitized.  Food handlers shall 


not handle or touch ready-to-eat foods with their bare hands. 


 2. Raw fruits and raw vegetables that will be cooked, cut, or combined with other ingredients, or 


that will be otherwise processed into food products by the food establishment, shall be  cleaned 


with potable water in sinks or containers that have been washed and sanitized before being used. 


3. Potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) processed by cooking 


shall be cooked to heat all parts of the food to a minimum time/temperature as follows: (i) shell 


eggs (for immediate service), beef steak, and unground meat and fish shall be cooked to an 


internal temperature of 1450F (630C) or above for 15 seconds; (ii) ground meat and pork, fish, 


game animals raised for food, and eggs for hot holding shall be cooked to an internal temperature 


of at least 1550F (680C) for 15 seconds; (iii) roast beef shall be cooked to an internal temperature 


of at least 1300F (540C) for 112 minutes; (iv) poultry or any stuffed meat, poultry, or fish shall be 


cooked to an internal temperature of 1650F (740C) for 15 seconds.  See the Department’s rules 


and regulations governing food service establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or future subsequent 


Chapters adopted thereafter for reference to time/temperature cooking requirements. 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 43


4. Potentially hazardous foods (time/temperature control for safety foods) shall be cooked and 


immediately served to tourists. The following potentially hazardous food handling practices are 


prohibited: 


(i) Cooling and reheating prior to service. 


(ii) Hot holding for more than two hours. 


(iii) Undercooked or raw potentially hazardous food (time/temperature control for safety food) of 


animal origin served to tourists. 


(iv)  Service of leftovers. 


 5. All frozen food shall be kept frozen until preparation.  No food which has been thawed shall be 


refrozen unless it has been cooked or processed. Potentially hazardous foods shall be thawed: 


(i) In refrigerated units at a temperature not to exceed 41°F (5°C); or 


(ii) Under potable running water at a temperature of 70°F (21°C) or below, with sufficient water 


velocity to agitate and float off loose food particles into the overflow and for a period of time not to 


exceed that reasonably required to thaw the food; or 


(iii) In a microwave oven only when the food will be immediately transferred to conventional 


cooking units as part of a continuous cooking process or when the entire, uninterrupted cooking 


process takes place in the microwave oven; or  


 (iv) As part of the conventional cooking process. 
 
 (e) Food Display and Service: 


 1. Employees serving food shall use tongs, other utensils, or wear plastic gloves. 


 2. When food is displayed for customer self service, it is not necessary to have protective sneeze 


shields as long as the following guidelines are met. 


(i) Potentially hazardous foods are kept at or below 41F (5 C) or at or above 135F (57C). 


 (ii) Food is displayed no more than two hours. 


 (iii) No open food or potentially hazardous foods is reserved or reused. 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 44


(iv) Tongs or other suitable utensils are provided so that there is no hand contact with the food. 


 (f)  Health and Practices: 


 1. No person, while infected with a disease in a communicable form that can be transmitted by 


foods, or who is a carrier of organisms that cause such a disease, as stated within the 


Department’s rules and regulations governing food service establishments Chapter 511-5-14 or 


future subsequent Chapters adopted thereafter, or while affected with a boil, infected wound, or 


acute respiratory infection, shall work in any capacity in which there is a likelihood of such person 


contaminating food or food contact surfaces with pathogenic organisms or transmitting disease to 


other persons. 


 2. Persons engaged in food preparation, service, and warewashing operations shall wear clean 


clothing and properly  wash their hands and the exposed portions of their arms with soap or 


detergent and warm water before starting work, after smoking, eating, or using the toilet, and as 


often as is necessary during work to keep them clean.  Employees shall keep their fingernails 


trimmed and clean.  All bed and breakfast inns permitted or extensively remodeled after the 


effective date of this rule shall provide facilities exclusively for handwashing within or adjacent to 


each kitchen. In bed and breakfast inns existing prior to the effective date of these "Rules", the 


utensil warewashing sink may be used for handwashing. Soap and paper towels in dispensers 


must be provided. 


 3. Persons engaged in food preparation shall wear a hair net, cap, or other suitable covering 


which restrains all loose hairs and shall maintain a high degree of personal cleanliness and 


conform to good hygienic practices during all working periods. 


 4. Employees shall consume food or use tobacco only in designated areas.  Such designated 


areas shall not be located in food preparation areas or in areas where the eating or tobacco use 


of an employee may result in contamination of food, equipment, or utensils.   


  


 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 45


(g) Equipment and Utensils: 


 1. Equipment and utensils shall be constructed and repaired with safe materials, including 


finishing materials; shall be corrosion resistant and nonabsorbent; and shall be smooth, easily 


cleanable and durable under conditions of normal use. Single service articles shall be made from 


clean, sanitary, and safe materials.  Equipment, utensils and single service articles shall not 


impart odors, color and taste nor contribute to the contamination of food. 


 2. Safe plastic or safe rubber or safe rubber-like materials that are resistant under normal 


conditions of use to scratching, scoring, decomposition, grazing, chipping, and distortion, that are 


of sufficient weight and thickness to permit cleaning and sanitizing by normal warewashing 


methods are permitted for repeated use. 


 3. Single service articles shall not be re-used. 


 4. All equipment and utensils shall be maintained in good repair. 


 (h) Cleaning and Sanitization of Equipment and Utensils: 


 1. Food utensils and equipment shall be stored in a manner to avoid contamination. 


 2. Food contact surfaces and sinks shall be smooth and easily cleanable. 


 3. Food contact equipment, surfaces, tableware, and utensils shall be cleaned and sanitized prior 


to food preparation for the public and after each use. 


 4. Sinks, basins, or other receptacles used for cleaning of equipment and utensils shall be 


cleaned before use. 


 5. Equipment and utensils shall be pre-flushed or pre-scraped and, when necessary, presoaked to 


remove food particles and soil. 


 6. Manual cleaning and sanitizing of cooking equipment, utensils, and tableware shall be 


conducted as follows: 


 (i)  A 3-compartmented, warewashing sink shall be provided and used. The Health Authority may 


allow the use of compartments other than sinks. 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 46


 (ii) All five steps of the warewashing process shall be completed: pre-rinsing or scraping; 


application of cleaners for soil removal; rinsing to remove cleaning chemicals; sanitizing and air 


drying. 


(iii) Sanitizing may be accomplished by immersion or sanitizing in place with the use of a 50 ppm 


chlorine solution or 12.5 ppm iodine solution or other chemical sanitizer which meets the 


requirements of  40 Code of Federal Regulation 180.940 Tolerance exemptions for active and 


inert ingredients for use in antimicrobial formulations (food-contact surface sanitizing solutions). 


(iv) Wash, rinse and sanitizing solutions shall be maintained in a clean condition. 


 (v) Water for washing and rinsing shall be maintained at 1100F (430C) or above. Water for 


sanitizing shall be maintained at 750F (240C) or above. If using iodine for chemical sanitization, 


water shall be at a pH not higher than 5.0. 


 (vi) A test kit or device that measures the parts per million concentration of the sanitizing solution 


shall be used each time the sanitizing solution is changed. 


 7. Mechanical cleaning and sanitizing shall be conducted as follows: 


 (i) A commercial warewasher must be certified by NSF standards or equivalent, in good repair 


and operating to manufacturer's specifications. 


(ii) If using a non-commercial warewasher, it must remove all physical soil from all surfaces of 


dishes and must be equipped with a high temperature rinse cycle such as a sani-cycle and all 


cycles on the machine must be used (prewash, wash, sanitizing rinse) and be certified by NSF 


standards or, 


(iii) If no high temperature rinse cycle is provided, the hot water supplied to the machine must be 


at a minimum of 1550F (680C).  The operator shall use daily, a maximum registering thermometer 


or a heat thermal label to determine that the sanitizing rinse water temperature is a minimum of 


1550F (680C).  


(iv) The dishwasher warewasher must be installed and operated according to manufacturer's 


instructions for the highest level of sanitization possible when sanitizing residential kitchen 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 47


facilities' utensils and tableware.  A copy of the instructions must be available on the premises at 


all times. 


8. There shall be sufficient area or facilities such as portable dish tubs and drain boards for the 


proper handling of soiled utensils prior to washing and of cleaned utensils after sanitization. Use 


shall not to interfere with safe food handling, handwashing, and the proper use of dishwashing 


facilities. Equipment, utensils, and tableware shall be air dried only.  


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


   
511-6-2-.20   Compliance Procedures.  


(1) Summary Suspension of Permits.  The Health Authority shall have the power and authority 


to summarily suspend a permit if the owner or operator refuses to allow the Health Authority to 


enter upon and inspect the premises of the tourist accommodation at any reasonable time and in 


a reasonable manner, or if any part of the tourist accommodation presents an imminent health 


hazard to members of the public, including but not limited to (i) an unapproved or improperly 


functioning wastewater disposal system, (ii) an infestation of insects, rodents, or other vermin, or 


(iii) an unapproved water supply or inadequate water system. 


(a) A summary suspension shall be made in writing and shall be effective immediately upon 


receipt by the owner or operator, and operation of the tourist accommodation must cease 


immediately. If neither the owner nor operator can be found, notification is achieved by tacking the 


notice to the front door of the tourist accommodation and mailing a copy to the owner or operator.  


The notice of suspension shall state the violations that justify summary suspension, and the 


corrective action that must be taken in order for the summary suspension to be lifted. 


(b) The owner or operator may seek review of the summary suspension by written request to the 


District Health Director.  The matter shall be heard by the District Health Director, or a supervisory 


level employee designated by the District Health Director who was not personally involved in the 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 48


inspection, acting as a review official.  The Health Authority shall make every effort to arrange a 


hearing within 72 hours of the request.  


(c) The hearing shall be conducted informally and without application of the rules of evidence.  


Both the Environmental Health personnel and the owner or operator shall be given an opportunity 


to present any arguments or evidence in support of their positions. The review official may uphold 


the summary suspension, or may modify or lift the suspension on such conditions as may be 


appropriate. 


(d) The owner may request a hearing under this subsection without prejudice to its right to pursue 


an appeal to the Department pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 31-5-3. 


(2) Partial closure or restricted access. The Health Authority shall be authorized to close or 


restrict access to any area of the premises found in violation of a critical item under Areas of 


Critical Public Health Risk on the Tourist Accommodation Inspection Record or that may be 


determined by the Health Authority to be an imminent health hazard to the public. Such area shall 


be closed until the violations have been corrected or imminent health hazards abated as 


determined by the Health Authority. 


(a) Closure and restriction actions must be recorded on an inspection record, identifying the 


problem and the corrective actions to be taken by the permit holder or person in charge; and  


(b) The date and time the violation was noted, and the expected date of correction to be 


completed must be recorded on the inspection record as well. 


(c) Considering the nature and the complexity of the corrective action or plan for correction 


required, the Health Authority may specify that the permit holder obtain the services of an 


appropriate licensed professional to correct a violation or imminent health hazard. Then, the 


operator must submit a plan of correction developed by the professional for review by the Health 


Authority. Upon completion of the corrective action, a letter of verification signed by the 


appropriate professional must be submitted before scheduling a re-inspection as specified in 







Tourist Accommodations   Chapter 511-6-2  


 49


subsection(2)(d) of this Rule.  Failure to comply with these actions may led to an enforcement 


action outlined in subsection (1)(a) of this Rule. 


(d) At its discretion, the Health Authority shall have the authority to direct the permit holder or 


person in charge to relocate tourists to another location within the tourist accommodation.  If such 


action is taken, the Health Authority will provide a detailed explanation of such action on the 


inspection report form, and a re-inspection of the vacated area by the Health Authority will be 


required before tourists are permitted to return to locations from which they had been previously 


removed. 


(3) Suspension or Revocation of Permits.  The Health Authority shall have the power and 


authority to suspend or revoke a permit if the owner or operator of a tourist accommodation is 


unwilling or unable to comply with these regulations, the regulations of the local Health Authority, 


or the provisions of O.C.G.A. Title 31-28-1 et seq. 


(a) An owner or operator shall be presumed unwilling or unable to comply if he or she refuses to 


allow the Health Authority to enter upon and inspect the premises of the tourist accommodation at 


any reasonable time and in a reasonable manner, or if any critical violation is found to be 


uncorrected upon the third consecutive inspection, or upon continuous violation of other rules in 


the chapter. 


(b) The revocation of a permit may be appealed to the Department of Public Health in accordance 


with O.C.G.A. Section 31-5-3 by sending written notice, by certified mail or statutory overnight 


delivery, addressed to the Department of Public Health, Office of General Counsel, with a copy to 


the Health Authority official that revoked the permit. Within ten days of receiving the notice, the 


Health Authority shall provide the Department with a copy of its entire file on the inspections and 


actions that led to the revocation of the permit. The Department shall schedule a hearing within 20 


days of receiving the notice, and shall decide the matter upon the arguments of the parties and 


the administrative record.   


 







Chapter 511-6-2   Tourist Accommodations 


 50


(4) Voluntary Closure.  In lieu of suspension or revocation of a permit, the Health Authority may 


in its discretion allow a tourist accommodation to voluntarily close all or part of the premises until 


such time as violations are corrected, and upon such additional restrictions as it may deem 


appropriate. 


(5) Resumption of Operations.  If operations of a tourist accommodation are discontinued due to 


the order or action of the Health Authority, then the permit holder shall obtain approval from the 


Health Authority before resuming operations. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6, 31-5-3, and 31-28-5] 
 
 
511-6-2-.21  Environmental Health Personnel. 
 
(1) All Environmental Health personnel who are assigned responsibilities in tourist  
 
accommodation plan review, permitting, inspecting, or other means of enforcing this Chapter, will  
 
complete the minimum state sponsored one week training course and exam requirements and  
 
obtain at least two hours of in-service training annually. 
 
(2) All in-service training must be approved by the local Environmental Health supervisor or  
 
lead personnel.  Employee attendance records of approved training shall be maintained in the 
 
county of employment and shall be subject to electronic submission and Department monitoring. 
 
[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
511-6-2-.22  Fees. The Department may adopt a fee schedule to support required training, 


monitoring, and evaluation activities. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 
 
 
511-6-2-.23  Effective Date. These regulations shall become effective on January 1, 2014. 


[Authority:  O.C.G.A. §§ 31-2A-6 and 31-28-5] 


 





		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2...urist Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-06 Tourist Backup

		Code Enforcement- Ordinance 2014-06 Tourist Backup-1

		DPH511-6-2Tourist AccommodationsRules












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Steve Brown / Randy Ognio


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey, Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to 


the Fayette County Development Authority for four year terms, with said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 


2018.


The Fayette County Development Authority is a volunteer body comprised of eight members.  Five of the members are appointed to at-


large positions, for four-year terms, by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  Two members are appointed by the City of 


Fayetteville and the Town of Tyrone, respectively.  The remaining member is appointed by the Peachtree City Airport Authority. 


 


The Fayette County Development Authority sets policy, determines annual goals, and serves as a liaison between the business 


community and local government.  This board utilizes individual talents and experiences in building consensus in an effort to facilitate an 


improved business climate, diversified economic base, and a steady economy that results in benefits for every citizen, business owner, 


and government in Fayette County.  The Authority typically meets the third Thursday of each month. 


 


On February 21, 2014, the County advertised for four soon-to-be-vacant positions on the authority.  Numerous applications were received 


and each applicant was interviewed by the Selection Committee.  The Selection Committee, made up of Chairman Steve Brown and 


Commissioner Randy Ognio recommended Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey, Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to serve on the Authority.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey, Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to the 


Fayette County Development Authority for four year terms, with said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #6





































































		Commissioners- Development Authority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Development Authority Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Steve Brown / Randy Ognio


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Dennis Dorsey to the Fayette County Development Authority to 


the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said appointment beginning April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016.


The Fayette County Development Authority is a volunteer body of eight members.  Five of the members are appointed to at-large 


positions, for four-year terms, by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  Two members are appointed by the City of Fayetteville 


and the Town of Tyrone, respectively.  The remaining member is appointed by the Peachtree City Airport Authority. 


 


The Fayette County Development Authority sets policy, determines annual goals, and serves as a liaison between the business 


community and local government.  This board utilizes individual talents and experiences in building consensus in an effort to facilitate an 


improved business climate, diversified economic base, and a steady economy that results in benefits for every citizen, business owner, 


and government in Fayette County.  The Authority typically meets the third Thursday of each month. 


 


On February 21, 2014, the County advertised for four soon-to-be vacant positions on the authority.  Numerous applications were received 


and each applicant was interviewed by the Selection Committee.  The Selection Committee recommended four applicants for the various 


positions.  In the meanwhile, Mr. Randy Hayes resigned from the Development Authority.  The Selection Committee, with the blessing of 


the Board of Commissioners, allowed for a fifth candidate to be nominated from the applicants to replace Mr. Hayes.  To that end, the 


Selection Committee has nominated Mr. Dennis Dorsey to fill Mr. Hayes' unexpired term on the Development Authority.


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Dennis Dorsey to the Fayette County Development Authority to 


the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said appointment beginning April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #7

























		Commissioners- Dorsey Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Dorsey Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of April 2014 as "Prevent Child Abuse Month."


Fayette FACTOR, working in cooperation with the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, will proclaim April 2014 as "Prevent Child 


Abuse Month."  In doing so, the Board of Commissioners would like to recognize the organizations that work to keep children safe.  


Those organizations are the Department of Family and Children Services, Advo-kids CASA, Bloom and FACTOR PCA for the training 


being provided to the school system to train all employees on child sexual abuse prevention. 


 


FACTOR PCA is holding a benefit dinner on April 22, 2014 to raise $5,000.00 in remaining funds needed to be able to complete training 


at no cost for all 2,300 employees but also to pay for facilitator training for 10 school personnel in order for them to sustain the training 


efforts. 


 


Proclamation of April 2014 as "Prevent Child Abuse Month."


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Fayette County is proud to stand with its non-profit partners to safeguard the responsibility of keeping all children safe from abuse.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation/Recognition #1







 
PROCLAMATION 


PREVENT CHILD ABUSE MONTH 


WHEREAS, Child abuse is one of the most pressing family, health, and social problems currently within the United States, 


including an average of 200  reports of child abuse per day in Georgia alone; and 


WHEREAS, The Fayette Alliance Coordinating Teamwork, Outreach and Resources (FACTOR) is part of the statewide Georgia 


Family Connection Network whose mission is to serve as a catalyst for improving results for Georgia children, 


families and communities, whose goals are unified and whose strategies are locally driven; and 


WHEREAS, Fayette FACTOR, along with the Georgia Family Connection Network, strive to meet the goals of ensuring that all 


kids are healthy, that they are ready to start and excel in school, and that they are able to provide stable and self-


sufficient families of their own; and 


WHEREAS, Prevent Child Abuse (PCA) Fayette is a program of Fayette FACTOR with a mission to educate children and adult in 


identifying and preventing child abuse; and 


WHEREAS, Fayette FACTOR and Prevent Child Abuse are part of a statewide Prevention Initiative to train five percent of the 


adult population in each county in Georgia to prevent, recognize, and react responsibly to child sexual abuse, to 


remove the topic of child sexual abuse from the shroud of fear, intimidation, and denial to a topic that is openly 


discussed in an ongoing effort to protect children, and in so doing reducing the occurrence of child sexual abuse; and 


WHEREAS, Fayette FACTOR and Prevent Child Abuse works alongside other governmental and non-profit organizations 


including the Department of Family and Children Services, Advo-kids CASA, and Bloom in an effort to train all 


employees in the school system on child abuse prevention; and 


WHEREAS, Fayette FACTOR and Prevent Child Abuse will hold its 5th Annual Benefit Dinner on Tuesday, April 22, 2014 in order 


to raise awareness of the issue of child abuse and community responsibility as well as to raise needed funds to 


provided Stewards of Children Child Sexual Abuse Prevention training to all 2,500 Fayette County School 


employees, as well as well as train an additional 1,500 adults that work with children in all areas of society;  


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby proclaim the Month of April 2014 as 


    PREVENT CHILD ABUSE MONTH 


and in doing so we urge all citizens to support local and governmental agencies who work tirelessly to eliminate child abuse in Fayette 


County and in all of Georgia’s counties.  We furthermore extend our heartfelt appreciation to our local agencies, their employees and 


volunteers, who diligently work to protect the children of our community. 


So Proclaimed this 10th Day of April 2014 


 


        FAYETTE COUNTY     


        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


               


        __________________________    


                 Steve Brown, Chairman 


 





		Commissioners- Prevent Child ...ation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Prevent Child Abuse Proclamation Backup revised

		Commissioners- Prevent Child Abuse Proclamation Backup-a

		Commissioners- Prevent Child Abuse Proclamation Backup

		Microsoft Word - Proclamation- Prevent Child Abuse-1

		Commissioners- Prevent Child Abuse Proclamation Backup

		Becky Smith- Proclamation-1

		Becky Smith- Proclamation-2
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Fayette County Humane Society's request to conduct a trial Trap / Neuter / Return feral cat program and to apply for 


Trap / Neuter / Return grant funds to pay for the trial project.


The Fayette County Humane Society is seeking to obtain approval from the Fayette County Board of Commissioners to conduct a trial 


Trap / Neuter / Return (TNR) feral cat program, and is seeking approval to apply for TNR grant funds to pay for the trial project. 


 


Potential test sites for this program would are the Fayette Pavilion shopping center and business district, Bryson Lane in Fayetteville, the 


Highway 85 connector near Brooks, and the Paschal and Dividend Drive industrial area of Peachtree City. 


 


The Fayette Humane Society is able to obtain multiple grant awards for this project.  The goal of this project is to lower Fayette County's 


costs, for the Fayette County Humane Society pay for the project, to utilize volunteer labor and freeing Fayette County Animal Control 


resources, to reduce concerns about diseases among the animals, to sterilize the animals, to motivate animal lovers to help partner with 


the Fayette County Animal Control in order to save the cats, and, ultimately, to be more humane to the cats.


Approval of the Fayette County Humane Society's request to conduct a trial Trap / Neuter / Return feral cat program and to apply for 


Trap / Neuter / Return grant funds to pay for the trial project.


Not Applicable.  The Fayette County Humane Society will be responsible for all necessary funding for this project.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #8







Trap/Neuter/Return (TNR) Test Site 


Proposal to Fayette County 


Commissioners


by Fayette Humane Society (FHS) and 
Fayette County Animal Control (FCAC)


April 2014







Purpose


To obtain approval from the Fayette County 


Board of Commissioners to conduct a trial 


Trap/Neuter/Return (TNR) feral cat program, 


and approval to apply for TNR grant funds to 


pay for the trial project.







The Problem


• Estimated 20,000 feral cats in Fayette County.


• Cats reproduce exponentially.


• Current program—trap and euthanize--is not 


controlling the population.


• Cost to taxpayers to trap and euthanize one 


feral cat:  $100. Approximately $48,000 spent 


on euthanasia in 2013.







The Solution - TNR


• Trap all members of a colony.


• Fix, eartip, and vaccinate.


• Adopt out kittens and tame 
strays.


• Return feral cats to original 
site and monitor.


• Sterilization prevents new 
births, existing population 
keeps away most new 
arrivals; colony stabilizes and 
eventually shrinks by 
attrition.


Eartip = ¼ inch straight line cut off tip of left ear


Indicates this cat has been sterilized and vaccinated.







TNR Success Stories


TNR proven most effective way 


to reduce feral cat population:


Indianapolis, IN – intake down 


37%, euthanasia down 29%


Jacksonville, FL – intake down 


66%, euthanasia down 41%


San Francisco, CA – intake down 


28%, euthanasia down 71%


Fayette County 
(unofficial):


• 8 feral sites


• 529 cats fixed 
and vaccinated 
over 2-5 years; 
colonies reduced 
to 286







Proposed Trial


Test Sites


• Fayette Pavilion shopping 
center and business district 
(25-50 cats)


• Bryson Lane, Fayetteville 
residence (30-40 cats)


• Highway 85 connector rural 
residential area near Brooks 
(25-50 cats)


• Paschal and Dividend Drive 
industrial area in Peachtree 
City (20-25 cats)


Measurement


• Initial population at site


• Number fixed


• New arrivals and births


• Attrition data


• Behavior observation / 


complaints


• Resident feedback







Grants Supporting TNR


• ASPCA - $2K to $10K


• Best Friends Animal Society – $5 to 10K


• Petco Foundation - $2K – $10K


• PetSmart Charities – $10K to $100K


• Alley Cat Allies - $1k (requires full 


cooperation from local animal shelter to 


work toward no-kill policy) 


FHS can receive multiple grant awards. 


$10K fixes 400 cats (includes rabies & ear tip)







Benefits of Implementing TNR


• Lower costs to county ($35 to fix and vaccinate vs. $100 to 


trap and kill).


• FHS pays, not taxpayers.


• Volunteer labor; frees FCAC resources.


• Vaccination minimizes concerns about disease.


• Sterilization eliminates much unwanted behavior (thus, fewer 


cat complaints).


• Animal lovers more likely to ask for help and partner with 


FCAC when they know cats will not be killed.


• TNR is more humane.





		Commissioners- TNR Humane Society Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- TNR Humane Society Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Marshal's Office Lem Miller


Approval of staff's recommendation to dispose and destroy old uniforms and other items that are no longer serviceable.


The Marshal's Office currently has a number of items that are no longer serviceable and need to be destroyed.  Those items are as 


follows: 


 


1)  182 Class A short sleeve shirts               12)  five Campaign hats 


2)  90 Class A long sleeve shirts                  13)  one pair of boots 


3)  157 Class A pants                                   14)  one life jacket 


4)  87 Golf shirts                                           15)  three rain jackets   


5)  15 BDU shirts 


6)  six coveralls 


7)  five jackets 


8)  16 turtlenecks 


9)  Ballistic Vests 


10) three sweaters 


11)  five pairs of paten leather shoes


Approval of staff's recommendation to dispose and destroy old uniforms and other items that are no longer serviceable.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #3












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Carlos Christian


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for the Georgia Department 


of Transportation's multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT 


PI No. 0012878).


The purpose of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is to allocate responsibilities from the Georgia Department of Transportation's 


(GDOT's) Project Framework Agreement (PFA) between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville.  In general, Fayetteville shall be 


responsible for ensuring that the requirements of the PFA are satisfied.  This includes, among other items, design, permitting, and 


funding.   


 


This relationship of Fayette County serving as the official sponsor with implementation and funding responsibilities delegated to the City 


was used to help ensure the project would get funding through the Atlanta Regional Commission and to take advantage of the County's 


"certified" status from the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) to manage these types of projects.  


 


Back-up information: Intergovernmental Agreement for the Allocation of Awarded Funds from the Transportation Alternatives Programs 


(GDOT PI 0012878).   


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for the Georgia Department 


of Transportation's multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT 


PI No. 0012878).


Design and engineering for the projects requires a local match of up to $170,000.  Via the Intergovernmental Agreement, the City of 


Fayetteville would be responsible for all local funding.  There are no funding requirements for Fayette County.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County working together for the betterment of all their citizens.


ConsentThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #5







INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR THE ALLOCATION OF AWARDED FUNDS FROM THE TRANSPORATION 


ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM (GDOT PI 0012878) 
 
 
This Agreement is made by and entered into this ____ day of _____________, 2014 by 


and between FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia and 


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, a political subdivision and municipality of the State of 


Georgia, acting by and through its Mayor and Council, hereinafter referred to as the 


"City", each of whom has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement to provide 


for the distribution of federal funds awarded through the Atlanta Regional Commission’s 


(ARC) Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP).   


 WHEREAS, Fayette County, on behalf of the City, applied for and received an 


award from ARC for TAP funds to assist with the design and construction of a multi-use 


bridge and accompanying path system (the Project); and 


 WHEREAS, Fayette County has applied for and received “Qualification 


Certification” to administer federal aid projects and meets the eligibility requirements set 


forth in the Locally Administered Projects (LAP) Manual; and 


 
 WHEREAS, Fayette County and the City both realize that time is of the essence 


with TAP funds and seek to initiate the Project without undue delay; and 


 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the conditions as hereinafter provided, 


Fayette County and the City hereby agree as follows:   


 


 







GENERAL 


1. As the Project sponsor, Fayette County agrees to receive the awarded federal 


funds from GDOT for the Project and distribute said funds within 14 calendar 


days to the City for work completed and submitted in accordance with the terms 


and conditions specified in the Project Framework Agreement (PFA) between 


Fayette County and GDOT.  A copy of the PFA is provided as Attachment A for 


reference.   


2. The City shall be fully responsible for execution of the Project including 


preliminary engineering, right of way acquisition, and construction costs. 


3. The City shall be fully responsible for payment of all local funding match 


requirements specific to the Project, as well as potential repayment of any 


expended federal funds if the Project does not proceed forward due to a lack of 


available funding in future Project phases, change in local priorities or 


cancellation of the Project by the City without concurrence by GDOT.   


SCHEDULE 


4. Time is of the Essence.  Fayette County and the City agree to adhere to the 


schedule of activities provided in the PFA and incorporated herein by reference.  


In the completion of respective commitments contained herein, if a change in the 


schedule is needed, the City shall notify the County in writing of the proposed 


schedule change.  If both concur, Fayette County shall then request approval of 


the change from GDOT, who will acknowledge the change through written 







response letter; provided that GDOT shall have final authority for approving any 


change.  GDOT may delay Project implementation if the City does not produce 


acceptable deliverables in accordance with the Project schedule. 


INDEMNIFICATION 


To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City agrees to hereby and does defend, 


hold harmless and indemnify the County and its officers, directors, employees, 


agents and representatives from and against any and all claims, damages, 


demands, actions, judgments, losses, costs, penalties, liabilities, assessments and 


expenses including, but not limited to attorney's fees, incurred or suffered by the 


County that arise out of, or result from, the performance of the Work, which are 


not incurred or suffered due to the negligence of the County.  


 


IN WITNESS THEREFORE, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed 


their seals the day and year as first above written.  


.   


CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, 


GEORGIA 


       BY:  _________________________ 


 


(SEAL) 







Attest: 


___________________________   


 


       FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


       BY:  _________________________ 


 


(SEAL) 


Attest: 


___________________________   


 


  







ATTACHMENT A 


 


Project Framework Agreement between the Georgia Department of Transportation  


and FAYETTE County for PI 001278 


 


 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


11                                                    
 


 
 


AGREEMENT  
 


BETWEEN 
 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


AND 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY 
 


FOR 
 


TRANSPORTATION FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
 


This Framework Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of 


____________, 20_ _, by and between the DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 


an agency of the State of Georgia, hereinafter called the "DEPARTMENT", 


and  FAYETTE COUNTY , acting by and through its Board of Commissioners, 


hereinafter called the "LOCAL GOVERNMENT". 


 


WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has represented to the DEPARTMENT a 


desire to improve the transportation facility described in Attachment “A”, attached and 


incorporated herein by reference and hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT"; and 


 


  WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has represented to the DEPARTMENT 


a desire to participate in certain activities, as applicable, including the funding of certain 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


22                                                    
 


portions of the PROJECT and the DEPARTMENT has relied upon such 


representations; and 


WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has expressed a willingness to participate in 


certain activities of the PROJECT as set forth in this Agreement; and 


 


WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has provided an estimated cost to the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT for its participation in certain activities of the PROJECT; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Constitution authorizes intergovernmental agreements whereby 


state and local entities may contract with one another “for joint services, for the 


provision of services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or equipment; but such 


contracts must deal with activities, services or facilities which the parties are authorized 


by law to undertake or provide.”  Ga. Constitution Article IX, §III, ¶I(a). 


 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made and of the 


benefits to flow from one to the other, the DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT hereby agree each with the other as follows: 


 


1. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT has applied for and received “Qualification 


Certification” to administer federal-aid projects.  The GDOT Local Administered Project 


(LAP) Certification Committee has reviewed, confirmed and approved the certification 


for the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to develop federal project(s) within the scope of its 


certification using the DEPARTMENT’S Local Administered Project Manual procedures.  







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


33                                                    
 


The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall contribute to the PROJECT by funding all or certain 


portions of the PROJECT costs for the preconstruction engineering (design) activities, 


hereinafter referred to as “PE”, all reimbursable utility relocations, all non-reimbursable 


utilities owned by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, railroad costs, right of way acquisitions 


and construction, as specified in Attachment “A”, affixed hereto and incorporated herein 


by reference.  In addition, the September 17, 2010 Planning Office memorandum titled 


“Preliminary Engineering Oversight for Project Managers/Project Delivery Staff”, 


outlines the five (5) conditions when the LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be requested to 


fund the PE oversight activities at 100%, and is enclosed as Attachment “C” and 


incorporated herein by reference.   Expenditures incurred by the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT or subsequent funding 


agreements shall not be considered for reimbursement by the DEPARTMENT.  PE 


expenditures incurred by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT after execution of this 


AGREEMENT shall be reimbursed by the DEPARTMENT once a written notice to 


proceed is given by the DEPARTMENT.   


 


2. The DEPARTMENT shall contribute to the PROJECT by funding all or certain 


portions of the PROJECT costs for the PE, right of way acquisitions, reimbursable utility 


relocations, railroad costs, or construction (specified in Attachment “A”) affixed hereto 


and incorporated herein by reference, and none of the five (5) conditions apply from the 


Planning Office memorandum dated September 17, 2010 (specified in Attachment “C”).  


 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


44                                                    
 


3. The DEPARTMENT shall provide a PE Oversight Estimate to the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT, if appropriate, appended as Attachment “D” and incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be responsible for 


providing payment, which represents100% of the DEPARTMENT’s PE Oversight 


Estimate at the time of the Project Framework Agreement execution. 


 


If at any time the PE Oversight funds are depleted within $5,000 of the remaining 


PE Oversight balance and project activities and tasks are still outstanding, the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall, upon request, make additional payment to the DEPARTMENT.  


The payment shall be determined by prorating the percentage complete and using the 


same estimate methodology as provided in Attachment “D”. If there is an unused 


balance after completion of all tasks and phases of the project, then pending a final 


audit, the remainder will be refunded to the sponsor.  


             


4.  It is understood and agreed by the DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT that the funding portion as identified in Attachment “A” of this 


Agreement only applies to the PE.  The Right of Way and Construction funding estimate 


levels as specified in Attachment “A” are provided herein for planning purposes and do 


not constitute a funding commitment for right of way and construction.  The 


DEPARTMENT will prepare LOCAL GOVERNMENT Specific Activity Agreements for 


funding applicable to other activities when appropriate. 


 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


55                                                    
 


Further, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for repayment of any 


expended federal funds if the PROJECT does not proceed forward to completion due to 


a lack of available funding in future PROJECT phases, changes in local priorities or 


cancellation of the PROJECT by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT without concurrence by 


the DEPARTMENT.  


 


5. In accordance with Georgia Code 32-2-2, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be 


responsible for all costs for the continual maintenance and operations of any and all 


sidewalks and the grass strip between the curb and sidewalk within the PROJECT 


limits.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall also be responsible for the continual 


maintenance and operation of all lighting systems installed to illuminate any 


roundabouts constructed as part of this PROJECT.  Furthermore, the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall also be responsible for the maintaining of all landscaping installed 


as part of any roundabout constructed as part of this PROJECT. 


  


6.  Both the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the DEPARTMENT hereby acknowledge 


that Time is of the Essence.  It is agreed that both parties shall adhere to the schedule 


of activities currently established in the approved Transportation Improvement 


Program/State Transportation Improvement Program, hereinafter referred to as 


“TIP/STIP”.  Furthermore, all parties shall adhere to the detailed project schedule as 


approved by the DEPARTMENT, attached as Attachment “B” and incorporated herein 


by reference.  In the completion of respective commitments contained herein, if a 


change in the schedule is needed, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall notify the 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


66                                                    
 


DEPARTMENT in writing of the proposed schedule change and the DEPARTMENT 


shall acknowledge the change through written response letter; provided that the 


DEPARTMENT shall have final authority for approving any change. 


  If, for any reason, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT does not produce acceptable 


deliverables in accordance with the approved schedule, the DEPARTMENT reserves 


the right to delay the PROJECT’s implementation until funds can be re-identified for 


right of way or construction phases, as applicable. 


 


7. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall certify that the regulations for 


“CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES WITH FEDERAL PROCUREMENT 


REQUIREMENTS, STATE AUDIT REQUIREMENTS, and FEDERAL AUDIT 


REQUIREMENTS” are understood and will comply in full with said provisions. 


        


8.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall accomplish the PE activities for the 


PROJECT.  The PE activities shall be accomplished in accordance with the 


DEPARTMENT's Plan Development Process hereinafter referred to as ”PDP”, the 


applicable guidelines of the American Association of State Highway and Transportation 


Officials, hereinafter referred to as “AASHTO”,  the DEPARTMENT's Standard 


Specifications Construction of Transportation Systems, and all applicable design 


guidelines and policies of the DEPARTMENT to produce a cost effective PROJECT.  


Failure to follow the PDP and all applicable guidelines and policies will jeopardize the 


use of Federal Funds in some or all categories outlined in this agreement, and it shall 


be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to make up the loss of that funding.   







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


77                                                    
 


The LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s responsibility for PE activities shall include, but is not 


limited to the following items:   


a.   Prepare the PROJECT Concept Report and Design Data Book in 


accordance with the format used by the DEPARTMENT.  The concept for the 


PROJECT shall be developed to accommodate the future traffic volumes as 


generated by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT as provided for in paragraph 8b and 


approved by the DEPARTMENT.  The concept report shall be approved by the 


DEPARTMENT prior to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT beginning further development 


of the PROJECT plans.  It is recognized by the parties that the approved concept 


may be updated or modified by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT as required by the 


DEPARTMENT and re-approved by the DEPARTMENT during the course of PE 


due to updated guidelines, public input, environmental requirements, Value 


Engineering recommendations, Public Interest Determination (PID) for utilities, 


utility/railroad conflicts, or right of way considerations. 


b.  Prepare a Traffic Study for the PROJECT that includes Average Daily 


Traffic, hereinafter referred to as “ADT”, volumes for the base year (year the 


PROJECT is expected to be open to traffic) and design year (base year plus 20 


years) along with Design Hour Volumes, hereinafter referred to as “DHV”, for the 


design year.  DHV includes morning (AM) and evening (PM) peaks and other 


significant peak times.  The Study shall show all through and turning movement 


volumes at intersections for the ADT and DHV volumes and shall indicate the 


percentage of trucks on the facility. The Study shall also include signal warrant 


evaluations for any additional proposed signals on the PROJECT. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


88                                                    
 


c.   Prepare environmental studies, documentation reports and complete 


Environmental Document for the PROJECT along with all environmental re-


evaluations required that show the PROJECT is in compliance with the provisions of 


the National Environmental Policy Act or the Georgia Environmental Policy Act as 


per the DEPARTMENT’s Environmental Procedures Manual, as appropriate to the 


PROJECT funding.  This shall include any and all archaeological, historical, 


ecological, air, noise, community involvement, environmental justice, flood plains, 


underground storage tanks, and hazardous waste site studies required.  The 


completed Environmental Document approval shall occur prior to Right of Way 


funding authorization.  A re-evaluation is required for any design change as 


described in Chapter 7 of the Environmental Procedures Manual.  In addition, a re-


evaluation document approval shall occur prior to any Federal funding 


authorizations if the latest approved document is more than 6 months old. The 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall submit to the DEPARTMENT all studies, documents 


and reports for review and approval by the DEPARTMENT, the FHWA and other 


environmental resource agencies.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide 


Environmental staff to attend all PROJECT related meetings where Environmental 


issues are discussed.  Meetings include, but are not limited to, concept, field plan 


reviews and value engineering studies. 


d.   Prepare all PROJECT public hearing and public information displays and 


conduct all required public hearings and public information meetings with 


appropriate staff in accordance with DEPARTMENT practice. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


99                                                    
 


e.   Perform all surveys, mapping, soil investigations and pavement evaluations 


needed for design of the PROJECT as per the appropriate DEPARTMENT Manual. 


 


f.    Perform all work required to obtain all applicable PROJECT permits, 


including, but not limited to, Cemetery, TVA and US Army Corps of Engineers 


permits, Stream Buffer Variances and Federal Emergency Management Agency 


(FEMA) approvals.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide all mitigation 


required for the project, including but not limited to permit related mitigation.  All 


mitigation costs are considered PE costs.  PROJECT permits and non-construction 


related mitigation must be obtained and completed 3 months prior to the scheduled 


let date.  These efforts shall be coordinated with the DEPARTMENT.  


g.   Prepare the stormwater drainage design for the PROJECT and any required 


hydraulic studies for FEMA Floodways within the PROJECT limits.  Acquire of all 


necessary permits associated with the Hydrology Study or drainage design. 


h.   Prepare utility relocation plans for the PROJECT following the 


DEPARTMENT's policies and procedures for identification, coordination and conflict 


resolution of existing and proposed utility facilities on the PROJECT.  These policies 


and procedures, in part, require the Local Government to submit all requests for 


existing, proposed, and relocated facilities to each utility owner within the project 


area.  Copies of all such correspondence, including executed agreements for 


reimbursable utility/railroad relocations, shall be forwarded to the DEPARTMENT's 


Project Manager and the District Utilities Engineer and require that any conflicts with 


the PROJECT be resolved by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT.  If it is determined that 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1100                                                    
 


the PROJECT is located on an on-system route or is a DEPARTMENT LET 


PROJECT, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the District Utilities Engineer shall 


ensure that permit applications are approved for each utility company in conflict with 


the project.  If it is determined through the DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager and 


State Utilities Office during the concept or design phases the need to utilize 


Overhead/Subsurface Utility Engineering, hereinafter referred to as “SUE”, to obtain 


the existing utilities, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for acquiring 


those services.  SUE costs are considered PE costs.  


i.   Prepare, in English units, Preliminary Construction plans, Right of Way plans 


and Final Construction plans that include the appropriate sections listed in the Plan 


Presentation Guide, hereinafter referred to as ”PPG”, for all phases of the PDP.  All 


drafting and design work performed on the project shall be done utilizing 


Microstation V8i and InRoads software respectively using the DEPARTMENT’s 


Electronic Data Guidelines. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall further be 


responsible for making all revisions to the final right of way plans and construction 


plans, as deemed necessary by the DEPARTMENT, for whatever reason, as 


needed to acquire the right of way and construct the PROJECT. 


j.   Prepare PROJECT cost estimates for construction, Right of Way and 


Utility/railroad relocation at the following project stages: Concept, Preliminary Field 


Plan Review, Right of Way plan approval (Right of Way cost only), Final Field Plan 


Review and Final Plan submission using the applicable method approved by the 


DEPARTMENT.  The cost estimates shall also be updated annually if the noted 


project stages occur at a longer frequency.  Failure of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1111                                                    
 


to provide timely and accurate cost estimates may delay the PROJECT’s 


implementation until additional funds can be identified for right of way or 


construction, as applicable. 


k.   Provide certification, by a Georgia Registered Professional Engineer, that 


the Design and Construction plans have been prepared under the guidance of the 


professional engineer and are in accordance with AASHTO and DEPARTMENT 


Design Policies.  


l.   Provide certification, by a Level II Certified Design Professional that the 


Erosion Control Plans have been prepared under the guidance of the certified 


professional in accordance with the current Georgia National Pollutant Discharge 


Elimination System. 


m.   Provide a written certification that all appropriate staff (employees and 


consultants) involved in the PROJECT have attended or are scheduled to attend the 


Department’s PDP Training Course.  The written certification shall be received by 


the Department no later than the first day of February of every calendar year until all 


phases have been completed. 


 


9.  The Primary Consultant firm or subconsultants hired by the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT to provide services on the PROJECT shall be prequalified with the 


DEPARTMENT in the appropriate area-classes.  The DEPARTMENT shall, on request, 


furnish the LOCAL GOVERNMENT with a list of prequalified consultant firms in the 


appropriate area-classes.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall comply with all applicable 


state and federal regulations for the procurement of design services and in accordance 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1122                                                    
 


with the Brooks Architect-Engineers Act of 1972, better known as the Brooks Act, for 


any consultant hired to perform work on the PROJECT. 


 


10. The DEPARTMENT shall review and has approval authority for all aspects of 


the PROJECT provided however this review and approval does not relieve the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT of its responsibilities under the terms of this agreement.  The 


DEPARTMENT will work with the FHWA to obtain all needed approvals as deemed 


necessary with information furnished by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT.   


 


11. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for the design of all bridge(s) 


and preparation of any required hydraulic and hydrological studies within the limits of 


this PROJECT in accordance with the DEPARTMENT’s policies and guidelines.  The 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall perform all necessary survey efforts in order to complete 


the hydraulic and hydrological studies and the design of the bridge(s).  The final bridge 


plans shall be incorporated into this PROJECT as a part of this Agreement. 


 


12. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT unless otherwise noted in Attachment “A” shall be 


responsible for funding all LOCAL GOVERNMENT owned utility relocations and all 


other reimbursable utility/railroad costs.  The utility costs shall include but are not limited 


to PE, easement acquisition, and construction activities necessary for the utility/railroad 


to accommodate the PROJECT. The terms for any such reimbursable relocations shall 


be laid out in an agreement that is supported by plans, specifications, and itemized 


costs of the work agreed upon and shall be executed prior to certification by the 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1133                                                    
 


DEPARTMENT.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall certify via written letter to the 


DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager and District Utilities Engineer that all Utility owners’ 


exisiting and proposed facilities are shown on the plans with no conflicts 3 months prior 


to advertising the PROJECT for bids and that any required agreements for reimbursable 


utility/railroad costs have been fully executed.  Further, this certification letter shall state 


that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT understands that it is responsible for the costs of any 


additional reimbursable utility/railroad conflicts that arise during construction. 


 


13. The DEPARTMENT will be responsible for all railroad coordination on 


DEPARTMENT Let and/or State Route (On-System) projects; the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall address concerns, comments, and requirements to the 


satisfaction of the Railroad and the DEPARTMENT.  If the LOCAL GOVERNMENT is 


shown to LET the construction in Attachment “A” on off-system routes, the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for all railroad coordination and addressing 


concerns, comments, and requirements to the satisfaction of the Railroad and the 


DEPARTMENT for PROJECT.   


 


14. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for acquiring a Value 


Engineering Consultant for the DEPARTMENT to conduct a Value Engineering Study if 


the total estimated PROJECT cost is $50 million or more. The Value Engineering Study 


cost is considered a PE cost.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide project related 


design data and plans to be evaluated in the study along with appropriate staff to 


present and answer questions about the PROJECT to the study team.  The LOCAL 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1144                                                    
 


GOVERNMENT shall provide responses to the study recommendations indicating 


whether they will be implemented or not.  If not, a valid response for not implementing 


shall be provided.  Total project costs include PE, right of way, and construction, 


reimbursable utility/railroad costs. 


 


15. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT, unless shown otherwise on Attachment “A”, shall 


acquire the Right of way in accordance with the law and the rules and regulations of the 


FHWA including, but not limited to, Title 23, United States Code; 23 CFR 710, et. Seq., 


and 49 CFR Part 24 and the rules and regulations of the DEPARTMENT.  Upon the 


DEPARTMENT’s approval of the PROJECT right of way plans, verification that the 


approved environmental document is valid and current, a written notice to proceed will 


be provided by the DEPARTMENT for the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to stake the right of 


way and proceed with all pre-acquisition right of way activities.  The LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall not proceed to property negotiation and acquisition whether or not 


the right of way funding is Federal, State or Local, until the right of way agreement 


named “Contract for the Acquisition of Right of Way” prepared by the DEPARTMENT’s 


Office of Right of Way is executed between the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the 


DEPARTMENT.  Failure of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to adhere to the provisions and 


requirements specified in the acquisition contract may result in the loss of Federal 


funding for the PROJECT and it will be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT 


to make up the loss of that funding. Right of way costs eligible for reimbursement 


include land and improvement costs, property damage values, relocation assistance 


expenses and contracted property management costs. Non reimbursable right of way 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1155                                                    
 


costs include administrative expenses such as appraisal, consultant, attorney fees and 


any in-house property management or staff expenses.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT 


shall certify that all required right of way is obtained and cleared of obstructions, 


including underground storage tanks, 3 months prior to advertising the PROJECT for 


bids.  


 


16. The DEPARTMENT unless otherwise shown in Attachment “A” shall be 


responsible for Letting the PROJECT to construction, solely responsible for executing 


any agreements with all applicable utility/railroad companies and securing and awarding 


the construction contract for the PROJECT when the following items have been 


completed and submitted by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT:  


 


aa..  SSuubbmmiittttaall  ooff  aacccceeppttaabbllee  PPRROOJJEECCTT  PPEE  aaccttiivviittyy  ddeelliivveerraabblleess  nnootteedd  iinn  tthhiiss  


AAggrreeeemmeenntt..  


bb..  CCeerrttiiffiiccaattiioonn  tthhaatt  aallll  nneeeeddeedd  rriigghhttss  ooff  wwaayy  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  oobbttaaiinneedd  aanndd  cclleeaarreedd  ooff  


oobbssttrruuccttiioonnss..    


cc..  CCeerrttiiffiiccaattiioonn  tthhaatt  tthhee  eennvviirroonnmmeennttaall  ddooccuummeenntt  iiss  ccuurrrreenntt  aanndd  aallll  nneeeeddeedd  


ppeerrmmiittss  aanndd  mmiittiiggaattiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  PPRROOJJEECCTT  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  oobbttaaiinneedd..  


d.   Certification that all Utility/Railroad facilities, existing and proposed, within 


the PROJECT limits are shown, any conflicts have been resolved and reimbursable 


agreements, if applicable, are executed. 


If the LOCAL GOVERNMENT is shown to LET the construction in Attachment “A”, 


the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide the above deliverables and certifications and 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1166                                                    
 


shall follow the requirements stated in Chapters 10, 11, 12 and 13 of the 


DEPARTMENT’s Local Administered Project Manual.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT 


shall be responsible for providing qualified construction oversight with their personnel or 


by employing a Consultant firm prequalified in Area Class 8.01 to perform construction 


oversight.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for employing a GDOT 


prequalified consultant in area classes 6.04a and 6.04b for all materials testing on the 


PROJECT, with the exception of field concrete testing.  All materials testing, including 


field concrete testing shall be performed by GDOT certified technicians who are certified 


for the specific testing they are performing on the PROJECT.  The testing firm(s) and 


the individual technicians must be submitted for approval prior to Construction.                    


         


 17. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide a review and recommendation by 


the engineer of record concerning all shop drawings prior to the DEPARTMENT review 


and approval.  The DEPARTMENT shall have final authority concerning all shop 


drawings. 


 


18. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees that all reports, plans, drawings, studies, 


specifications, estimates, maps, computations, computer files and printouts, and any 


other data prepared under the terms of this Agreement shall become the property of the 


DEPARTMENT if the PROJECT is being let by the DEPARTMENT.  This data shall be 


organized, indexed, bound, and delivered to the DEPARTMENT no later than the 


advertisement of the PROJECT for letting.  The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1177                                                    
 


use this material without restriction or limitation and without compensation to the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT. 


 


19. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for the professional quality, 


technical accuracy, and the coordination of all reports, designs, drawings, 


specifications, and other services furnished by or on behalf of the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT pursuant to this Agreement.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall correct 


or revise, or cause to be corrected or revised, any errors or deficiencies in the reports, 


designs, drawings, specifications, and other services furnished for this PROJECT.  


Failure by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to address the errors, omissions or deficiencies 


within 30 days of notification shall cause the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to assume all 


responsibility for construction delays and supplemental agreements caused by the 


errors and deficiencies.  All revisions shall be coordinated with the DEPARTMENT prior 


to issuance.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall also be responsible for any claim, 


damage, loss or expense, to the extent allowed by law that is attributable to errors, 


omissions, or negligent acts related to the designs, drawings, specifications, and other 


services furnished by or on behalf of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT pursuant to this 


Agreement. 


 


20.  The DEPARTMENT shall be furnished with a copy of all contracts and 


agreements between the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and any other agency or contractor 


associated with construction activities.  The DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager shall be 


the primary point of contact unless otherwise specified. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1188                                                    
 


 


21.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide the DEPARTMENT with a detailed 


project schedule that reflects milestones, deliverables with durations for all pertinent 


activities to develop critical path elements.  An electronic project schedule shall be 


submitted to the Project Manager after execution of this agreement. 


          


 This Agreement is made and entered into in FULTON COUNTY, GEORGIA, and 


shall be governed and construed under the laws of the State of Georgia. 


The covenants herein contained shall, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the 


benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1199                                                    
 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL GOVERNMENT have 


caused these presents to be executed under seal by their duly authorized 


representatives. 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
BY: _________________________ 
       Commissioner    
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
FAYETTE COUNTY 
 
 
 
BY: _____________________________ 
       Name 
       Title 
 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered this _____ 
day of ________________, 20__, in the 
presence of: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Witness  
  
 
____________________________ 
Notary Public  
 
  
This Agreement approved by Local 
Government, the ______day of 
_____________, 20__. 
     
Attest      
 
 
______________________________ 
Name and Title 
 
 
 
 
FEIN:    ________________________







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2200                                                    
 


  
  
  


Attachment "A" Funding Sources and Distribution


Percentage PE Amount
Maximum PE 


Participation Amount 
($)


Participant
PE Activity 


Sponsor
Percentage Amount Participant Percentage Amount


1 80% $749,000.00 $749,000.00 Federal 0% $0.00 Federal 80% $749,000.00
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State 0% $0.00 State 0% $0.00
3 20% $187,250.00 *N/A Local 0% $0.00 Local 20% $187,250.00
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other 0% $0.00 Other 0% $0.00


Total 100% $936,250.00 0% $0.00 100% $936,250.00
*Total PE costs > $936,250.00 will be 100% Local


Percentage ROW Amount
Maximum ROW 


Participation Amount 
($)


Participant Acquisition By:
Acquisition 


Fund By:
Utility Funding By:


Railroad Funding 
By:


1 0% $0.00 $0.00 Federal
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State
3 100% $170,000.00 *N/A Local
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other


Total 100% $170,000.00 100% 100%
*Total RW costs > $170,000.00 will be 100% Local


Percentage CST Amount
Maximum CST 


Participation Amount 
($)


Participant Letting By:
Testing (Phase V) 


Funding By:
Inspection  (Phase 


VI) Funding By:


1 0% $0.00 $0.00 Federal
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State
3 100% $2,123,500.00 *N/A Local
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other


Total 100% $2,123,500.00 100% 100%
*Total Construction costs > $2,123,500.00 will be 100% Local


Percentage TOTAL Amount Maximum Participation 
Amount ($) Participant


1 23% $749,000.00 $749,000.00 Federal
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State
3 77% $2,480,750.00 N/A Local
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other


Total 100% $3,229,750.00


The GDOT Oversight check shall be remitted to the District Planning and Programming Engineer along with the signed Project Framework Agreement (PFA).


NOTE:  Separate GDOT P.O.s will be established for each funding phase.


government will only be reimbursed the percentage of the accrued invoiced amounts up to but 
not   to exceed the maximum amount indicated.  


2GDOT Oversight for PE (Phase I) is detailed in Attachment "D".


GDOT Oversight for CST (Phase III)2


3 Right-of-Way and Construction amounts shown are for budget planning purposes only.


Su
m


m
ar


y o
f P


ha
se


s I
 


Th
ro


ug
h I


II
Sponsor:  FAYETTE COUNTY  Project No.:  0012878  


Local Government Local Government


Preliminary Engineering - Phase I1 GDOT Oversight for PE (Phase I)2 Preliminary Engineering Grand Total 
(Phase I)


Utility Relocation - Phase IV


Attach "Project Manager" Project Charging Form for Approval


Local Government


Pr
eli


m
ina


ry
 


En
gin


ee
rin


g P
ha


se
 I


Ri
gh


t o
f W


ay
 Ph


as
e I


I
Co


ns
tru


cti
on


 Ph
as


e I
II


Local 
Government


Ut
ilit


y P
ha


se
 IV


Co
ns


tru
cti


on
 O


ve
rsi


gh
t 


Ph
as


es
 V


 &
 V


I


Local Government


Grand Total  - All Phases I through III


Right of Way - Phase II3


Local 
Government


Local 
Government


Construction - Phase III3


Local Govt


1The maximum allowable GDOT participating amounts for PE phase are shown above.  The local 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2211                                                    
 


ATTACHMENT “B” Project Timeline 
  


PPII  ##  00001122887788  ––  FFaayyeettttee  CCoouunnttyy  
Proposed Project Timeline 
 


 
 
Environmental Phase 
 
 
Concept Phase 
 
 
Preliminary Plan Phase 


    


    


    


    


    


   


 
 
Right of Way Phase  


    


   


   
 
Deadlines for  Execute June 2014  December 2014 February, 2015 August, 2015 
Responsible Parties Agreement (Approve  (Approve Env. (Authorize Right (Authorize 
     Concept)     Document)      of Way funds)    Const. funds) 
  
  
  
  
  


AAnnnnuuaall  RReeppoorrttiinngg  RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss  
  


TThhee  LLooccaall  GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  sshhaallll  pprroovviiddee  aa  wwrriitttteenn  ssttaattuuss  rreeppoorrtt  ttoo  tthhee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt’’ss  PPrroojjeecctt  MMaannaaggeerr  wwiitthh  tthhee  aaccttuuaall  pphhaassee  
ccoommpplleettiioonn  ddaattee((ss))  aanndd  tthhee  ppeerrcceenntt  ccoommpplleettee//pprrooppoosseedd  ccoommpplleettiioonn  ddaattee  ooff  iinnccoommpplleettee  pphhaasseess..    TThhee  wwrriitttteenn  ssttaattuuss  rreeppoorrtt  sshhaallll  
bbee  rreecceeiivveedd  bbyy  tthhee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt  nnoo  llaatteerr  tthhaann  tthhee  ffiirrsstt  ddaayy  ooff  FFeebbrruuaarryy  ooff  eevveerryy  ccaalleennddaarr  yyeeaarr  uunnttiill  aallll  pphhaasseess  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  
ccoommpplleetteedd..







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2222                                                    
 


  


ATTACHMENT “C” 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2233                                                    
 


  







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2244                                                    
 


ATTACHMENT “D” 
GDOT Oversight Estimate for Locally Administered Project 


 
 


PI Number Project Number 


County Project Length  Miles 


Project Manager Project Cost 


Project Type 


Project 
Description 
 
Expected Life of Project  Years 


 


Project Phase Oversight 
Hours  Oversight Cost 


11..  PPrroojjeecctt  IInniittiiaattiioonn  0 $ 0.00 


22..  CCoonncceepptt  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  0 $ 0.00 


33..  DDaattaabbaassee  PPrreeppaarraattiioonn**  0 $ 0.00 


44..  PPrreelliimmiinnaarryy  DDeessiiggnn  0 $ 0.00 


55..  EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  0 $ 0.00 


66..  FFiinnaall  DDeessiiggnn  0 $ 0.00 


Travel Expenses  $ --    


Total Oversight Estimate 0 $ 0.00 
Percentage of Project 


Cost .00%   
 


 


 


 


 
  
  
  
  
  
  


 
ATTACHMENT “E” 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


GDOT Oversight Estimate for Consultant and Locally Administered Projects – Version 2.01 – September 2011 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2255                                                    
 


GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT 
AFFIDAVIT 


 
Name of Contracting Entity: _________________________________________________________ 


Contract No. and Name:  _________________________________________________________ 


    _________________________________________________________ 


By executing this affidavit, the undersigned person or entity verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, 
stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or entity which is contracting with the Georgia Department of 
Transportation has registered with, is authorized to participate in, and is participating in the federal work 
authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with 
the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91.   
 
The undersigned person or entity further agrees that it will continue to use the federal work authorization program 
throughout the contract period, and it will contract for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such 
contract only with subcontractors who present an affidavit to the undersigned with the information required by 
O.C.GA. § 13-10-91(b).   
 
The undersigned person or entity further agrees to maintain records of such compliance and provide a copy of each 
such verification to the Georgia Department of Transportation within five (5) business days after any subcontractor 
is retained to perform such service. 


 
 
_______________________________________  
E-Verify / Company Identification Number  


 
_______________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent 
 


 
_______________________________________  
Date of Authorization 
 


 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent 


  
_______________________________________ 
Title of Authorized Officer or Agent 
 


  
_______________________________________ 
Date 
 


SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 
 
_____ DAY OF ______________________, 201_ 
 
________________________________________  [NOTARY SEAL] 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: ___________________ 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2266                                                    
 


AATTTTAACCHHMMEENNTT  ““FF””  
  


TITLE VI INTRODUCTION 
 
 


As a sub-recipient of federal funds from Georgia Department of Transportation, all 
municipalities are required to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which provides 
that: 
 
“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national  
origin, be excluded from participation in, or be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 
To discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal assistance under 
This title or carried out under this title.” 
 
Additionally, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, expanded the definition of the terms 
“programs and activities” to include all programs or activities of federal recipients, 
subrecipients, and contractors, whether or not such programs and activities are federally 
assisted.  
 
The provisions of Title VI apply to all contractors, subcontractors, consultants and suppliers. 
And is a condition for receiving federal funds. All sub recipients must sign Title VI assurances 
that they will not discriminate as stated in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
In the event that the sub recipient distributes federal aid funds to second tier entity, the sub-
recipient shall include Title VI language in all written documents and will monitor for 
compliance. If, these assurances are not signed, the City or County government may be 
subjected to the loss of federal assistance. 
 
 All sub recipients that receive federal assistance must also include Federal Highways 
Administrations 1273 in their contracts. The FHWA 1273 sets out guidance for ensuring non 
discrimination and encouraging minority participation and outreach. 
 
Enclosed you will find Title VI acknowledgment form and the Title VI assurances. The Title VI 
acknowledgment form and Title VI assurances must be signed by your local government official 
if it has not been signed.  


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
  







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2277                                                    
 


ATTACHMENT “F” 
 
 


TITLE VI ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
 
 


 The___________________________________ assures that no person shall on the grounds or 
race, color, national origin or sex as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the 
Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any City or County sponsored program or 
activity.  The_______________________________ assures that every effort will be made to 
ensure non discrimination in all of its programs or activities, whether those programs are 
federally funded or not. 
 
Assurance of compliance therefore falls under the proper authority of the City Council or the 
County Board of Commissioners. The Title VI Coordinator or Liaison is authorized to ensure 
compliance with provisions of this policy and with the Law, including the requirements of 23 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 200 and 49 CFR 21. 
 
____________________________________                                                     _______________ 
  Official Name and Title                                                                                      Date                                                  
 
 
 Citations: 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 42 USC 2000d to 2000d-4;42 USC 4601to 4655;23 USC 
109(h); 23 USC 324; DOT Order 1050.2; EO 12250; EO 12898; 28CFR 50.3 
 
Other Nondiscrimination Authorities Expanded the range and scope of Title VI coverage and 
applicability 
 
The 1970 Uniform Act (42 USC 4601) 
Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 790) 
The 1973 Federal-aid Highway Act (23 USC 324) 
The 1975 Age Discrimination Act (42 USC 6101) 
Implementing Regulations (49 CFR 21 & 23 CFR 200) 
Executive Order 12898 on Environmental Justice (EJ) 
Executive Order 13166 on Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
 
 





		Public Works- Fayetteville IGA Agenda Request File

		Public Works- Fayetteville IGA Backup

		Draft IGA with Fayetteville for 0012878

		Public Works IGA 0012878 Backup

		TRANSPORTATION FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

		Name and Title



		Name of Contracting Entity: _________________________________________________________

		Contract No. and Name:  _________________________________________________________

		_________________________________________________________














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Carlos Christian


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a Project Framework Agreement with the Georgia Department of Transportation for a 


multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT PI No. 0012878).


This is a federal-aid project programed through the Atlanta Regional Commission's PLAN 2040 that provides financial assistance for the 


design of a pedestrian bridge over State Route 54.  The project is part of Fayetteville's master plan to provide a multi-use trail system 


between existing subdivisions, schools, medical centers, shopping, dining and the growing Pinewood Movie Studio complex.  It is 


anticipated that much of the path system will be developed by the private sector.  This key component, however, is a public project 


because of the complexities and cost associated with a bridge over a state highway.  Property owners and stakeholders for the project 


are supportive.   


 


Fayette County is the official sponsor but the project will be managed and funded (local match) by the City of Fayetteville.  This 


relationship was used to help ensure the project would get funding through the Atlanta Regional Commission and to take advantage of 


the County's "certified" status from the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) to manage these types of projects.  


 


Back-up information: GDOT Project Framework Agreement for 0012878.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a Project Framework Agreement with the Georgia Department of Transportation for a 


multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT PI No. 0012878).


Design and engineering for the projects requires a local match of up to $170,000.  Via a proposed Intergovernmental Agreement, the City 


of Fayetteville would be responsible for all local funding.  


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County working together for the betterment of all their citizens.


ConsentThursday, April 10, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #4







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


11                                                    
 


 
 


AGREEMENT  
 


BETWEEN 
 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


AND 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY 
 


FOR 
 


TRANSPORTATION FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
 


This Framework Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of 


____________, 20_ _, by and between the DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, 


an agency of the State of Georgia, hereinafter called the "DEPARTMENT", 


and  FAYETTE COUNTY , acting by and through its Board of Commissioners, 


hereinafter called the "LOCAL GOVERNMENT". 


 


WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has represented to the DEPARTMENT a 


desire to improve the transportation facility described in Attachment “A”, attached and 


incorporated herein by reference and hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT"; and 


 


  WHEREAS, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT has represented to the DEPARTMENT 


a desire to participate in certain activities, as applicable, including the funding of certain 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


22                                                    
 


portions of the PROJECT and the DEPARTMENT has relied upon such 


representations; and 


WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has expressed a willingness to participate in 


certain activities of the PROJECT as set forth in this Agreement; and 


 


WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has provided an estimated cost to the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT for its participation in certain activities of the PROJECT; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Constitution authorizes intergovernmental agreements whereby 


state and local entities may contract with one another “for joint services, for the 


provision of services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or equipment; but such 


contracts must deal with activities, services or facilities which the parties are authorized 


by law to undertake or provide.”  Ga. Constitution Article IX, §III, ¶I(a). 


 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made and of the 


benefits to flow from one to the other, the DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT hereby agree each with the other as follows: 


 


1. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT has applied for and received “Qualification 


Certification” to administer federal-aid projects.  The GDOT Local Administered Project 


(LAP) Certification Committee has reviewed, confirmed and approved the certification 


for the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to develop federal project(s) within the scope of its 


certification using the DEPARTMENT’S Local Administered Project Manual procedures.  







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


33                                                    
 


The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall contribute to the PROJECT by funding all or certain 


portions of the PROJECT costs for the preconstruction engineering (design) activities, 


hereinafter referred to as “PE”, all reimbursable utility relocations, all non-reimbursable 


utilities owned by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, railroad costs, right of way acquisitions 


and construction, as specified in Attachment “A”, affixed hereto and incorporated herein 


by reference.  In addition, the September 17, 2010 Planning Office memorandum titled 


“Preliminary Engineering Oversight for Project Managers/Project Delivery Staff”, 


outlines the five (5) conditions when the LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be requested to 


fund the PE oversight activities at 100%, and is enclosed as Attachment “C” and 


incorporated herein by reference.   Expenditures incurred by the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT or subsequent funding 


agreements shall not be considered for reimbursement by the DEPARTMENT.  PE 


expenditures incurred by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT after execution of this 


AGREEMENT shall be reimbursed by the DEPARTMENT once a written notice to 


proceed is given by the DEPARTMENT.   


 


2. The DEPARTMENT shall contribute to the PROJECT by funding all or certain 


portions of the PROJECT costs for the PE, right of way acquisitions, reimbursable utility 


relocations, railroad costs, or construction (specified in Attachment “A”) affixed hereto 


and incorporated herein by reference, and none of the five (5) conditions apply from the 


Planning Office memorandum dated September 17, 2010 (specified in Attachment “C”).  


 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


44                                                    
 


3. The DEPARTMENT shall provide a PE Oversight Estimate to the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT, if appropriate, appended as Attachment “D” and incorporated by 


reference as if fully set out herein.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be responsible for 


providing payment, which represents100% of the DEPARTMENT’s PE Oversight 


Estimate at the time of the Project Framework Agreement execution. 


 


If at any time the PE Oversight funds are depleted within $5,000 of the remaining 


PE Oversight balance and project activities and tasks are still outstanding, the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall, upon request, make additional payment to the DEPARTMENT.  


The payment shall be determined by prorating the percentage complete and using the 


same estimate methodology as provided in Attachment “D”. If there is an unused 


balance after completion of all tasks and phases of the project, then pending a final 


audit, the remainder will be refunded to the sponsor.  


             


4.  It is understood and agreed by the DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT that the funding portion as identified in Attachment “A” of this 


Agreement only applies to the PE.  The Right of Way and Construction funding estimate 


levels as specified in Attachment “A” are provided herein for planning purposes and do 


not constitute a funding commitment for right of way and construction.  The 


DEPARTMENT will prepare LOCAL GOVERNMENT Specific Activity Agreements for 


funding applicable to other activities when appropriate. 


 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


55                                                    
 


Further, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for repayment of any 


expended federal funds if the PROJECT does not proceed forward to completion due to 


a lack of available funding in future PROJECT phases, changes in local priorities or 


cancellation of the PROJECT by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT without concurrence by 


the DEPARTMENT.  


 


5. In accordance with Georgia Code 32-2-2, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be 


responsible for all costs for the continual maintenance and operations of any and all 


sidewalks and the grass strip between the curb and sidewalk within the PROJECT 


limits.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall also be responsible for the continual 


maintenance and operation of all lighting systems installed to illuminate any 


roundabouts constructed as part of this PROJECT.  Furthermore, the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall also be responsible for the maintaining of all landscaping installed 


as part of any roundabout constructed as part of this PROJECT. 


  


6.  Both the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the DEPARTMENT hereby acknowledge 


that Time is of the Essence.  It is agreed that both parties shall adhere to the schedule 


of activities currently established in the approved Transportation Improvement 


Program/State Transportation Improvement Program, hereinafter referred to as 


“TIP/STIP”.  Furthermore, all parties shall adhere to the detailed project schedule as 


approved by the DEPARTMENT, attached as Attachment “B” and incorporated herein 


by reference.  In the completion of respective commitments contained herein, if a 


change in the schedule is needed, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall notify the 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


66                                                    
 


DEPARTMENT in writing of the proposed schedule change and the DEPARTMENT 


shall acknowledge the change through written response letter; provided that the 


DEPARTMENT shall have final authority for approving any change. 


  If, for any reason, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT does not produce acceptable 


deliverables in accordance with the approved schedule, the DEPARTMENT reserves 


the right to delay the PROJECT’s implementation until funds can be re-identified for 


right of way or construction phases, as applicable. 


 


7. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall certify that the regulations for 


“CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES WITH FEDERAL PROCUREMENT 


REQUIREMENTS, STATE AUDIT REQUIREMENTS, and FEDERAL AUDIT 


REQUIREMENTS” are understood and will comply in full with said provisions. 


        


8.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall accomplish the PE activities for the 


PROJECT.  The PE activities shall be accomplished in accordance with the 


DEPARTMENT's Plan Development Process hereinafter referred to as ”PDP”, the 


applicable guidelines of the American Association of State Highway and Transportation 


Officials, hereinafter referred to as “AASHTO”,  the DEPARTMENT's Standard 


Specifications Construction of Transportation Systems, and all applicable design 


guidelines and policies of the DEPARTMENT to produce a cost effective PROJECT.  


Failure to follow the PDP and all applicable guidelines and policies will jeopardize the 


use of Federal Funds in some or all categories outlined in this agreement, and it shall 


be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to make up the loss of that funding.   







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


77                                                    
 


The LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s responsibility for PE activities shall include, but is not 


limited to the following items:   


a.   Prepare the PROJECT Concept Report and Design Data Book in 


accordance with the format used by the DEPARTMENT.  The concept for the 


PROJECT shall be developed to accommodate the future traffic volumes as 


generated by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT as provided for in paragraph 8b and 


approved by the DEPARTMENT.  The concept report shall be approved by the 


DEPARTMENT prior to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT beginning further development 


of the PROJECT plans.  It is recognized by the parties that the approved concept 


may be updated or modified by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT as required by the 


DEPARTMENT and re-approved by the DEPARTMENT during the course of PE 


due to updated guidelines, public input, environmental requirements, Value 


Engineering recommendations, Public Interest Determination (PID) for utilities, 


utility/railroad conflicts, or right of way considerations. 


b.  Prepare a Traffic Study for the PROJECT that includes Average Daily 


Traffic, hereinafter referred to as “ADT”, volumes for the base year (year the 


PROJECT is expected to be open to traffic) and design year (base year plus 20 


years) along with Design Hour Volumes, hereinafter referred to as “DHV”, for the 


design year.  DHV includes morning (AM) and evening (PM) peaks and other 


significant peak times.  The Study shall show all through and turning movement 


volumes at intersections for the ADT and DHV volumes and shall indicate the 


percentage of trucks on the facility. The Study shall also include signal warrant 


evaluations for any additional proposed signals on the PROJECT. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


88                                                    
 


c.   Prepare environmental studies, documentation reports and complete 


Environmental Document for the PROJECT along with all environmental re-


evaluations required that show the PROJECT is in compliance with the provisions of 


the National Environmental Policy Act or the Georgia Environmental Policy Act as 


per the DEPARTMENT’s Environmental Procedures Manual, as appropriate to the 


PROJECT funding.  This shall include any and all archaeological, historical, 


ecological, air, noise, community involvement, environmental justice, flood plains, 


underground storage tanks, and hazardous waste site studies required.  The 


completed Environmental Document approval shall occur prior to Right of Way 


funding authorization.  A re-evaluation is required for any design change as 


described in Chapter 7 of the Environmental Procedures Manual.  In addition, a re-


evaluation document approval shall occur prior to any Federal funding 


authorizations if the latest approved document is more than 6 months old. The 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall submit to the DEPARTMENT all studies, documents 


and reports for review and approval by the DEPARTMENT, the FHWA and other 


environmental resource agencies.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide 


Environmental staff to attend all PROJECT related meetings where Environmental 


issues are discussed.  Meetings include, but are not limited to, concept, field plan 


reviews and value engineering studies. 


d.   Prepare all PROJECT public hearing and public information displays and 


conduct all required public hearings and public information meetings with 


appropriate staff in accordance with DEPARTMENT practice. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


99                                                    
 


e.   Perform all surveys, mapping, soil investigations and pavement evaluations 


needed for design of the PROJECT as per the appropriate DEPARTMENT Manual. 


 


f.    Perform all work required to obtain all applicable PROJECT permits, 


including, but not limited to, Cemetery, TVA and US Army Corps of Engineers 


permits, Stream Buffer Variances and Federal Emergency Management Agency 


(FEMA) approvals.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide all mitigation 


required for the project, including but not limited to permit related mitigation.  All 


mitigation costs are considered PE costs.  PROJECT permits and non-construction 


related mitigation must be obtained and completed 3 months prior to the scheduled 


let date.  These efforts shall be coordinated with the DEPARTMENT.  


g.   Prepare the stormwater drainage design for the PROJECT and any required 


hydraulic studies for FEMA Floodways within the PROJECT limits.  Acquire of all 


necessary permits associated with the Hydrology Study or drainage design. 


h.   Prepare utility relocation plans for the PROJECT following the 


DEPARTMENT's policies and procedures for identification, coordination and conflict 


resolution of existing and proposed utility facilities on the PROJECT.  These policies 


and procedures, in part, require the Local Government to submit all requests for 


existing, proposed, and relocated facilities to each utility owner within the project 


area.  Copies of all such correspondence, including executed agreements for 


reimbursable utility/railroad relocations, shall be forwarded to the DEPARTMENT's 


Project Manager and the District Utilities Engineer and require that any conflicts with 


the PROJECT be resolved by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT.  If it is determined that 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1100                                                    
 


the PROJECT is located on an on-system route or is a DEPARTMENT LET 


PROJECT, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the District Utilities Engineer shall 


ensure that permit applications are approved for each utility company in conflict with 


the project.  If it is determined through the DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager and 


State Utilities Office during the concept or design phases the need to utilize 


Overhead/Subsurface Utility Engineering, hereinafter referred to as “SUE”, to obtain 


the existing utilities, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for acquiring 


those services.  SUE costs are considered PE costs.  


i.   Prepare, in English units, Preliminary Construction plans, Right of Way plans 


and Final Construction plans that include the appropriate sections listed in the Plan 


Presentation Guide, hereinafter referred to as ”PPG”, for all phases of the PDP.  All 


drafting and design work performed on the project shall be done utilizing 


Microstation V8i and InRoads software respectively using the DEPARTMENT’s 


Electronic Data Guidelines. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall further be 


responsible for making all revisions to the final right of way plans and construction 


plans, as deemed necessary by the DEPARTMENT, for whatever reason, as 


needed to acquire the right of way and construct the PROJECT. 


j.   Prepare PROJECT cost estimates for construction, Right of Way and 


Utility/railroad relocation at the following project stages: Concept, Preliminary Field 


Plan Review, Right of Way plan approval (Right of Way cost only), Final Field Plan 


Review and Final Plan submission using the applicable method approved by the 


DEPARTMENT.  The cost estimates shall also be updated annually if the noted 


project stages occur at a longer frequency.  Failure of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1111                                                    
 


to provide timely and accurate cost estimates may delay the PROJECT’s 


implementation until additional funds can be identified for right of way or 


construction, as applicable. 


k.   Provide certification, by a Georgia Registered Professional Engineer, that 


the Design and Construction plans have been prepared under the guidance of the 


professional engineer and are in accordance with AASHTO and DEPARTMENT 


Design Policies.  


l.   Provide certification, by a Level II Certified Design Professional that the 


Erosion Control Plans have been prepared under the guidance of the certified 


professional in accordance with the current Georgia National Pollutant Discharge 


Elimination System. 


m.   Provide a written certification that all appropriate staff (employees and 


consultants) involved in the PROJECT have attended or are scheduled to attend the 


Department’s PDP Training Course.  The written certification shall be received by 


the Department no later than the first day of February of every calendar year until all 


phases have been completed. 


 


9.  The Primary Consultant firm or subconsultants hired by the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT to provide services on the PROJECT shall be prequalified with the 


DEPARTMENT in the appropriate area-classes.  The DEPARTMENT shall, on request, 


furnish the LOCAL GOVERNMENT with a list of prequalified consultant firms in the 


appropriate area-classes.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall comply with all applicable 


state and federal regulations for the procurement of design services and in accordance 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1122                                                    
 


with the Brooks Architect-Engineers Act of 1972, better known as the Brooks Act, for 


any consultant hired to perform work on the PROJECT. 


 


10. The DEPARTMENT shall review and has approval authority for all aspects of 


the PROJECT provided however this review and approval does not relieve the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT of its responsibilities under the terms of this agreement.  The 


DEPARTMENT will work with the FHWA to obtain all needed approvals as deemed 


necessary with information furnished by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT.   


 


11. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for the design of all bridge(s) 


and preparation of any required hydraulic and hydrological studies within the limits of 


this PROJECT in accordance with the DEPARTMENT’s policies and guidelines.  The 


LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall perform all necessary survey efforts in order to complete 


the hydraulic and hydrological studies and the design of the bridge(s).  The final bridge 


plans shall be incorporated into this PROJECT as a part of this Agreement. 


 


12. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT unless otherwise noted in Attachment “A” shall be 


responsible for funding all LOCAL GOVERNMENT owned utility relocations and all 


other reimbursable utility/railroad costs.  The utility costs shall include but are not limited 


to PE, easement acquisition, and construction activities necessary for the utility/railroad 


to accommodate the PROJECT. The terms for any such reimbursable relocations shall 


be laid out in an agreement that is supported by plans, specifications, and itemized 


costs of the work agreed upon and shall be executed prior to certification by the 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1133                                                    
 


DEPARTMENT.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall certify via written letter to the 


DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager and District Utilities Engineer that all Utility owners’ 


exisiting and proposed facilities are shown on the plans with no conflicts 3 months prior 


to advertising the PROJECT for bids and that any required agreements for reimbursable 


utility/railroad costs have been fully executed.  Further, this certification letter shall state 


that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT understands that it is responsible for the costs of any 


additional reimbursable utility/railroad conflicts that arise during construction. 


 


13. The DEPARTMENT will be responsible for all railroad coordination on 


DEPARTMENT Let and/or State Route (On-System) projects; the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall address concerns, comments, and requirements to the 


satisfaction of the Railroad and the DEPARTMENT.  If the LOCAL GOVERNMENT is 


shown to LET the construction in Attachment “A” on off-system routes, the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for all railroad coordination and addressing 


concerns, comments, and requirements to the satisfaction of the Railroad and the 


DEPARTMENT for PROJECT.   


 


14. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for acquiring a Value 


Engineering Consultant for the DEPARTMENT to conduct a Value Engineering Study if 


the total estimated PROJECT cost is $50 million or more. The Value Engineering Study 


cost is considered a PE cost.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide project related 


design data and plans to be evaluated in the study along with appropriate staff to 


present and answer questions about the PROJECT to the study team.  The LOCAL 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1144                                                    
 


GOVERNMENT shall provide responses to the study recommendations indicating 


whether they will be implemented or not.  If not, a valid response for not implementing 


shall be provided.  Total project costs include PE, right of way, and construction, 


reimbursable utility/railroad costs. 


 


15. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT, unless shown otherwise on Attachment “A”, shall 


acquire the Right of way in accordance with the law and the rules and regulations of the 


FHWA including, but not limited to, Title 23, United States Code; 23 CFR 710, et. Seq., 


and 49 CFR Part 24 and the rules and regulations of the DEPARTMENT.  Upon the 


DEPARTMENT’s approval of the PROJECT right of way plans, verification that the 


approved environmental document is valid and current, a written notice to proceed will 


be provided by the DEPARTMENT for the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to stake the right of 


way and proceed with all pre-acquisition right of way activities.  The LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT shall not proceed to property negotiation and acquisition whether or not 


the right of way funding is Federal, State or Local, until the right of way agreement 


named “Contract for the Acquisition of Right of Way” prepared by the DEPARTMENT’s 


Office of Right of Way is executed between the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and the 


DEPARTMENT.  Failure of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to adhere to the provisions and 


requirements specified in the acquisition contract may result in the loss of Federal 


funding for the PROJECT and it will be the responsibility of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT 


to make up the loss of that funding. Right of way costs eligible for reimbursement 


include land and improvement costs, property damage values, relocation assistance 


expenses and contracted property management costs. Non reimbursable right of way 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1155                                                    
 


costs include administrative expenses such as appraisal, consultant, attorney fees and 


any in-house property management or staff expenses.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT 


shall certify that all required right of way is obtained and cleared of obstructions, 


including underground storage tanks, 3 months prior to advertising the PROJECT for 


bids.  


 


16. The DEPARTMENT unless otherwise shown in Attachment “A” shall be 


responsible for Letting the PROJECT to construction, solely responsible for executing 


any agreements with all applicable utility/railroad companies and securing and awarding 


the construction contract for the PROJECT when the following items have been 


completed and submitted by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT:  


 


aa..  SSuubbmmiittttaall  ooff  aacccceeppttaabbllee  PPRROOJJEECCTT  PPEE  aaccttiivviittyy  ddeelliivveerraabblleess  nnootteedd  iinn  tthhiiss  


AAggrreeeemmeenntt..  


bb..  CCeerrttiiffiiccaattiioonn  tthhaatt  aallll  nneeeeddeedd  rriigghhttss  ooff  wwaayy  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  oobbttaaiinneedd  aanndd  cclleeaarreedd  ooff  


oobbssttrruuccttiioonnss..    


cc..  CCeerrttiiffiiccaattiioonn  tthhaatt  tthhee  eennvviirroonnmmeennttaall  ddooccuummeenntt  iiss  ccuurrrreenntt  aanndd  aallll  nneeeeddeedd  


ppeerrmmiittss  aanndd  mmiittiiggaattiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  PPRROOJJEECCTT  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  oobbttaaiinneedd..  


d.   Certification that all Utility/Railroad facilities, existing and proposed, within 


the PROJECT limits are shown, any conflicts have been resolved and reimbursable 


agreements, if applicable, are executed. 


If the LOCAL GOVERNMENT is shown to LET the construction in Attachment “A”, 


the LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide the above deliverables and certifications and 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1166                                                    
 


shall follow the requirements stated in Chapters 10, 11, 12 and 13 of the 


DEPARTMENT’s Local Administered Project Manual.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT 


shall be responsible for providing qualified construction oversight with their personnel or 


by employing a Consultant firm prequalified in Area Class 8.01 to perform construction 


oversight.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for employing a GDOT 


prequalified consultant in area classes 6.04a and 6.04b for all materials testing on the 


PROJECT, with the exception of field concrete testing.  All materials testing, including 


field concrete testing shall be performed by GDOT certified technicians who are certified 


for the specific testing they are performing on the PROJECT.  The testing firm(s) and 


the individual technicians must be submitted for approval prior to Construction.                    


         


 17. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide a review and recommendation by 


the engineer of record concerning all shop drawings prior to the DEPARTMENT review 


and approval.  The DEPARTMENT shall have final authority concerning all shop 


drawings. 


 


18. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees that all reports, plans, drawings, studies, 


specifications, estimates, maps, computations, computer files and printouts, and any 


other data prepared under the terms of this Agreement shall become the property of the 


DEPARTMENT if the PROJECT is being let by the DEPARTMENT.  This data shall be 


organized, indexed, bound, and delivered to the DEPARTMENT no later than the 


advertisement of the PROJECT for letting.  The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1177                                                    
 


use this material without restriction or limitation and without compensation to the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT. 


 


19. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for the professional quality, 


technical accuracy, and the coordination of all reports, designs, drawings, 


specifications, and other services furnished by or on behalf of the LOCAL 


GOVERNMENT pursuant to this Agreement.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall correct 


or revise, or cause to be corrected or revised, any errors or deficiencies in the reports, 


designs, drawings, specifications, and other services furnished for this PROJECT.  


Failure by the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to address the errors, omissions or deficiencies 


within 30 days of notification shall cause the LOCAL GOVERNMENT to assume all 


responsibility for construction delays and supplemental agreements caused by the 


errors and deficiencies.  All revisions shall be coordinated with the DEPARTMENT prior 


to issuance.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall also be responsible for any claim, 


damage, loss or expense, to the extent allowed by law that is attributable to errors, 


omissions, or negligent acts related to the designs, drawings, specifications, and other 


services furnished by or on behalf of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT pursuant to this 


Agreement. 


 


20.  The DEPARTMENT shall be furnished with a copy of all contracts and 


agreements between the LOCAL GOVERNMENT and any other agency or contractor 


associated with construction activities.  The DEPARTMENT’s Project Manager shall be 


the primary point of contact unless otherwise specified. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1188                                                    
 


 


21.  The LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall provide the DEPARTMENT with a detailed 


project schedule that reflects milestones, deliverables with durations for all pertinent 


activities to develop critical path elements.  An electronic project schedule shall be 


submitted to the Project Manager after execution of this agreement. 


          


 This Agreement is made and entered into in FULTON COUNTY, GEORGIA, and 


shall be governed and construed under the laws of the State of Georgia. 


The covenants herein contained shall, except as otherwise provided, accrue to the 


benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


1199                                                    
 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the DEPARTMENT and the LOCAL GOVERNMENT have 


caused these presents to be executed under seal by their duly authorized 


representatives. 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
 
BY: _________________________ 
       Commissioner    
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
FAYETTE COUNTY 
 
 
 
BY: _____________________________ 
       Name 
       Title 
 
 
Signed, sealed and delivered this _____ 
day of ________________, 20__, in the 
presence of: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Witness  
  
 
____________________________ 
Notary Public  
 
  
This Agreement approved by Local 
Government, the ______day of 
_____________, 20__. 
     
Attest      
 
 
______________________________ 
Name and Title 
 
 
 
 
FEIN:    ________________________







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2200                                                    
 


  
  
  


Attachment "A" Funding Sources and Distribution


Percentage PE Amount
Maximum PE 


Participation Amount 
($)


Participant
PE Activity 


Sponsor
Percentage Amount Participant Percentage Amount


1 80% $749,000.00 $749,000.00 Federal 0% $0.00 Federal 80% $749,000.00
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State 0% $0.00 State 0% $0.00
3 20% $187,250.00 *N/A Local 0% $0.00 Local 20% $187,250.00
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other 0% $0.00 Other 0% $0.00


Total 100% $936,250.00 0% $0.00 100% $936,250.00
*Total PE costs > $936,250.00 will be 100% Local


Percentage ROW Amount
Maximum ROW 


Participation Amount 
($)


Participant Acquisition By:
Acquisition 


Fund By:
Utility Funding By:


Railroad Funding 
By:


1 0% $0.00 $0.00 Federal
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State
3 100% $170,000.00 *N/A Local
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other


Total 100% $170,000.00 100% 100%
*Total RW costs > $170,000.00 will be 100% Local


Percentage CST Amount
Maximum CST 


Participation Amount 
($)


Participant Letting By:
Testing (Phase V) 


Funding By:
Inspection  (Phase 


VI) Funding By:


1 0% $0.00 $0.00 Federal
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State
3 100% $2,123,500.00 *N/A Local
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other


Total 100% $2,123,500.00 100% 100%
*Total Construction costs > $2,123,500.00 will be 100% Local


Percentage TOTAL Amount Maximum Participation 
Amount ($) Participant


1 23% $749,000.00 $749,000.00 Federal
2 0% $0.00 $0.00 State
3 77% $2,480,750.00 N/A Local
4 0% $0.00 $0.00 Other


Total 100% $3,229,750.00


The GDOT Oversight check shall be remitted to the District Planning and Programming Engineer along with the signed Project Framework Agreement (PFA).


NOTE:  Separate GDOT P.O.s will be established for each funding phase.


government will only be reimbursed the percentage of the accrued invoiced amounts up to but 
not   to exceed the maximum amount indicated.  


2GDOT Oversight for PE (Phase I) is detailed in Attachment "D".


GDOT Oversight for CST (Phase III)2


3 Right-of-Way and Construction amounts shown are for budget planning purposes only.


Su
m


m
ar


y o
f P


ha
se


s I
 


Th
ro


ug
h I


II
Sponsor:  FAYETTE COUNTY  Project No.:  0012878  


Local Government Local Government


Preliminary Engineering - Phase I1 GDOT Oversight for PE (Phase I)2 Preliminary Engineering Grand Total 
(Phase I)


Utility Relocation - Phase IV


Attach "Project Manager" Project Charging Form for Approval


Local Government


Pr
eli


m
ina


ry
 


En
gin


ee
rin


g P
ha


se
 I


Ri
gh


t o
f W


ay
 Ph


as
e I


I
Co


ns
tru


cti
on


 Ph
as


e I
II


Local 
Government


Ut
ilit


y P
ha


se
 IV


Co
ns


tru
cti


on
 O


ve
rsi


gh
t 


Ph
as


es
 V


 &
 V


I


Local Government


Grand Total  - All Phases I through III


Right of Way - Phase II3


Local 
Government


Local 
Government


Construction - Phase III3


Local Govt


1The maximum allowable GDOT participating amounts for PE phase are shown above.  The local 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2211                                                    
 


ATTACHMENT “B” Project Timeline 
  


PPII  ##  00001122887788  ––  FFaayyeettttee  CCoouunnttyy  
Proposed Project Timeline 
 


 
 
Environmental Phase 
 
 
Concept Phase 
 
 
Preliminary Plan Phase 


    


    


    


    


    


   


 
 
Right of Way Phase  


    


   


   
 
Deadlines for  Execute June 2014  December 2014 February, 2015 August, 2015 
Responsible Parties Agreement (Approve  (Approve Env. (Authorize Right (Authorize 
     Concept)     Document)      of Way funds)    Const. funds) 
  
  
  
  
  


AAnnnnuuaall  RReeppoorrttiinngg  RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss  
  


TThhee  LLooccaall  GGoovveerrnnmmeenntt  sshhaallll  pprroovviiddee  aa  wwrriitttteenn  ssttaattuuss  rreeppoorrtt  ttoo  tthhee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt’’ss  PPrroojjeecctt  MMaannaaggeerr  wwiitthh  tthhee  aaccttuuaall  pphhaassee  
ccoommpplleettiioonn  ddaattee((ss))  aanndd  tthhee  ppeerrcceenntt  ccoommpplleettee//pprrooppoosseedd  ccoommpplleettiioonn  ddaattee  ooff  iinnccoommpplleettee  pphhaasseess..    TThhee  wwrriitttteenn  ssttaattuuss  rreeppoorrtt  sshhaallll  
bbee  rreecceeiivveedd  bbyy  tthhee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt  nnoo  llaatteerr  tthhaann  tthhee  ffiirrsstt  ddaayy  ooff  FFeebbrruuaarryy  ooff  eevveerryy  ccaalleennddaarr  yyeeaarr  uunnttiill  aallll  pphhaasseess  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  
ccoommpplleetteedd..







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2222                                                    
 


  


ATTACHMENT “C” 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2233                                                    
 


  







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2244                                                    
 


ATTACHMENT “D” 
GDOT Oversight Estimate for Locally Administered Project 


 
 


PI Number Project Number 


County Project Length  Miles 


Project Manager Project Cost 


Project Type 


Project 
Description 
 
Expected Life of Project  Years 


 


Project Phase Oversight 
Hours  Oversight Cost 


11..  PPrroojjeecctt  IInniittiiaattiioonn  0 $ 0.00 


22..  CCoonncceepptt  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  0 $ 0.00 


33..  DDaattaabbaassee  PPrreeppaarraattiioonn**  0 $ 0.00 


44..  PPrreelliimmiinnaarryy  DDeessiiggnn  0 $ 0.00 


55..  EEnnvviirroonnmmeennttaall  0 $ 0.00 


66..  FFiinnaall  DDeessiiggnn  0 $ 0.00 


Travel Expenses  $ --    


Total Oversight Estimate 0 $ 0.00 
Percentage of Project 


Cost .00%   
 


 


 


 


 
  
  
  
  
  
  


 
ATTACHMENT “E” 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


GDOT Oversight Estimate for Consultant and Locally Administered Projects – Version 2.01 – September 2011 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2255                                                    
 


GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT 
AFFIDAVIT 


 
Name of Contracting Entity: _________________________________________________________ 


Contract No. and Name:  _________________________________________________________ 


    _________________________________________________________ 


By executing this affidavit, the undersigned person or entity verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91, 
stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or entity which is contracting with the Georgia Department of 
Transportation has registered with, is authorized to participate in, and is participating in the federal work 
authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, or any subsequent replacement program, in accordance with 
the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91.   
 
The undersigned person or entity further agrees that it will continue to use the federal work authorization program 
throughout the contract period, and it will contract for the physical performance of services in satisfaction of such 
contract only with subcontractors who present an affidavit to the undersigned with the information required by 
O.C.GA. § 13-10-91(b).   
 
The undersigned person or entity further agrees to maintain records of such compliance and provide a copy of each 
such verification to the Georgia Department of Transportation within five (5) business days after any subcontractor 
is retained to perform such service. 


 
 
_______________________________________  
E-Verify / Company Identification Number  


 
_______________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent 
 


 
_______________________________________  
Date of Authorization 
 


 
_______________________________________ 
Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent 


  
_______________________________________ 
Title of Authorized Officer or Agent 
 


  
_______________________________________ 
Date 
 


SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 
 
_____ DAY OF ______________________, 201_ 
 
________________________________________  [NOTARY SEAL] 
Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: ___________________ 







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2266                                                    
 


AATTTTAACCHHMMEENNTT  ““FF””  
  


TITLE VI INTRODUCTION 
 
 


As a sub-recipient of federal funds from Georgia Department of Transportation, all 
municipalities are required to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which provides 
that: 
 
“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national  
origin, be excluded from participation in, or be denied the benefits of, or be subjected 
To discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal assistance under 
This title or carried out under this title.” 
 
Additionally, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, expanded the definition of the terms 
“programs and activities” to include all programs or activities of federal recipients, 
subrecipients, and contractors, whether or not such programs and activities are federally 
assisted.  
 
The provisions of Title VI apply to all contractors, subcontractors, consultants and suppliers. 
And is a condition for receiving federal funds. All sub recipients must sign Title VI assurances 
that they will not discriminate as stated in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
In the event that the sub recipient distributes federal aid funds to second tier entity, the sub-
recipient shall include Title VI language in all written documents and will monitor for 
compliance. If, these assurances are not signed, the City or County government may be 
subjected to the loss of federal assistance. 
 
 All sub recipients that receive federal assistance must also include Federal Highways 
Administrations 1273 in their contracts. The FHWA 1273 sets out guidance for ensuring non 
discrimination and encouraging minority participation and outreach. 
 
Enclosed you will find Title VI acknowledgment form and the Title VI assurances. The Title VI 
acknowledgment form and Title VI assurances must be signed by your local government official 
if it has not been signed.  


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
  







00001122887788  FFAAYYEETTTTEE  
  


RReevviisseedd::  1122//22001111  
  


2277                                                    
 


ATTACHMENT “F” 
 
 


TITLE VI ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 
 
 


 The___________________________________ assures that no person shall on the grounds or 
race, color, national origin or sex as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the 
Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any City or County sponsored program or 
activity.  The_______________________________ assures that every effort will be made to 
ensure non discrimination in all of its programs or activities, whether those programs are 
federally funded or not. 
 
Assurance of compliance therefore falls under the proper authority of the City Council or the 
County Board of Commissioners. The Title VI Coordinator or Liaison is authorized to ensure 
compliance with provisions of this policy and with the Law, including the requirements of 23 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 200 and 49 CFR 21. 
 
____________________________________                                                     _______________ 
  Official Name and Title                                                                                      Date                                                  
 
 
 Citations: 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 42 USC 2000d to 2000d-4;42 USC 4601to 4655;23 USC 
109(h); 23 USC 324; DOT Order 1050.2; EO 12250; EO 12898; 28CFR 50.3 
 
Other Nondiscrimination Authorities Expanded the range and scope of Title VI coverage and 
applicability 
 
The 1970 Uniform Act (42 USC 4601) 
Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 790) 
The 1973 Federal-aid Highway Act (23 USC 324) 
The 1975 Age Discrimination Act (42 USC 6101) 
Implementing Regulations (49 CFR 21 & 23 CFR 200) 
Executive Order 12898 on Environmental Justice (EJ) 
Executive Order 13166 on Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
 
 





		Public Works- Project Framewo...ement Agenda Request File

		Public Works- Project Framework Agreement Backup

		TRANSPORTATION FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

		Name and Title



		Name of Contracting Entity: _________________________________________________________

		Contract No. and Name:  _________________________________________________________

		_________________________________________________________












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


March 27, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on March 27, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Randy Ognio


Commissioner Absent: Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the March 27, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Ms. Rene Dodson, a home-school student who participates in the American
Legion Oratorical Competition and who will represent the State of Georgia in the nationals, and he asked Ms.
Dodson to speak on the Freedom of Religion in the United States.  Ms. Dodson then spoke about Freedom of
Religion.  Commissioner Barlow then presented Ms. Dodson with a certificate recognizing her accomplishments.  A
copy of the certificate, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Barlow asked Pastor Al Meade from New Hope Baptist Church to offer the Invocation, and Pastor
Meade did so.


Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as printed with two additions by adding the Proclamation for Earth
Day as Agenda Number 7b and to add a requested meeting change by changing the meeting time for the April 10,
2014 Board of Commissioners meeting as Agenda Number 12b.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the meeting.



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Fayette County’s 2014 All-County Girls and Boys Basketball Team.


Chairman Steve Brown and Mr. Christopher Dunn, Sports Editor of the Fayette Daily News, introduced the
2014 All-County Girls and Boys Basketball Team.   The following players and individuals were recognized:


2014 Honorable Mention Team All-County Girls Basketball Players


Christine Cerezola– McIntosh High School
Sydney Jarmon–Sandy Creek High School
Maddie O’Rourke– McIntosh High School
DeLayne Rotolo–McIntosh High School


2014 Honorable Mention Team All-County Boys Basketball Players


Chib Emefo– Our Lady of Mercy Catholic High School
Dylan Terrell– Our Lady of Mercy Catholic High School
Albert Wilson- Our Lady of Mercy Catholic High School
Javon Jackson- Sandy Creek High School
Justin Sumpter- Sandy Creek High School
Kevel Smith– Fayette County High School


2014 Second Team All-County Girls Basketball Player


Jasmine Jones– Sandy Creek High School


2014 Second Team All-County Boys Basketball Players


Brandon Lindsey– Sandy Creek High School
Dishon Lowery– McIntosh High School
William Washington– McIntosh High School


2014 First Team All-County Girls Basketball Players


Kayla Smith- Fayette County High School
Cassidy Williams– McIntosh High School
Jada Coggins– Whitewater High School


2014 First Team All-County Boys Basketball Players


Jordan Lyons– McIntosh High School
Christian Turner–Sandy Creek High School


Mr. Dunn briefly spoke about 2014 County Girls’ Basketball Coach of the Year John Strickland, 2014
County Boys Basketball Coach of the Year Willie Reese, 2014 County Girls Basketball Player of the Year
Katie Wilson, and 2015 County Boys Basketball Player of the Year Philip Cofer.  Copies of the request and







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 3


Certificates of Recognition, identified as “Attachment 2,” follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


2. Recognition of Carter and Olivia, the founders of One More Generation.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced Carter and Olivia, the founders of One More Generation, to the
Board and the audience, and he read a resolution recognizing One More Generation.  Olivia and Carter
spoke briefly about One More Generation.  Copies of the request and the Recognition of One More
Generation, identified as “Attachment 3", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


3. Proclamation recognizing April 2014 as “Confederate History and Heritage Month” and April 26,
2014 as “Confederate Memorial Day.”


Commissioner David Barlow read a proclamation recognizing April 2014 as “Confederate History and
Heritage Month” and April 26, 2014 as “Confederate Memorial Day.”  Mr. Scott Gilbert spoke about the
importance of Confederate History and Confederate Memorial Day.  A copy of the request and
proclamation, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


4. Recognition of Mr. Brad Boemanns as the 2014 Fayette County Firefighter of the Year.


Fayette County Fire Chief David Scarbrough, along with several firefighters and Public Safety personnel,
recognized Mr. Brad Boemanns as the 2014 Fayette County Firefighter of the Year.  The Board and
audience congratulated Mr. Boemanns for his recognition with a standing ovation.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Recognition of Nina Madrid, Business Systems Administrator, and Dianne Crownover, Permits
Technician, for being selected to receive the Team Player Award.


Commissioner David Barlow spoke briefly about the Team Player Award.  He then asked Permits and
Development Director Joe Scarbrough to speak about Permits Technician Di Crownover, who received the
award.  Information Systems Director Phil Frieder was then asked to speak on behalf of Business Systems
Administrator Nina Madrid who also received the Team Player Award.  The Board congratulated each lady
on being awarded with the Team Player Award. Copies of the request and the certifications presented to
both ladies, identified as “Attachment 6,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Presentation by Fayette County’s auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC., of the results of
the Fiscal Year 2013 annual audit.


Chairman Brown announced that the Board had an updated audit presentation which incorporates a
change to the County’s financials.  He stated that the updated material had been provided to the Board of
Commissioners, the County Administrator, the County Attorney, and members of the press.  He stated that
the members of the public could obtain the updated material by contacting Ms. Tameca White in the County
Clerk’s office.  He added that the updated Fiscal Year 2013 Comprehensive Financial Annual Report
(CAFR) could be located on the county’s website, and that copies of the updated Fiscal Year 2013 CAFR
were provided to each Commissioner at their dais.







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 4


Mr. William Sammons and Mr. Greg Chapman, representing Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC., gave a
PowerPoint presentation concerning the Fiscal Year 2013 annual audit to the board and made the following
points about the audit: 


• Mr. Sammons stated that the Independent Auditor’s Report was duel-dated since there was a
change in the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) funds used for the Hood Avenue
extension right-of-way, which will be the City of Fayetteville’s property.  He said it has been
considered as construction in progress and was moved from capitalized asset to
intergovernmental expenses.  Mr. Sammons said the net effect was that it reduced the assets from
the government-wide basis, reduced the net assets on a go-forward basis, and that there was no
change in the net, unrestricted net assets of the County.


• Mr. Sammons reported that both the Independent Auditor’s Report on the County’s Financial
Statements and the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Water System’s Financial Statements
were unmodified.  He stated that the reports are considered “unmodified” due to a verbiage
change, and that the reports used to be referred to as “unqualified” reports or clean opinion.


• Mr. Sammons informed the Board that there were no compliance or control deficiencies that could
be reported to the Board with respect to the internal control over financial reporting and on
compliance and other matters based on an audit of the financial statements performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  


• Mr. Sammons commented that the Report on Compliance with requirements of OMB Circular A-
133 saying the major program that has to be audited is a federal assets forfeiture program.  He
said the auditors had to test for compliance, and that the report showed that there were no
instances of noncompliance of material or significant deficiencies.


• Mr. Sammons stated that another report that was issued was on the Procedures Report on the
County’s Compliance with the Financial Assurance Provisions of the Municipal Solid Waste
Landfill Criteria under Subtitle D of the Resource Conservation Recovery Act, and that the firm
found no changes.


Mr. Sammons spoke about the required communications to the Board and he told about the adjustments
that had to be made.  He said his firm did not have a disagreement with the County’s management.  Mr.
Greg Chapman then briefly spoke about the County’s financial statements. 


The Board did not comment or ask questions of the auditors.  The Board did not take a formal vote on this
matter.  Copies of the request and the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 7", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


7b. Proclamation of April 26, 2014 as Fayette County’s 7th Annual Earth Day.


Commissioner Charles Oddo read the proclamation of April 26, 2014 as Fayette County’s 7th Annual Earth
Day, and he recognized many of the volunteers who have contributed to this and previous Earth Day
events.  The Board then recognized several employees and citizens who have worked for and contributed
to the Earth Day festivities past and present.  The Board did not take a formal vote on this matter.  Copies
of the request and the proclamation, identified as “Attachment 8, “follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 5


8. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for
Fayette County’s annual budget document for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending
June 30, 2014.


Chairman Brown, the Board, and County Administrator Steve Rapson recognized the County’s Finance
staff, including Budget Officer Sergio Acevedo, on receiving the Distinguished Budget Award.  Chief
Financial Officer Mary Parrott also spoke about Mr. Acevedo’s consistent and quality work on behalf of
Fayette County.  The Board did not take a formal vote on this matter.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 9, “ follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no Public Hearing Items on the Agenda for consideration.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Consent Agenda as read.  Commissioners Ognio and Oddo seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the
meeting.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to implement the proposed grade changes and resulting salary
adjustments for the Water Production Division of the Fayette County Water System, as prepared by
The Carl Vinson Institute of Government and the University of Georgia.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of staff’s request to obtain an enclosed trailer from District 4 Public Health for the storage
and transportation of emergency shelter supplies for the Fayette County Fire and EMS Department. 
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to add Southmill Subdivision to the Fayette County Street Light
Program.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12,” follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


12b. Approval of staff’s request to change the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners’ meeting time from
7:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.  


Chairman Brown explained that the reason the meeting time was requested to be changed was because
the Board had training courses to take during the morning of April 11, 2014, and that it was about a five-
hour drive time to get to the training location.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


13. Approval of a request from Promise Place to authorize the Chairman to sign a Local Government
Approval Form, as required by the Department of Community Affairs, affirming the organization’s
efforts to obtain funding through the Emergency Solutions Grant.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 14,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 6


14. Approval of the March 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business Items on the Agenda for consideration.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to increase the sewer billing fees that the Water System
charges to the Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of
Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks from $1.00 to $1.62.


County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that staff had completed an analysis that basically
took both the direct and indirect costs for the County to process bills on behalf of the stated municipalities,
that he has spoken with the representatives for the municipalities, and that the representatives are okay
with the rate adjustments.  


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept staff’s recommendation to increase the sewer billing fees that the
Water System charges to the Peachtree City Water & Sewage Authority, the City of Fayetteville, the Town
of Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks from$1.00 to $1.62.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  Mr.
Rapson asked the Board to amend the motion so that the rate adjustments would become effective on July
1, 2014.


Commissioner Barlow amended his motion to  accept staff’s recommendation to increase the sewer billing
fees that the Water System charges to the Peachtree City Water & Sewage Authority, the City of
Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks from$1.00 to $1.62 and with said increases to
become effective on July 1, 2014.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the amended motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the meeting. A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 15,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


16. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-05 revising provisions pertaining
to Motorized Carts within unincorporated Fayette County.


Chairman Brown stated that the Board had additional documents on the dais, specifically, it was the
ordinance itself and a version of the ordinance without the notations.  He stated that the additional
information could be provided by the County Clerk’s office.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport informed the Board that this was an ordinance that was an offshoot from
the interns that served Fayette County during the summer of 2013.  He stated that the interns had
suggested that it would be a good idea to try and have consistency of application of ordinances that
regulate golf carts.  He said that the Board was provided an ordinance that is pretty much what is already
on the books for the Town of Tyrone and substantially what is already in place for the City of Peachtree
City.  He asked the Board to look at Section 10-42 since it required the Board to make a decision as to how
to effect the registration if the ordinance were to be adopted.  He pointed out that Option #1 and Option #2
was being presented to the Board for consideration, and he explained that Option #1 presented the type of
registration that currently exists in the Town of Tyrone and that Option #2 presented the type of registration
that exists for the City of Peachtree City.  He then pointed out the differences between the two options.  He
stated that either option would work, and it was up to the Board how it wanted to registration handled.  







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 7


Commissioner Ognio asked, concerning Option #2, about a $60.00 registration fee for the unincorporated
portion of the County, and he suggested that the language would not apply in this instance.  Chairman
Brown agreed that the language would have to be stricken from the ordinance.  Mr. Davenport agreed that
the language for Option #2,if it was the option taken by the Board, would have to be conformed so that it
would be appropriate for Fayette County.  


Chairman Brown said he had worked on this matter for a while, and that it was great working with the
interns.  He said the interns’ recommendation was that the County proceeds with trying to come up with
some sort of universal standard.  He said that Peachtree City has been working with this issue for so long
that they have become the universal standard.  He explained that the County was trying to mimic what the
City of Peachtree City was doing so that if someone crossed boundary lines from unincorporated Fayette
County into Peachtree City then that person would not be in violation of the law.  He said this ordinance
would give the County the ability to standardize the process.  He added that the Town of Tyrone was
already “in the ballpark” and that the City of Fayetteville may make adjustments pending the Board’s
decision.  He stated that the path system is now becoming a countywide system, and that the path system
could be made available to everyone.  Chairman Brown stated that the proposed ordinance does allow
twelve-year-olds to drive golf carts with a licensed adult, and for fifteen0year olds with a learner’s permit to
drive the cart by themselves, and that the Board wanted to make sure everyone knew it would be strictly
enforced with consequences.


Chairman Brown moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt the ordinance as written, using Option
#2 for Section 10-42(b), and to strike the language related to the unincorporated portion of the County. 
Commissioners Barlow and Oddo seconded the motion.  Chairman Brown then opened the floor for public
comment.  (Note:  Due to persistent audio problems during the meeting, not all names may have been
clearly recorded.  Every attempt has been made to record the speakers as accurately as possible.)


Mary Rathje and Marylyn Tamminen: Ms. Rathje and Ms. Tamminen approached the public comment
podium jointly.  Ms. Tamminen and Ms. Rathje spoke about the challenges and difficulties experienced with
driving from one jurisdiction to another.  Ms. Rathje asked the Board to approve the proposed ordinance so
she could get to school easily.  


Viam Na: Mr. Na asked if the paths could be used for bicycling or walking, and Chairman Brown replied
that while there are restrictions on what could be used on the paths, bicycling and walking certainly is
allowed.


Gabby Knight and Rachel Terrell: Ms. Knight and Ms. Terrell approached the public comment podium
jointly.  Ms. Knight thought it would be better for Starr’s Mill students to be allowed to drive their golf carts
since it would provide a greater convenience while cutting down on traffic.  Ms. Terrell said she lived across
from the Rising Starr complex, and she asked for golf cart passage across State Route 74 to Starr’s Mill
High School.


Aubrey Garner: Mr. Garner, President of the Highgrove Subdivision, said the Highgrove Subdivision fully
supported the proposed ordinance.  He asked that the ordinance be enforced to the letter.


Bob Madrinich: Mr. Madrinich, representing the Woodcreek Homeowners Association, said he supported
the ordinance.  He said it made perfect sense and he hoped it would lead to the ability for schools to accept
students driving golf carts to their facilities.







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 8


Tim Marlow: Mr. Marlow, President of the Longboat Homeowners Association, spoke in favor of the
ordinance.  He also supported extending the cart paths throughout the county, and in doing so making the
County “one whole” county.


Merlin Myers: Mr. Myers, a representative of the Brechin Park Home Owners Association, spoke in favor of
the proposed ordinance.  He asked for mutual recognition from the other jurisdictions, and Chairman Brown
replied that the mutual recognition was in the ordinance.  Mr. Myers spoke about an upcoming golf cart path
extension, and he asked about the possibility of crossing at pedestrian crossings across State Route 74. 
He said the residents in his neighborhood would be pleased to have the ability to make those types of
crossings.  Chairman Brown reminded Mr. Myers that there are several tunnels under State Route 74
where crossings could be made.


Eileen Craner and Ms. Ann (last name not recorded): Ms. Craner and Ms. Ann approached the podium
jointly, although Ms. Ann did not make any comments.  Ms. Craner supported the ordinance and asked
about access to the Star’s Mill High School complex, and she asked if golf carts could be driven on the
sidewalks during school zone hours when the speed limit reduces to 45 miles-per-hour.  Chairman Brown
replied that the question really involved the Georgia Department of Transportation and what that
Department would allow, but he added that there are paths in various areas of Peachtree City that are near
the highways that the Department has allowed. Chairman Brown added that if people are in subdivisions
with connectivity issues that they could feel free to contact him or County Administrator Steve Rapson.  Ms.
Craner then asked about what measures would be taken to allow for parking at Starr’s Mill and create paths
to Starr’s Mill.  Chairman Brown replied that the principal at Starr’s Mill High School is in favor of bringing
golf carts to Starr’s Mill so long as it is done in a safe and orderly fashion.  He added that this ordinance
was the giant first step in a long process.  He stated that there was still a lot of planning to be done, and
that work was ongoing with connectivity and crossings, but that this measure was a first step to getting
people into the system.


The motion to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt the ordinance as written, using Option #2 for
Section 10-42(b), and to strike the language related to the unincorporated portion of the County passed 4-0-
1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the meeting.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-
05, identified as “Attachment 16,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh, referring to the comments made during the recognition of One More Generation,
agreed that one person can make a difference, and he suggested that he was one person who could make a
difference.  He asked the people in the audience, and particularly the students who were sitting the audience, if they
understood what had happened earlier in the meeting when the two auditors talked about the county’s financial
statements.  He asked the audience and the students how many of them understood that what the auditors said was
that the county has produced financial statements that are materially misstated.  Chairman Brown asked Mr.
McHugh to address his comments to the Board.  Mr. McHugh then asked how many people sitting on the Board
attacked him the last time he spoke in an attempt to take away his constitutional right of freedom of speech.  He
stated that he wanted everyone to understand that Mr. Emory McHugh actually came by with a real concern that the
Board was driving Fayette County financially into the abyss.  He stated that the Board had sent a set of financial
statements to the Municipal Securities rule-making board where they will use the information to buy securities, to the
Carl Vinson Institute of Government (CVIOG) where others will look at financial statements every day, and place it
on the County’s website.  He stated that the information was all misleading and lies.







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 9


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Department of Family and Children Services Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that
Ms. Carol Colon had resigned from the Department of Family and Children Services Board.  He stated that the
resignation would become effective on May 14, 2014.  He asked for the Board to establish a Selection Board for
applicants to the open position.  The Board consented to allow Chairman Brown and Commissioner Oddo to serve
on the Selection Committee for the position to the Department of Family and Children Services Board.


Public Facilities Authority: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the Board needed to reestablish the
Public Facilities Authority.  He reminded the Board that the Public Facilities Authority was seated last year, but the
terms last for only one year.  He told the Board that the current members to the Public Facilities Authority are
Commissioner Ognio, himself, and Ms. Letitia “Tish” Naghise.  He stated that three positions would expire on May
22, 2014 and that the positions would be readvertised.  


Fayette County Hospital Authority: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the Fayette County Hospital
Authority is pending some action, and that a meeting was scheduled on April 2, 2014.  He stated that the Hospital
Authority has not met for a couple of years, and he advised that the County not advertise for possible positions on
the Hospital Authority until the meeting is held.  The Board agreed to his recommendation.


Smoke-free County Policy: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the County was enacting a smoke-
free policy beginning April 1, 2014.  He said this issue had been beaten to death at the Department Head level, but
he wanted to ensure that everyone was notified that the County would be a smoke-free entity.  Chairman Brown
asked what being a smoke-free entity meant.  Mr. Rapson replied that it meant that no one could smoke inside the
facilities, outside of the facility, in the parking lot, or any property adjacent to County facilities that are county-owned
properties.  Commissioner Ognio asked if that included electronic cigarettes.  Mr. Rapson replied that it included
electronic cigarettes and chewing tobacco.


Board of Commissioners’ Retreat: County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board and the audience that
the Board of Commissioners’ Retreat would be held on Friday, April 4, 2014.  He stated that it would take place at
New Hope Baptist Church’s South Campus.  He stated that the public would be welcome to attend.  


Recognition of Commissioner Oddo as a Certified Commissioner: County Administrator Steve Rapson
recognized and congratulated Commissioner Oddo for completing the requirements and being officially recognized
as a Certified County Commissioner by the Carl Vinson Institute of Government and the University of Georgia.  The
Board congratulated Commissioner Oddo for his hard work and achievement.


Response to Mr. Emory McHugh’s Comments: County Administrator Steve Rapson responded to Mr. McHugh’s
statements saying everyone is entitled to their opinion, but, as he saw it, people needed to review the standards for
government.  He stated that when it comes to finance and budgeting, those standards are met by the County.  He
reminded the Board that the County has received the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) Award, and
just this evening the County received the budget presentation award.  He told the Board that neither award is just
handed out.  He added that the County had received a clean, unqualified audit, which is a big deal in this day and
age.  He stated that Fayette County has bond attorneys’ comments and commentary in regards to the treatments of
the County’s bonds.  He stated that the state auditors have also weighed in on the matter.  He concluded that both
he and Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott are Certified Public Accountants, and that either everybody is wrong or
they are not.  







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 10


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Four Real Estate and Review of the March 11, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: County Attorney Dennis
Davenport reported that he had four items of real estate matters for discussion in Executive Session as well as the
review of the March 11, 2014 Executive Session Minutes for Executive Session.


Update on the Public Facilities Authority Legislation: County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that the
Georgia Legislature did amend the Public Facilities Authority to expand the ability for the County to use that
Authority, if need be, for stormwater projects.  County Administrator Steve Rapson added that this work was
accomplished by Mr. Davenport, and the Board thanked Mr. Davenport for his work.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner David Barlow: Commissioner Barlow quipped that County Administrator Steve Rapson did not
acknowledge it when he became certified.  Mr. Rapson replied that he would get Commissioner Barlow a Team
Player button.  Commissioner Barlow stated that Mr. McHugh is a disgruntled ex-employee that was fired for not
complying with his job description and following instructions from his supervisors.  He stated that Mr. McHugh had
been fired twice throughout his employment with Fayette County.  He stated that the County tried to rehabilitate him
and bring him back in because he is “the best financial mind in Fayette County,” but that Mr. McHugh has a peculiar
personality that if someone disagrees with him then he will become hateful and spiteful; which is too bad.  He
concluded that the people would probably see Mr. McHugh from time to time.  Commissioner Barlow thanked all of
the employees of Fayette County.  He said he had the privilege of going to Environmental Management’s
department meetings, to go to the Water System’s staff meeting, and to as many staff meetings as possible.  He
said he is constantly amazed at the quality of the County’s people, and that he has become the “ambassador of
goodwill for Fayette County.”  He stated that he takes pride in the fact that the County has such quality people
working for it, and that the people could take pride in what goes on in Fayette County.  He stated that Fayette
County is unique and is better than a lot of the surrounding communities because of everyone tries very hard.  He
stated everyone is approachable, and that is not the way it is in many counties.  He again thanked the employees
and the residents who come to the meeting, and he said it was always a pleasure to serve.


Commissioner Randy Ognio: Commissioner Ognio thought that the Fayette County Finance Department had done
a good job, and he said he did not know where Mr. McHugh is coming from.  He stated that Mr. McHugh comes to
the meetings and “spews his stuff out,” but he does not have any really specific thing to say that is true and that he
can put his finger on.  He stated it was hard for him to understand Mr. McHugh’s motivation.  He told the audience
that in reviewing the Fiscal Year 2013 audit, which was the audit prior to passing the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, and
that the 2013 audit revealed that the 2013 budget was “upside-down.”  He added that the Fiscal Year 2014 budget
will be balanced.  He stated that he looked forward to getting the audit for the Fiscal Year 2014 budget.


County Administrator Steve Rapson added that there was a meeting with the Association of County Commissioners
Georgia (ACCG) in regards to the County’s pension plan, and out of the 159 counties in Georgia, Fayette County
has the only pension plan that is currently over-funded.


Commissioner Charles Oddo: Commissioner Oddo agreed that Mr. McHugh does have credentials and that he
should be proud of them.  He pointed out that, in Georgia, Certified Public Accountants have peer review, meaning
that other Certified Public Accountants will do random investigations on other Certified Public Accountants.  He said
the purpose behind peer reviews was to keep everybody ethical.  He was sure that Nichols, Cauley & Associates,
LLC., has gone through peer review.  He stated that when the auditors come to a Board of Commissioners meeting
and make a statement, then it should be known that they have been researched by other Certified Public
Accountants.  He stated that someone could disagree, since accounting is not an exact science and since it leaves







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 11


room for interpretation, but that it does not mean that everything is all wrong.  He told the Board that he was very
pleased which “what our group is doing here,” and that they have done as good a job as possible to move the
County forward.  Commissioner Oddo quipped that he had new found respect for Spud Webb, the shortest man to
play in the NBA, after taking pictures with basketball players.


Chairman Steve Brown: Chairman Brown informed the students in the audience that the County has a couple of
opportunities that will be coming up.  He said one was the Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) and that
three of Fayette County’s elite high school students just completed the program.  He told the students that they
would get to serve at the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) in Atlanta, and that the program lasted for about eight
weeks.  He said the students would get to learn every facet of regional government, about what is being done with
the environment, transportation, senior services, and other functions.  He said the County would love for the
students to apply and that information would be coming out in the newspaper.  The second opportunity for students,
he explained, was a high school internship program for rising juniors and seniors.  Chairman Brown said if the
students were interested that they should know it is a summer program and that the golf cart ordinance that was just
passed was due to a project from a student from Starr’s Mill High School.  He stated that students who want to make
their mark in Fayette County should think about doing the internship program.  


Mr. Viam Na, who spoke earlier in the meeting in regards to Ordinance 2014-05 Motorized Vehicle Ordinance,
returned to the public comment podium, pointing out that Mr. McHugh had stated that the County’s expenditures
were higher than the revenues.  He asked what items or initiatives did the County make expenditures on that were
higher than the County’s revenues.  County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that primarily Mr. McHugh’s
complaint has to do the fact that Fayette County has historically had deficit budgeted.  He stated that the current
sitting Board has eliminated deficit budgeting, and he suggested that Mr. Na should come to the April 4, 2014
Retreat to find out more on the matter.  Chairman Brown added that essentially what was happening for several
years were that the expenses were higher the incoming revenue, and that there were various expenditures since the
county does a lot of various projects related to roads, public safety, law enforcement, running a landfill, and other
expenses required to run a county government. 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Four Items of Real Estate and Review of the March 11, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Oddo
moved to go into Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the meeting.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:00 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:39 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval to Sign an Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to
exit Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign an Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent
from the meeting.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 17,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


Approval of the March 11, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the March 11,
2014 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioners Ognio and Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the meeting.







Minutes
March 27, 2014
Page Number 12


Purchase of 340 Hewell Road, Jonesboro, Georgia:  Chairman Brown moved to approve the purchase of 340
Hewell Road in Jonesboro, Georgia, that is in east Fayette County, for the sales price of $1,425,000.00, and to
extend the time period within the contract to sixty days to allow for environmental studies, the owners of the property
being Nancy M. Campbell and Jean Desrosiers, and for the county to provide earnest money in the amount of
$140,000.00.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner McCarty being absent from the meeting.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Oddo moved to adjourn the March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being
absent.


The March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:41 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 10th day of April 2014.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk









